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Terms used 1t this report

Lnited Luhues P1 C 1s the intermediate holding company of ithe LK s largest histed water business lhe
company means Lned Luhives PLC, the group means Lnied Lulittes PLC and us subsidiary
undertakimgs LLG means bnited Utihties Group PLC and LLG group means Lnited Lulines Group
PLC and 1ts subsidiarv undertakings  1he regulated business , regulated acuvities or LLW means the
licensed water and wastewater activities undertaken by United Utilities Water PLC 10 the North West of
England the non-regutated business or non-regulaicd activities iefers 1o the group s other vuluny
infiastructure operations i the LK and overscds
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Chief executive officer’s statcment

Overview

In fme with the LULG group s sirategy of focusing on core activiies the group completed 1ts non-
regulated disposal programme i November 2010 The last four years have seen the group reshape its
portfolio fiom a group with a wide ranging set of activitics and nteresis into a regulated UK water and
wastewater business

We believe this enhanced focus on the regulated business will enable us to deliver further operaiional
performance customer service and efficiency wmprovements We remamn confident of delivering
outperformance over the 2G10-15 period, with sigmficant financing outperformance already secured

We¢ have made good progress in the {irst year of the new five-vear regulatory period and are pleased to
report a sound set of financial results We have continued to mahke high levels of invesiment wn our water
and wastewater asscts providing further benefits for our shareholders customers and the environment

Dividend

During the vear an interim dividend of 8 64 pence per ordmary share was declared and paid “No final
dividend has been tecommended for the year ended 31 March 2011 (2010 £17 87 pence per ordmary
share)

Operational performance

We continue to work hard to improve our operational petformance and have made further progress duiing
the year We are pleased that more customers than ever before arc telhing us that they are sausfied ot very
satisfied with our setvice and we have achieved an overall customer satisfaction rate of 83 per cent for
2010/11 In addition this vear we reduced by over thice quariers the number of wustomer complaints
asscssed by the Consumer Councail for Water We hnow however that theie is sull more we can do in this
arca and 1t 1emans a hey priotty for us

Ihe commitment demonstrated by our emplovees duting the unpiecedented cold spell that we cvperienced
mn December 2010 was exemplary [his outstanding effori has tesulied i us achieving Ofwat s lcahage
atget for a fifih consecutive year This 1s a temathable achicvement given the sigmificant impact of the
extreme weather on ow leahage levels and we would lihe to tahe 1this opportunity o sdy thank vou to all
our emplovees and contractors who worhed trclessly to achieve this result

In order to enhance further the visibility of our opeidtional performance and help dnive continuous
improvements we have reviewed our key performance mdicators {(KP1s) agamst which our stakeholders
cdan dssess owr progress As part of our aim to deliver best savice to cusiomers we will continuc to
medsiee asset serviceabtlity and customer satusfaction and mtend 1o mtroduce Ofwat s new scrvice
mncentive mechamsm (SEVY when fully implemented Our drive to deliver lowest sustainable cost will be
supporied through our KPls which cover relative efficiency and water leakage We also have KPIs 10
medsiie envaonmental perfotimance and corporate responsibiliny

Delivering our regulatory contract

We have made a good start 10 the new regulatory period and investment m our assets has continued at
high levels helping the business meet strict envionmental standards and dehver an wnproved serviee for
our customers Regulatory capiial expenditure including nfrastructure renewals expenditure 1in our water
and wastewadler busmess amounted o aver £600 million during the year Fhis substanual level of spend 15
consistent with our planned mnvestment programme over the 2010-15 perod as we aim to smooth the
spend profile 1o optimise efficiency and reduce risk We are pleased to have made good early progress in
the delivery of outputs
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Chief exccutive otficer’s statement (continued)

Corporate governance and corporate responsibility

We have consisiently demonsirated a comumiment to adopling the highest standards of corporate
sovernance at board level and throughout the company

It hght of the LUG group s strategic focus on 1ts core water activities, we have stmplhfied the board
structure such that directors membership of the United Lulines Group PLC and Umited Utihies Water
PL.C boards 15 now 1dentical

We continue to listen to the views of all our siakeholders and endeavour to develop, manage and operate
n an environmentally sustainable and socially responsible manner This includes a continued focus on
water efficiency the impact of climate change and responding to the needs of our customers

In recognition of the group s continued focus on corporate responsibility, 1t retained 1ts World Class
rating as measured by the Dow Jones Sustainability Index

Health and safety 1s paramount and we beheve that everybody i the group has a part to play n
maintamning a safe workhing enviromment We acknowledge that our health and safety performance n
2010/t 1 has been below our target and we will continue to focus on this area

Regulatory developments

Privatisation of the waler mdustry has gencerally been considered a success, with companes having
mvested ova £90 billion 1o maintain and improve assets, customer service and the environment Some 20
yedrs aftet privausauon, there are cutrently a number of 1eviews being undertaken to assess options {or the
future development of the industry  1his mcludes a LK Government review of Ofwat and a Watet White
Paper 1s expecied to be published later this year

Whilst 1t 15 too catly for us 10 hnow the ouicome of the vanous 1eviews that are taking place we will
continue 1o work very closely with the hey politicians and regulators to represent the best micrests of our
mvestors customers breader stakeholders and the industry as 4 whele

People

Lhe people 1t the group ate hey 1o the dehvery of the lighest levels of setvice 10 our customers and we
would like t0 thank them for therr dedication and conunued hard work We believe that a commitied and
motivated workforee 1s central 10 delivering our vision to become the LK s leading water company and
we remain fully focused on mamtaining high levels of employee engagement

On bchalf of the beard we say thank vou and fatewell to Philip Gicen who has made a nemendous
contribution to the ULG group during the last five vears Philip led the reshapmg of the company s
strategy and caprial structure and he lcaves the LU G group on a sound footing We wish lum all the best
mn his future challenges

We would also like to thank Charlic Cormish for lus contribution to the group over the past seven vears
most recently as managing director Lulity Solutions Charlie left the group as we completed the non-
regulated disposal programme and we wish hun well 1in his new role as chief esecutive of Manchester
Amnport Group

We welcome Russ Houlden who joined us m Ociober from lelecom New Zealand as chief financial
officer of LLG 115 combination of experience within finance and treasury will prove invaluable to the
company along with his extensive evperience of operating 1n a regulatory environment and managing
large capital expenditure programmes




Lmted Luthues PLL

Chicf exccutive officer’s statement (continued)

Pavironment

Kev 1o the group s stiategic objecitves is the goal 1o operate in a mote sustainable mannw Given ows long
fife assets we tahe a long-teim view of ow operations [n hine with requirements under the Chimate
Change Act 2008 m Janwary 2011 we published o responst to the Secrciary of State for Enviooament
Food and Rural Affans de ail'ng the woth we are aheady vndonehing and e plans we are puting into
place 1o adapt 1o the challenge of chmate chiange We continue io look at ways of 1educing demand o
waier 10 help ensure the contimuty of water supplies for owr customers

We recently completed the construciion of om Wost East [k water pipeline which will enable us 10
transpoil water ova 35 kdlomeaes m either ditection buveen Veiseyside and Gieater Manchestu This s
onc of the largest projects of 11s hind cvar undataken and upon commissioning wilt improve further ow
abihty w menage wacer supply across onn tegion and thercfore owresilience to chimaie chonge

Customecers

Durng 2010/ 1 o houschold cusiomers have bencfited from an average 1eal reduciion m then water
bills of 4 3 par cent which equates 10 atound £16 per customaet per annumt Despite this 1eduction o
average customer bills we have continued to invesi heavily 1in owr assets 1n otder to ensurc that we can
CORLALL 0 movide our customars with mgh qualry dosthing wata 1o meat all thon dany necas ond
covirenmentally tesponsible wastcwater collection ana treatiient

Out wata and wastewdiet scivice cantently costs houscholds approvmately £1 par day on average We
believe this conlinues to 1epresent excellent valuc for money for owr customets We recognise thal we
need 10 mamtam the affordabiiny of cusiomer bills i what continues to be a tough economic
envronment and we continue to fund ow chartable tust providing €3 million per year to help customets
who dre sttuggiing o pay thewr water bills

Outlook

We believe that with the continued focus on the core regulated activities we are well posittoned to medt
the challenges of the curtrent tegulatory paod and bevond with the aun of deliverig benefits for all of
our stahcholdets Fhe board 15 cncowmaged by the progicss we have made n the first vear of the naw
1cgulatory petod and | Tdent we can bwild on this as we progress through the remainder of the
penod We hope ou ders emplovees and customers will conimuc 1o shate mthe gioup s suceess

Steve Moght
Chief executive officer Lmted Ludites Group PLC
7 Julv 2011
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Business review

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The group meniters a large number of financial and non-financial key performance indicators (KPIs) to
assess its performance The non-financial KPIs include targets set by regulatory bodies The group believes
that the KPIs hsted below provide an overall pictute of 1is business Additional impertant non-financial
performance measures (in patticular health and safety) are provided in the various sections of this teport
and in our online cerporate responsibility report at unitedutilities com/erreport2010 The 2011 corporate
responsibility report 15 expected to be published in October 2011

Restared !

2010/11 2009/10
Fmaneial KPIs
Underlying  operating profit from contiruing operations £396 4m £706 3m
Undeitying ' profit before taxation from continuing operations £358 7m £514 5m
Underlying @ profit after taxation from continuing operations £260 4m £369 5m
Revenue from continuing operations £1,513 3m £1,575 Im
Operating profit from continuing operations £580 2m £767 8m
Piofit before tanation from conunuing operations £356 6m £440 6m
Profit after taxation ftom continumg operations £3753m £370 Om
Non-financial KPIs
Best service to castomers
Serviceabiliny 4 \ siable 4 \ stable
Ovecrall customer satisfaction (in response 10 engunics) 83% 82%
Lowest sustamable cost
Waler - relauve efficiency banding ¢! Band B Band BB
Wasicwaicr — relative effictency banding ¢ 3and C Band C
[ cahage —roliing annual average leakage 464Ml/day 462Ml/day
Responstble manncer
Frvironment Agency performance assessmeni 6th 10th
Dow Jones Sustamnabihity Index rating © World Class World Class

Notes

(1) Coniibutions from non-regulated vntities dispased of m the sear have buen remos ed from prior year comparatines

(2) Sec pages 14 and 13 for explanaton

(3) Otwat rates assits as mmprov ing stable margmal or detenoraing and ciasses thom between water and wastew ater and
infrastruciure and non-nfrastruciure

(4) Bandings relatc to 2009/10 and 2008/09 beng the Jatest avatfabic assessments (2009/10 bandings bascd on internal compam
madciling)

(3} Composite mdey produced by the Environment Agenes whidh measures the relative partormance of the 10 water and sewerage
companies Purformance relates o 2009/10 and 2008/09 being the latest available assessmonts

(6) Ratings relate to 2009/10 and 2008/09 buing the latest available assessinents
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Business review (continued)

BUSINESS DESCRIPTION

Lnited Lulines PLC s the intermediate holding company of the LK s largest listed water business The
group owns and manages the regulated water and wastewater network 1n the North West of England,
through 1ts subsidiary Uniied Utilines Water PLC (LL W), which constiiutes the vast majerity of the
group’s assets and profit

The group now has one operaung division for management purposes, being regulated activities and
reports through two business segments

*  Regulated activities, and

*  All other segments

Regulated activities
Key facts

¢ 9f water treatiment works

s Over 42,000 kilomettes of water pipes
¢ 37000 hectares of catchment land

e 375 wastewater ttecatment worhks

e Over43 000 kilometres of sewetrs

e Serving a population of seven imilhien people

Water and wastewater operations

L LW holds ficences to provide water and wastewadier scrvices lo a pepulation of approvimately seven
million people i the North West of England  Almost 2 600 mellhion hues of water 1s supplied every day to
approxamately 3 2 million homes and businesses Water 15 collected from catchment land and othet
sources and stored 1n reservours before being ircated and then debivered via a network of pipes to homes
and indusiry A large proportion of the water supphed flows freely hy graviy and does not need 1o be
pumped

Wasicwater 15 colleeted using a network of sewers and treated before being returned safely to the
cnvironment A by-product of the treatment of wastcwater 1s sewagc sludge which s treated further to
produce an end product suniable for reevehing

LULW's watet and wastewater setvice cutrentdy costs houscholds approsimately £1 per day on average
Over the next five vears the average annual houschold bill wiil fall by £9 mn real terms [he group
believes this represents excellent value for meney, providing cusiomers with high qualnty drinking water
to meet all therr daily needs and for environmentally 1esponstble wastewaier collection and treatment

Since privatisation 1n 1990

*  Water quality in the North West has improved from 99 6 per cent (0 99 9 per cent

¢ Comphance with bathing water standards across the North West has rnisen from just over 30 per
cent to more than 90 per cent,

» leakage from the neiwork has halved. supporied by ongomng investment n replacing ageing
water pipes and

e LU W has invested more than £4,000 for every household in the North West which 1s above the
national average
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Business review (continued)

BUSINESS DESCRIPTION (continued)

In the 2005-10 period LUW nvesied more than £3 billion to improve the water and waslewater
infrastruciure and the environment across the North West Purther developments in the regulatory regime
are expected 1o take effect in the next few years, in particular as a result of European Linion environmental
imtiatives (mcluding the Water Framework Directive and the revised Drinking Water Directive)

Conststent with the group s approach to longer-term planning UUW s strategic diection stalement
updated 1n Apnl 2010 sets out the company s plans for the 2010-15 rcgulatory period 1n a longer-term
context [he key etements 1dentified n the straiegic direction statement are

* Responsible stewardship of water and wastewater networks,

s  Listening to customers and other stakeholders

*  Ensuring water resources are more sustainable and restlient,

¢ Anintegrated approach to drainage to 1educe the threat of flooding
¢ Reducing significantly the carbon impact of activities, and

s Billstorise on average, no fastet than mcomes

The group has a weli-established framework for risk management and climate change 1s identified as onc
such nisk As such chimate change 1s managed 1n the same way as any other 1isk to the group In January
2011 UL W pubhshed 1s response to the Secrctary of State for Lnvironment, Food and Rural Affans
detailbng the woik ahicady undertakhen and the company s plans to adapt w the chaltenge of chimate
change in fine with the requirements under the Chimate Change Act 2008

Regulatory environment
Enviionmental regulanion 1s the responsibility of the Sceretary of State for Environment T'ood and Rural
Affans together with the Favitonment Agency, the Drinking Water Inspectorate and Natural Fngland

Economic regulation 15 the responsibility of an independent body Ofwat which sets price hmits every
five years for the water sector in ngland and Wales Price cap regulation 1n the UK s performance based
and companies are incentivised to be efficient in ierms of their operating costs caputal programmes and
financing Regulated revenue 1s set by teference to inflaiton as measured by the retanl prices dex (RPI)
plus an adjustment factor known a5 K

Curtent ptice lunits were published 1n 2009 when Ofwat set out 1ts final determmation of price hmus for
the peried | Aptil 2010 1o 31 Match 2015 LUW s profile of price himis for the five yvears 1s set out
below

Year 20140/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15
K factor -4 3% -0 2% -0 6% -1 0% 12%
Ofwat s {inal determinauion of price limais for LL W was based upon

s a£3 6 bilhon capital investment programme (2007/08 prices)

s 12 per cent. or approvmately £900 million real growth in the regulatory capital value (RCV)
over the five years

e an average annual underlying operating cfficiency of 1 2 per cent for the water service and 2 4
per cent for the wastewater service and
e aretumn on capital of 4 5 per cent (post-tay real)

The RCV 1s the capital base on which water companies catn a teturn B s increased by capital expenditure
and inflation, and reduced by depreciation
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Business review (continued)

BUSINESS DESCRIPTION (continucd)

All other segments -
As part of LUG gioup s strategy of focusing on iis core activities, the group completed 1ts non-regulated
disposal programme 1n November 2010

The non-regulated disposal programme has included the disposal of the group s investments 1n Northern
Gas Networhs and Manila Water, which completed 1n the prior financial year together with the disposal
of 1ts electricity operations and mainienance business 1n the North West of England 11s holding in Meter
F1t 1ts Austrahian business 1ts principal UK and European non-regulated water interests, 1ts contract with
Northern Gas Networks, 1ts gas and electricity metering nstallation contract and 1ts mumicipal solid waste
related interests Following the completion of this disposal programme the group no longer has a
requirement for a non-regulated activities reporting scgment

The restdual elements of the previously reported non-regulated activities operating segment, which have
been retained, are now ncluded within all othet segments These principally include LUW s non-
appointed activities and the group s holding 1n AS lalhinna Vesi (Fallinn Water) The results of Lnited
Lulises Property Services and certain central costs are also included within this 1eporting segment
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Business review (continued)
PERFORMANCE SUMMARY
Group results (continuing operiations)
Restated
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2011 31 March 2010
£m £m
Underlying operating profit® 596 4 706 3
Underlying profit before taxation 3587 5i4 5
Underlying profit after taxation ® 260 4 369 5
Revenue 1,513 3 1,573 1
Operating profit 5802 767 8
Profit before taxation 3566 440 6
Profit afier taxation 3753 370 0

(1) The v ast majoris of the group s non-reguiated actis ities are treated as disconunued and the group has adopted IFRIC 18 hence
the 2009/14 results have been estated

(2) Lnderiving profit measures have boen pros ided 1o give a more represuntative view of busness performance and are defined m
the underhy e profit measure ables on pages 11 and 13

(3) Excludes the mmpact of the transter of private sowers sinew this was not ingluded w the 2009 price tevies

s«  Lndetlving operating profit of £596 nulhon reflccets 2009 price review

=  Smoothet capral delivery profile for 2010-13 pened over £600 mulhion mvested 1 the vear

e Mecticgulatory teahage target despite extreme winter weather

« Stuong focus on operational performance

s Substanuial financing ovtperformance already sccured

= largeung tolal operaung expenditute outperformance of at Icast £30 mullion or two per cent
over 2010-13 period ¥

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE.

The group has delivered a sound set of financial results for the vear ended 31 Match 2011 following the
regulatory price teview Group tevenue fiom conunuing operations fell by £60 mulbon to £1 313 million
reflecting a real price decrcase m the regulated busiess Revenue from all other segments was {48
tmiilion, representing just three pet cent of group revenue

Lndetlying operating profit decicased by 16 per cent to £596 mithion primarily as a consequence of the
reduction mn revenue alongside increases 1n depreciation infrastructure renewals expenditure and property
rates Reported operating profit fell by 24 per cent to £580 mullion reflecting one-off restiucturing costs
of £16 milhion 1n the vear and impacted by a one-off credit relauing to pensions of £87 milhon last year
which increased 2009/10 operating profit Lnderlving operaiing profit from all other secomenis was £16
million, representmg less than three per cent of group underlymng operating profit In hght of this, from
2011/12 the group will have a single segment for financial reporting purposes
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Business review (continued)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (continued)

Invesiment income and finance expense

[nvestment income and finance expense of £224 million was £104 nullion lower than the previous year
principally reflectung £19 nullion of net fair value gains en debt and derivative nstruments, compared
with £137 muiilion of net fair value losses in 2009/10 The unpact of credn spreads on debt accounted for
at fair value thiough profit or loss has conttibuted to the net fair value movement on the prior year In
addition the net pension interest expense was £18 million lower than the prior year due to a higher return
in the scheme’s assets

Parually offsetting the favourable variances above 15 an increase of £72 million on the prior year from
indexation of the principal on index-hnked debt primarily due to the effects of RPI1 deflation i the prios
year on debt with an eight-month lag The indexation charge does not represent a cash flow during the
year and is more than matched by an inflationary uphft to the regulatory capital value

Profit before tavation

Lnderlying profit before taxation was £359 million 30 per cent lower than the prior year, principally
reflecting the revenuc impact from the regulatory price review an increase n infrastiucture renewals
expenditure m line with the planned investment profile an increasc in the underlyimng net finance expensc
and a higher depreciation charge as a result of growth in the commissioned asset base his undetlying
measure adjusts for the impact of one-off nems principally from restructuring within the business and
fair value movements 1n respect of debt and dersvative mstruments Reported profit before taxation from
contnung operaitons decreased by 19 per cent to £357 mullion prncipally as a result of the £87 mulhion
onc-off pensions credit in the priot vear and a higher depreciation chaige partly offsct by a decrease n
the reported finance expense this vear

[avation

I'he current taxation charge relating to continuing activitics was £43 nullion i the veat and the cutient
tanation effective raic was 12 per cent compated with six pet cent 1n the previous year The curient yeal
charge ncludes a £29 mulhon credit following agreement with HV Revenue and Customs (HMRC) of
prior vears taxation mauers without which the effcetive 1avation rate would have been 20 per cent The
prior vear current tasdtion charge included a £47 mullion eredit in telation to the agreament with HMRC
of prior years taxaton maiters without which the effective taxvation raie would have been 17 per cent

The group has recogntsed 4 nct deferred 1avaton credit of £62 nullion 1n 2010/1F Fhis mcludes an £11
millton charge in relation o the agreement with HVIRC of prior yedrs taxation maiters and a £99 muithon
credn to reflect both the change enacted on 27 July 2010 1o reduce the mamsiream rate of corporauon
tavation from 28 per cent to 27 per cent and the subscquent change enacted on 29 March 2011 to reduce
the mainsiream tate of corporauen taxation further to 26 per cent from 1 Apnt 2011 ‘This compares with a
net deferred tasation charge relating to conunuing operattons of £42 million in the prior year which
mcluded a £7 muthion credit in relation to the agreement with HVIRC of prior years taxdtion matters

An overall taxation eredit of £19 m:ihon relating 10 conunuing operations has been recogmsed for the year
ended 31 March 2011 Excluding the impact of the reducuon in the corporation tasation rate and the
impact of the prior year taxation adjustments, the total taxation charge relating to continuing operations
would be £98 million or 27 per cent compared with a £124 nullion charge or 28 per cent last year

I'he group made a cash tavation payment relating 1o continuing opcraitons during the year of £47 mulhon
In the previous vear the group s net tasaiion payment was just £1 milhen as 1t received a cash tavauon
mflow of £51 million following agreement with HVMRC of prior years™ taxation matiers
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Business review {continued)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (continued)

Profit after taxation

Reporied profit afiet tavation was £373 mullion compared with £370 muilion in the prior year Linderlying
profit afier tasation was £260 milhon This 1s based upon the underlying profit before taxation figure less
an underlying taxation charge of £98 millhon which includes an adjustment for the deferved taxanion
credit 1n relation to the change in the mainstream rate of corporation taxation

Cash flow

Net cash generated from continuing operating activities for the year ended 31 March 2011 was £609
million, compared with £763 million last year This reflects the impact of the regulatory price review and
a laxation payment of £47 million 1n 2010/1 1, compared with a small net taxation payment of £1 million
m the prior vear The group’s net capital expenditure on continung operations was £491 million
principally 1n the rcgulated water and wastewater investment programmes This excludes infrastructure
renewals expenditure which 1s treated as an operatng cost under International Financial Reporting
Siandards

Net debt including dervauves i respect of continuing operations at 31 Maich 2011 was £4,809 milhon,
compared with £4 967 nullion a1 31 March 2010 Expenditure on the regulatory capital mvesiment
programmes and payments of dividends nterest and taxation have been more than offset by oprating
cash flows and the £268 mullion of cash proceeds fiom the non-regulated disposals

Debt financing and interest rate management

Gearing (measured as group net debt divided by LW s regulatory capital value) decieased 10 39 per cent
at 31 Maich 2011 compared with 65 per cent at 31 March 2010 Thas reflects growth in the regulatory
capiial value coupled with a reduction i gioup net debt following the disposals of non-regulated
activiies  Tahing account of the group s pensions deficit and treating 1t as debt, gearing would be 61 per
cent

Atthe yearend Lnned Luliies Water PLC had fong-term credit 1atngs of A3/BBB- and Lnited Luhties
P1.C had long-term credn ratings of Baal/BBB- fiom Moody s investors Service and Standard & Poot s
Ratings Services respectively The sphe rating reflects differing methodologies used by the credii raing
ageneles

Cash and short-term deposits at 31 March 2011 amounted to £255 muillion During 2010/11 LULW agreed
a new £200 mithon indes-linked loan facihty with the European Investment Bank with an average real
interest rate of | 2 per cent and an average temn of approvimaicly 11 vears [his 1s an amortising loan with
an amtial four year capital repayvment hohday followed by semi-annual nstalments with a final matrity
m 18 years the group also renewed £30 millon of existing bilateral commutted bank faciliies n the
2010/11 financial year Subsequent to the year end, the group renewed a further £100 nullion of bank
faciliics The group now has headroom 1o cover 1ts projected financing needs nto 2013
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Business review (continued)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (continucd)

Debt financing and interest rate management (continued)

The group has access to the international debi capital markets through 1ts €7 billion euro mediim-term
nole programme which provides for the periedic 1ssuance by Lnited Luhines PLC and United Utilities
Water PLC of debt instruments on terms and conditions determined at the wime the mstruments are 1ssued
The programme docs not represent a funding commuument, with funding dependent upon the successful
1ssue of the debt securities

Long-term borrowings are structured or hedged to match assets and earnings, which are largely in stething
indexed to UK retail price mflauiion and subject 1o regulatory price reviews every five years

Very long-term sterhing inflanon mdex-linked debt is the group’s preferred form of funding as this
provides a natural hedge to assets and earnings At 31 March 2011, approuimately 46 per cent of the
group s net debt was in index-hnked form, representing around 27 per cent of ULW s regulatory capital
value with an average real interest rate of 1 8 per cent The long-term nature of this funding also provides
a good match to the company s long-life infrastructure assets and 1s a key contributor to the group s
average term debt maturity profile which 1s in excess of 235 vears

Whete nominal debt 1s taised i a cuniency other than siething and/or with a fixed mnterest rate, 1o manage
exposure 1o long-term 1nlerest rates the debt 1s generally swapped 1o create a floating raie sterling habiliy
for the term of the habiluy 1o manage exposwie to mediem tenn mterest 1ates the group fined interest
costs for a substantial proportion of the group s debt for the duration of the cunent five-year regulatory
period atl eround the ume of the piice review The gioup does not undertahe any speculative tradmg
activity

Liquidity

Shoit-term higndity tequirements arc met fiom the group s notmal operating cash flow and 1ts shott-term
bank deposits The group has a €2 billion curo-commercial paper programme and further hiquidity 18
provided by commutted but undiawn credit fachities

In linc with the boatd s ucasury poliey, the group amms to mamntan a healthy hecadioom position
Available headroom at 31 March 2011 was £669 milhion based on cash, short-term deposits and medium-
term committed bank facihities net of shott-tetm debt  This headroom 1s sufficient to cover the group s
projected financing needs into 2013

The group believes that ut operates a prudent appreach 1o managing banking countetparly rish
Counterparty risk, in 1clation 10 both cash deposns and detivatives, 1s conuolled thiough the use of
counierparty credit limits  Uhe group s cash 1s held in the form of short-term (generally no longer than
three months) money market deposits with either prime commercial banks ot with tiple A rated money
marhet funds

The group opetates a bilateral raiher than a svndicated approach to 1ts core relanionship banking
facthities This approdch spreads maturiies more evenly over a longer ume pettod thereby reducing
refinancing risk and providing the benefit of several renewal points rather than a large single refinancing
requirement
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Business review (continued)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (continued)

Pensions

The group s net pension deficit at the vear end has decreased by £76 million compared with the position
at 31 March 2010 [his deficit reducuon principally reflects the addinonal contributions paid nto the fund
n the year, partially offset by the impact of revised actuarial assumptions used to mcasure the habihities
when compared with 2009/1¢ As at 31 March 2011, the group s net pension obligations stood at £195
mithion

The group has sought to adopt a more sustamable approach 1o the delivery of pension provision and in the
second half of 2009/10 amended the ierms of 1ts defined benefit pension schemes, the details of which
were 1ncluded i last year’s annual report and financial statements The group has also reduced uts future
pension obligations as a result of the sale of non-regulated acuvities Turther detail 1s provided in note 19
Reurement benefit obligations of these financial statements The group will continue to cvaluate 1ts
pensions invesiment strategy to de-risk further 1ts pension provision

Lnderlying profit (continuing activities)

In considering the undetlyimg resulis for the period, the directors have excluded fair value movements on
debt and derivative nstruments and onc off items  Reported operating profit and profit before tavation
from conuinuing operations are reconciled o underlving operating profit underlving profit belore tanation
and underlving profit after tavanion (non-GAAP measutes) as follows

Contrnuing gperations

Regulaied All other
acivilies scgmenis Group
£m Em fm
Opaating profit for the vear ended 31 March 2011
Operating profit pet published resulis 3710 92 5802
One-off ttems 91 71 16 2
Laderlving operating profit 580 1 163 596 4
Regulated All othe:
activitics segments Gtoup
£m £m £m
Operating profit for the yvear ended 31 Mairceh 2010 (restated)
Operating profit per published results 7617 61 767 8
One-off items 158 100 258
Impact of changes (o pension schemes (76 7) (10 6) (87 3)
Underlying operating profit 700 8 55 7063

14
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Business review (continued)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (continued)

Loderlving profit (continuing activities) (continued)

Underlymng net finance expense
Fnance expense
Investment income

Net {inance expense

Net fair value (gains)/losses on debt and derivative nstruments
Adjustment for interest on swaps and debt under farr value options
Adjustment for net pension interest expense

Adjusiment for capitahisation of interest costs

Underlymg net finance expense

Profit before tavation

Profit before tasation per published resulis

One-off wems '

Impact of changes to pension schemes

Net fair value (gains)flosses on debt and dervaiive mstruments
Adjustment for mterest on swaps and debt under fair valuc option
Adjustment for net pension interest expense

Adjusunent for caprialisation of interest costs

Lndetlving profit before 1avauon

Profit after taxation

Lnderiying profit before tavation

Reported taxation

Deferred 1axaton credn

Agreement of prior years LK taxation matters

Tavation relating to underlving profit before taxation adjustments

Underlying profit after 1ananen

(1) Principally relates to rustructuning and other reorganisauon costs within the business

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2011 31 March 2010
£m £m

(255 9) (365 4)
323 382

(223 6) (327 2)

(19 2) i365

57 (22 2)

38 216

44) (0 5)

(237 7) {191 8)

Year ended
31 March 2011

Year ended
31 Maich 2010

£m £m

3366 440 6

162 238

(87 3)

(19 2) 136 3

37 (222

38 AN

(4 4) (0 3)

3387 5143
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2011 31 Vviarch 2010
£m Lm

3587 5145

187 (70 6)

(99 0) -
(174 (53 7)

(0 6) (207

260 4 3695
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Business review (continued)

REGULATED ACITIVITIES
Finaneial highhights

Revenue from regulated activities was lower by fouyr per cent at £1 477 milhon principally reflecting the
impact of the 2009 price 1eview, which includes a four per cent nominal price decrcase for 2010/11
Customers are benefiing from lower prices alongside significant investment in the group s water and
wastewater nfiastructure which helps meet strict environmental standards and deliver an improved
service As antictpated, regulated revenue was a little lower m the second half of 2010/t 1 compared with
the first half, reflecting seasonality

Underlying operating profit for the year, at £580 mulhion, was 17 per cent lower than last year This was
primarily a result of the regulated price reducuon and expected increases in depreciation, infrastructure
renewals expenditure and property rates, partly offset by a reduction in power costs Other operaling
expenscs were impacted by mcreases in legal provisions and several small non-recurring items In hine
with the planned phasing of the capital mvestment programme, infrastructure renewals expenditure and
depreciation wete higher in the second half of 2010711 compared with the first half of the year Reported
operating profit, at £371 nullion was impacted by one-off costs of £9 million which principaily reflect
business resttucturing  This 1eperted profit was lower than 2009/10 pumatily as a result of the
aforementioned tevenue and cost movements as well as a onc-off pensions credit i the prior vear of £77
mithon

The group has made changes to 11s apptoach to 1cvenuce recognmon with eftect from | April 2016 which
1t believes best reflect the likelihood of cash collection This revised approach 1s consistent with TAS 18
Revenuc and icflects better mformation regarding which customers are not likely to pay The cffect has
been to 1educe both revenue and the bad debt charge in the income staiement with a minimal impact on
operating profit The bad debt chaige for the year was £31 miilion, compared with £55 million last vear

Approvimately £18 mullion of this movement relates 1o the @oup s revised apphication of revenue
recognmition with around L6 mulhion reflecting an undetlving improvament  This 15 4n encouragmg
petiormance given the tough cconomic chimate

Regulatory capital investment i the year including £130 milhon of infrastructure 1enewals expenditure
was £608 mullion compared with £441 nullion in the first year of the 2005-10 regulatory period  This
level of spend s m hne with the planned capial mvestment profile for the 2010-15 peniod  as
mandgement has sought 10 deliver a smoother investiment profile to support efficient dehvery of outputs
and reduce tish

Operationzl performance
T he group aims to deliver long-term shaieholder value by providing

. 'he best service to customers
«  Atthe lowest sustainable cost
e [natesponsible manner

Operational performance 1s a top priority for the company and 1t aims to deliver improvements in this arca
and outperform s regulatory contract The busmess also has a range of key performance indicators o
enhance the visibility of 1ts performance and help drive improvemenis
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Business review (continued)

REGULATED ACTIVITIES (continued)
Best service to customers
Aclions

Customer experience — LUW has esiablished a customer esperience programme 1o help deliver
improved customer service The business now ofTers additional contact epuions for customers, such as an
online account management facility to provide more choices as lo when and how they can contact the
company A priority 1s lo improve customer data management to ensure this provides a single view of the
customer to help improve the efficiency and quality of service

Customer nitiatives — Supporting this customer eaperience programme, the business has increased staff
traming  better aligned staff incentive mechanisms, put new service level arrangements 1 place,
substantially reduced work queues and backlogs and proactively contacts customers to hcep them
informed of progress in respect of their enquities  Lhis 1s delivering an imptoved customer expetience and
reduces unnecessary and repeat calls therebv mmproving cfficiency Although LLW has made good
progress 1 the area of customcr service, the business recognises that it needs to reduce further the numbet
of customer complaints and an encoutaging performance v 2010/11F saw LLW achieve an 83 per cent
reduction i custemer complaints assessed by the Consumer Counci! for Water (CCW), compared with
the previous yvear Nonctheless customer scivice remamns a significant area of continued management
focus

Safe. clean drinking water — LUW has an action plan to ensure safe clean drinking water thiough
maintaining and improving the robusiness of 11s water ticatment processcs rcfurbishing service reservor
asscls ongoing mains cleaning and optumising water icdtment to teduce discolouted water events LLW
continues to supply 4 high qualiy of drinking water with a mean sonal compliance water quality
petformance of 99 96 pet cent which compares with 99 94 pa cent the previous yvedar and s focused on
mamtaming these tugh levels

Water supply and demand bhalance — lo help ensure a continuous watet supply 1o 115 customers
L LW s action ptan includes imnnovation and ivestment in remoic monitonng to better manage and contol
the company s water supply system LU W alse has investment projects 1o optimise waler pressuies and
improve networh tesihence In addiion the company 1s improving 1ts response 1o burst mams io help
heep the water flowing, suppotted by wel rcpars to watel mams where the supply 1emains on through
the 1epair process  The company 1s now close to opening the West Easi Link a significant capital project
designed to improve further the water supply and demand balance 1n 1ts region and enhance network
resilience to chmate change The projeet costing ovet £120 mullion 15 a 535 kilomeue water pipelme
conneciing Mersevside and Greater Manchester and the pipehine 15 now complete It wikl use gravity to
transport water from Greater Manchester to Merseyside with the option 1o pump water i lhe other
direction thus providing more resource flevibility It has a capacity of over 100 megahittes per day which
eqirales to over half of Liverpool s average daily demand [t will increase integration of LL W s network
which 1s important given the potential supply and demand issues that are likely to ansc through climate
and demographic change In addmon to improved security of water supply for cusiomers a hey benefit 1s
that 11 will facilitate the matntenance of critical assets and will replace the need 10 use temporary mains
pipes during mamtenance and cleaning activitics

Wastewater — The company has a range of actions to help support the serviceabtliy of its wastewater
assets lo help reduce sewer flooding these actions include incident based targeting to focus on areas
more likely to experience flooding effective intervention in cleaning and rehabilitauion or refurbishment
of sewers and advising customers about iems not suitable for sewer disposal The plan also includes an
unproved approach to risk assessment 10 1dentify and reduce the risk profile of the company s wastewater
treatment works
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Business review (continued)

REGULATED ACTIVITIES (continued)

Key performance mdicators

*  Serviceability — Long-term stewardship of assets 1s critical and LUW wunproved s posiion i the
area of wastewater non-infrastructure in Ofwat s 2009/10 serviceability assessment {Ofiat defines
serviceabtlity as the capabiliy of a system of assets 1o deliver a reference level of service to
customers and te the environment now and in the future) All four asset classes (water infrastructure,
water non-infrastructure, wastewater nfrastructure and wastewater non-mfrastructure) are now rated
stable and the business expects to retan this position for 2010/11 The atm 15 to retain a  stable’
rating for all four asset classes, which is aligned with Ofwat s target

¢ Service incentive mechanism (SIM) — Although Ofwat has only just mtroduced this new measure,
which has replaced the overall performance assessment (GPA) measure, UUW’s indicative
assessment suggests that the company 15 1n the fourth quartile The aim 1s to move to the first quartile
in the medium-term

Lowest sustainable cost
Actions

Staff and pensions — The group reduced siaffing levels in 2009/10 and placed 1ts pension provision on 4
mote sustamable footing  These measures are helpmg LLW m meeung s 1egulatory efficiency targets

Asset optimusation — [The company s asset optumisation programme 1s progressing well providing the
benefits of mcreased and more cffcctive use of operaitonal site managument to opumise power and
chemical use and the development of more combined heat and power (CHP)Y asscls to improve enetgy
cfficiency  The company s wdastowale: tzealment opumisalion programme (s targeting apptosimately £9
muthon of annual sevings bv 2013

Proactive approach — T'he buswmiess 1s introducing a more proaciive approach to assct and network
management with the aim of improving 1ts modelling and forecasting to cnable 1t to address more asset
and network problems before they occur  thereby 1cducing the level of rcactuive work and improving
efficiency

Power hedging - lhe group has nercased 115 power hedgmg and has now subsiantiatly locked n s
power requircinents through to 2014/15 securing outperformance Power ung costs for 2010711 aie
approsimately 20 per cent lower compared with 2009/10 and the business espects to benefit from this
teduced cost level through 201i/12 Although power rates bevond 2011712 have been secured at highe
levels than those for 2011/12 this sull delivers additional ouiperformance versus the regulatotv contract

Debt collection — The business 1s adopting a more proactive approach to debt collection It has a detailed
action plan in place, which includes enhancing systems to improve customer scgmentation analysis and to
obtain beiter data on customers who have moved address, coupled with a more proactive debt follow up
straicgy T o support this a proportion of 1ts debt collection function which was previously off-shored has
now been brought bach m-house In addition the company s planning io use more local authorny
collection agreements The bad debi performance for 2010/11 has been encouraging
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REGULATED ACTIVITIES (continued)

Lean principles — Supporiing the company s efficiency drive 1s 1ts lean principles approach 1o domg
business Systems and processes continue to be streamlined and the busmness 15 rationalising 1s
infrastructure and has in-sourced us IT provision to provide greater control of us IT assets and
applications

Leakage managemeni — The performance of the business in mecting us regulatory leahage target for
2010/11 was exemplary, given the extreme winter weather Winter temperatures were well below the
long-term average and fell as low as minus 15 degrees Celsius on several occasions [ was the coldest
December in the UK for over 100 years The freese and subsequent thaw resulted in a significant increase
n leakage levels Strong management focus and outstanding commutment from employees enabled the
business to meet 1ts 2010/11 regulatory lcahage target of 464 megalires per day and importantly with
mimum customer disruption

Capntal delivery — The business has utilised previous experience to improve the terms and conditions of
its supplier centracts and has a robust commercial capital dehvery fiamework in place for the 2010-15
period Contractor petformance 1s ahgned with the company s business plan through appropnate incentive
arrangements Good progiess mn the dehivery of outputs has been achieved in the fitst year of the new

regulatory petiod reflecting o smoother and more cfficient investment profile than that experienced m the
2005-10 period

Sludge processing — A new £100 militon sludge processing cenite 15 bemg developed at the company s
Davyhulme wastewater treatment works i Manchester Sludge will arnve from soven feeder treaiment
woths and will be processed using advanced thermal hvdiolysis technology  The new facility will provide
a rangt of benelits including energy self-sufficiency for the whole site, greater sludge disposal flexibilny
with a wider choice of Jand disposal duc to the advanced stage of the treated product and improved sludge
condstion to cnhance the cfficiency of 1acineration Theie will also be the option 10 pump the tcated
sludge 10 LLW s Shell Green sludge processing centre i Widnes  The project 15 scheduled 1o be
complcted n carly 2013

Key performance indicatois

«  Relative efficency — LUW has sustamed s relative efficiency bandings as assessed by Ofwat for a
number of years at band B for the water setvice and band C for the wastewater service 1his places
LU W m the third quartile and the business aims to move to the first quartile in the medium-1erm

* lLeakage — LLW met us economic level of cahage tolling target for the fifih consecutive vear
2010/11, despite extreme winter weather conditions reflecting strong management focus and the
outstanding commutment of the workforce 'he aim 1s to meet 1ts regulaiory lecahage target s set by
Ofwat, each vear
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REGULATED ACTIVITIES (continued)
Responstble manner

Actions

Corporate responsibility — Sustainability 1s fundamental to the manner 11 which the group undertakes 1ts
business and the group has for many years included corperate responsibility (CR) factors as a strategic
consideration n its decision making One example of the group’s actions 1s its parinership with
environmental regeneration charty Groundwork, where every £1 mvested by the company leverages £3,
which helps fund community schemes in socially and economically deprived areas where the group 1s
carrving out capual works This has contributed to the UUG group achieving the highest platinum plus
ranking 1n Business in the Community s (BITC) CR index and being recognised as BITC s Company of
the Year for 2010 as well as being rated World Class in the Dow Jones Sustainabihty Index The
group’s CR policy sets out 1ts commitment to envirenmental social and economic improvements and this
1s communicated 1n a way that enables all employees to recogmise how their roles and responsibilities
contribute to maintaining and improving sustamability performance

Sustainable catchment management programme — Lhe group owns approsimately 37,000 hectares of
land in the North West which 1t holds to protect the quainy of water entering 11s 1eservons 1he company
has developed a sustainable catchmont management programme which will help 10 enhance biodiversiy
and protect and umprove watet qualny

Renewable encigy — The gioup has & detailed carbon and renewable energy plan which contributes both
to sustainabilny and reduccs costs In 2010/t 1 the company generated 111 GWh of rencwable clectncnty
principally from sludge processing  This tepresents approsumaiely 14 pet cent of the group s total
electricity consumption

Environmental performance — This is a high priotny for the company and LUW has mote than halved
the number of major pollution ncidents over the last few vears Wastewater tieatment woths comphance
remains high a1 97 8 per cent a similar performance o the previous yvear LU W 1s worhing more closely
with the Envionment Agency (EA). thiough 1ts agreed protocol 10 help mmmmsse the occurrence and
cnvuonmental impact of pollution modents This meludes the sharing of resources knowledge and
experuse  The company s also enhancing s iclemetty and flow monttoring cquipment to provide carly
identification of mcidents 1o enabic prompt action to be taken to minmmse the potential 1mpact
Recognising that environmental performance 1s wide-ranging the company will be measuring itself
against an I'A composite measure as detailed in the hey performance indicators below

Key performance indicators

*  Eovironmental performance — [he EA computes & composiic measute which incorporates o broad
range of areas including pollution LUW was ranked tenth out of ten water and sewerage companies
for 2008/09 but improved 0 sisth position for 2009/10 (EA s latest assessment) and has reduced the
number of major pollution incidents this year which will contribute to the assessment for 2010/11
Fhe company aims to move from this average relative position to the first quartile in the medium-
term

= Corporate responsibility — The group has a sirong focus on corporate responsibility and 1s the only
LK water company 1o have a World Class rating as measured by the Dow Jones Susiamabibity
Index The group aims (o retain this World Class rating each year
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REGULATED ACTIVITIES (continued)
Outperformance of regulatory contract

Fiancimng outperformance — The group has secured £300 milhien of financing outperformance over the
2010-15 period, based upon an RPI mflaton rate of 2 5 per cent per annum A one per ¢ent per annum
mctease i RPL above this level would increase financing outperformance by more than £100 million
across the five-vear period The amm is 1o raise future financing, as required, at interest rates that will
deliver further outpetformance when compared with Ofwat s allowed cost of debt of 3 6 per cent real
LU W has recently agreed a new £200 million index-linked loan with the European Investment Bank at an
average real interest rate of | 2 per cent, which secuies additional financing outperformance of around £20
millon through 10 2015

Operating eapenditure outperformance — [Fhe business s targeting total operating expenditure
outperformance over the 2010—-15 period of at least £50 million or approximately 1wo per cent, compared
with the regulatory allowance This 1s 1n addition to the base operating expenditure efficiency targets set
by Ofwat, which equate to a 1o1al of approvimately £15¢ million over the five years LUW has made goed
progress i 2010/11 and has achieved operaung expenditure outperformance of around £10 mtlhon

Capital expenditure outperformance — LUW s delivering significant efficiencies n the area of capual
expenditure and  although 1t 15 stiving for outpetformance expects broadly 1o meet Ofwat s 1evised
allowance after adjusuing ihrough the recgulatory methodology, for the impact of lower construciion
output prices

Pohtical and regulatory developments

The group 1s actively involved in political and regulatory developments that retate to the LK water sector
and has 4 prodciive programime to tegulanly engage with the hey parties

Private sewers — lhe UK pathament has approved regulations to tansfer the ownership of and
tesponsibility for private sewers to the Enghsh and Welsh waler and sewerage companies from | October
2011 This 1s 4 stgnificant asset base and LLW expects the length of 1ts sewet network to increase by
around 80 per cent 1his should provide long-term benefits {or both customets and the dusiry although
it will inevitably tesult in addmional cost and operauonal woikload and an increase m customer contacts
However the company has been preparing for this for some tme and mobihisation activiites ate underway
to help ensure a smooth transfer

Although the assets are expected 1o be transferred at seto value, future capial expenditure should provide
the opportunity for further growth n the regulatory capnal value (RCV) Whilst final details of the
ransfer are stil to be determined LLW currently estimates that 1t will incur additional operating
expenditure totalling around £33 milhon over the remainder of the 2010-15 period Capual expenditure 1s
esumated to be apptovimately £123 million actoss the same period of which around £90 mithon 1s
expecied 1o be infrasiructure rencwals expenditure (IRE) and the batance enhancement expenditure
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Business review (continued)

REGULATED ACTIVIIIES (continued)

Political and regulatory developments (continued)

For private sewers expenditure in 2011-15 under Ofwvat s regulatory framework, the group cipects, as a
minunum, that sharcholders will receive appropriate returns on the enhancement capital expenditure
(subject to Ofwat s assessment of efficiency) and IRE (subject to Ofwat s application of the capual
expenditute mcentive scheme) In addition, the company will review regularly whether an enhanced
outcome for shareholders can be achieved through the submission of a requesi for an Intenm
Determmation of K For eapenditwie beyond 2013, the group expects sharcholders to teceive appiopriate
returns on all private sewers eapendnure provided that the money 15 spent efficiently

i'he same 1egulations will provade for the transfer of private pumping stations There are esumated to be
several thousand of these it the LUW s region As they require to be surveved and may need remedial
work for health and safety and performance reasons, the transfer date for pumping stations 1s expecled o
be by | October 2016 LUW expects Lo incur capital expendure of approvimately £10 million by 2015 n
respect of the adoption of private pumping stations with the majority expected to be adopted n the first
year of the subsequent regulatory penod This estimated spend 1s inciuded within the afore mentioned £123
mithion total capital expenditure spend over the remainder of the 2010-15 period

Regulatory reviews — It has been o busy year for water 1ssucs in the pohitical and regulatory arenas
Agamst a bachdrop of Defra s teview of Ofwat Ofwat s own revicws and consuliation on price limits as
well as planned White Papers on the Nawal b nvitonment and on Water the LLG group has been closely
engaged i developments with the aim of helping 1o shape the autcomes for the benefits of customers
sharcholdets and other stakcholders

Ihe business sought to focus the debate onto dicas such as how the sector can help addiess climate change
and sustainability 1ssucs by reforming water absttaction and water trading arrangaments The LLG group
has emphasised to pohiticians and tegulators that the sector has a busy ¢hange agenda with the vansfer of
private sewers and that benchmark competiton has altecady delivered significant environmental dand
customer service benefits lhe LLG group 15 encouraged that uts calls for less regulauon are bemng
considered and 15 sceking incentives to encoutage the mdustty to innovate more The UK Government s
planned Water White Paper which 1s now scheduled 10 be published tn autumn 2011 15 expected 1o cover
these 1ssucs

NON-RFGULATED ACTIVITIES

In line with the LLG group s straiegy of focusing on core activities the group completed s ¢ £600 mullion
non-regulated disposal programme in November 2010 and the remaining proceceds were recerved in the
sccond half of 2010/11 The vast majotity of the non-icgulated activinies are treated as discontinued in the
201011 financial statcmentis lhe residual elemenis of the previously teported non-regulated activities
operating scgment which have not been classified as discontinued operations no longer form a reportable
stgment as defined by International Financial Reporting Standard No 8 and have theiefore been included
within  All other segments  These principally inctude LLW s non-appointed activities and the group s
holding i AS “lallinna Vest (Tallinn Water), which was not sold as parnt of the non-regulated disposal
programme

In the vear the non-regulated activities treated as discontinued, produced profit after tanation of £104
mithon of which £89 milhon related 1o profit on disposai afier taxation
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ALL OTHER SEGMENTS

All other segments have delivered an underiying operating profit during the year of £16 miilion which
compares with an underlying opetating profit of £6 million last year This includes UUW s non-appomted
activiies, Lnited Lulities Property Services (LLPS) and the conirnibution from the group s 353 per cent
holding 1n Tallinn Water, partly offset by certain central costs Despite the continuing difficult conditions
n the UK property market, UUPS has generated a small profit contribution

The reported operating profit for the segment was £9 million This reflects onc-off costs of approximately
£7 million, principally m telation to restructurimg within the group’s support services function, elements of
which are reported 1n central costs

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Key developments during the year

With the sale of the vast majority of the group’s non-regulated businesses in the UK and overseas during
the course of last year, the niskh mofile of the group 15 now largely confined to the regulated water and
wastewater business in the North West of England

However a new principal uncoitainty has ansen due to the pubhcation of the Government Watet White
Paper expected later this yvear The likely smpact on the industry positive or negative, 15 as yei unknowan

but the paper 15 expected to address challenges facing the watet industry such as climate change and
population growth and tharr effects on futuie water resoutces and infraswucture resihience the avallabihity
of futute wvestment how 1o manage wastewater cffectively and how 10 improve customer service — all
while heeping water bills affordable 1The White Paper will afso set out the Government s conclusions on
Martin Cave s teview of Compctiion and Innovation 1 Water Markets and Anna Walker s review of
Chatging for Houschold Watcr and Sewerage Services

The Whue Paper will reflect the conclusions of David Gray s as yet unpubhished review of Ofiat and the
statutoty and 1egulatory frameworks under which the industiy operates and these may further impact the
industry 11 general and the group in parucular

lhe group mamtamns an internal control frameworh that assesses throughout the vear the natute and
magnitude of internal and external rishs to the achievement of business goals Managers are requited to
employ both prodctive and reacitve mitigation measures i ¢ priotiised mannet 1o reduce exposures and
ensute ongoing resilience should a nsh materiahse Fhe exceutive management team regularly reviews
significant rishs so that the bodrd can deternine the nature and estent of those 11sks it 1s willing to take m
achieving 1ts strategic objectives [ he audil conumitiee 1cgularly reviews the framcowork s cffectiveness and
the group s comphiance with it The principal rishs and uncertainties are summarised here

Government market reform agenda

Risk

[he government 1s introducing a Whue Paper later this vear which may implement some or all of the
recommendations contained 1 the 2009 Cave report which include

e enending competiiion to all non-domestic customers and sphiiing off the company s retail operations
to facilitate the same

+ faciiitation of abstraction licence trading 1o tackle over abstraction

s reform of the special imerger regine to aliow mergers of water companies where these would be 1n the
customer s interest and

+ reform to the mset appomntment regime with 1egulated access and supply frameworks
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Business review (continued)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Government market reform agenda (continued)

Vhitigation

I he gtoup has been {ully engaged m the government and Oiwat censultations on the Cave review and other
aspects of competiion A relatively small proportion of the group s profits derive from the retaihng of
water and wastewater services 10 nen-household customers However the group recognises that reforins 10
the pricing rules that govern access to the group s water network and greater upstream competition could
put at rish a greater propertion of the group s profits Equally, if competition s expanded, there would also
be oppertunities for the group to participate m a wider market in England and Wales

Caputal investment programmes

Rish

The core business requires significant caputal expenditure particularly in relanion to new and replacement
plant and equipment for water and wastewater networhs and treatment facilitics

Delivery of capnal investment programmes could be affected by a number of factors including adverse
legacy effects of cathier capnal investments (such ds increased maintenance ot CoiTeclive CosLs) or amounts
budgeted m prior capital nvestment programmes proving insufficient to meet the actual amount required
This may affect the group s abifity to meet regulatory and other enviroamental petformance siandards

Vitigation

Capnal 1mvestment programmes are tegularly monitored to idenufyv the sk of tine cost and qualiy
varances ftom plans and budgeis and to idenufly whae possible any apptoptiate opportunities for
outpet formance and any necessary correciive actions

Service incentive mechanism
Rish

For the 2010-15 period Ofwat has introduced 2 new comparative mcentive mechdnism o reward o
penalise water companies service performance replacing the Overall Performance Assessment (OPA)
The Scrvice Incentive Mechanism (SIM) compates companies performance 1 terms of the number of
unwanied contacts recetved from customers and how well they deal with those contacts Depending upon
LLW s retative performance undet SIM 1t could receive a revenue penaliy (up to one per cent of turnover)
or reward (up to half a per cent of turnover) when price himus are nextreset in 2014

Vutigation

L he group has been monitormg and measuring customer satisiaction for a number of years and results have
been impreving consistently  1¢ build on this success and 1 preparation for the change to SIM a dedicated
project team has been set up 1o cnsure our processes behaviours and svstems provide consisient and
excellent service 1o our customers T'he company s focus 1s on ensuring rnight first iume service delivery to
its customers thus avoiding the need for unwantcd contacts Where unwanted contacts do anise, then
there 1s a clear focus on dentifving the root causes [hese actions ate intended to cnsure that the
company s performance under SIM 15 eptimised thereby mitigating the rish of a penalty at the next price
setling
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Business review (continued)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTILS (continued)
Serviceability assessment
Risk

The group 15 required to mamtam the serviceability of its water and wastewater assets cnsuring they
contmue to dehiver a level of service and performance at least as good as in the past Where serviceabihity
falls below required reference tevels of performance, Ofivat would deploy a staged approach 1o regulatory
action to secure corrective action by UUW and could make financial adjustments at the next price seiting
O1, 1f performance was to decline, the group may incur additional operating or capital expendiure Lo
restore performance

Vitigation

The various indicators of performance are closely and 1outinely monitored by management The
company’s capital mvestment programme 1s targeted to seeh to maintain stable serviceability of the
company’s water and wastewater assets Similarly operational practice s intended to ensure siable
serviceabihty Where adverse trends develop and there 1s a risk of serviceability deviating from stable, then
corrective action can be identified and taken

The adoption of private sewers
Rish

In 2008 the government announced 115 1ntention 10 tansfer sewers and pumping stations currently owned
by privaie individuals and businesses 1o sewerage undertakers The transter 1s expected on | October 2011
for private sewers and by Qctober 2016 for pumping stattons  No allowance has been made mn price limits
for the costs associated with the transfer  Theiefore any costs incurted will represent an unbudgeted
Incicase 1n operating and capital expendituie compared with the Ofwat allowance 1n the 2010-135 price
detetminatien

Vhitigation

‘the group will sech to mitigate the impaet of the costs assoctated with the transfer when price lunits are
nestieset either di an tnterim determination or the newd petiodic teview

Pension seheme obhgations
Risk

The group participates 1n a number of pension anangements  The prnncipal schemes are defined beneflt
schcmes  although these have been closed to new emplovees since October 2006 The assets of these
schemes are held i trust funds independent of group finances with the funds being well diversified and
profcssionally managed  The group s current schemes had o combined net deficit of £195 mulhon as at 31
March 2011 compared with a deficit of £271 m:lhion as at 31 March 2000

Mitigation

Increases to pension fund defieits may result in an increased hiabihity for the group the size of the Liabilny
depending upon the extent to which addiuonal deficits are recoverable through the regulatory price
determination process In the 2009 water price review Ofwat took account of broadly 50 per cent of the
penston deficit payvable over a ten wvear recovery period shown in LLW s final business plan when setting
1s overall price controls In response io the siz¢ of 11s ongoing pension rishs and pension costs the group
introduced a series of changes for emplovees 1 us defined benefit (DB) schemes These changes which
came nto force on 31 March 2010, should result in reduced costs and tishs, including defient associated
with DB habilities 1n future In conjunction with the trustees, the group continues 1o monitor and to look to
reduce the investment strategy rishs for the pension schemes including the group’s exposure to mvestment
risks
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Business review (continued)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Failure to comply with appheable law or regulations
Risk

lhe group 1s subject to various faws and regulations in the UK Regulatory authories may, from time to
tume mahke enquirtes of companmies within therr junsdiction regarding compliance with regulations
soverning their operations 1n addition to regulatory comphance proceedings, the group could become
mvolved 1n a range of third party proceedings relating 1o for example land use environmental proteciion
and water quality Amongst others, these may nclude civil actions by thurd parties for infringement of
rights or nuisance clauns relating 1o odour or other matters Furthermore the impact of future changes in
laws or regulations or the mtroduction of new laws or regulations that affect the business cannot always be
predicted and, from time to tune, mterpretation of cuisting faws or regulations may also change or the
approach to their enforcement may become more rngorous If the group fails 10 comply with applicable law
or tegulations 1 particular mn ielaton to its water and wastewater hicences, or has not successfully
undertaken corrective action regulatory action could be taken that could include the imposition of a
financial penalty (of up to 10 per cent of appointed turnover} or the imposition of an enfercement order
requiring the group to mcur addmonal capial or operating expenditure to remedy 1ts non-compliance In
the most extreme cases non-comphance may lead Lo 1evocation of a licence or the appointment of a special
administratot

Mitigation

The group endeavows to comply with all legal requirements 1n accordance with 15 business princtples and
robust processes are in place 10 sech to mitigate agamnst non-comphiance The group continually monitors
legislauve and 1cgulatory developments and, where appropriate, participates in consuliations 1o seck 1o
mfluence then outcome either dncetly or through industry trade associations for widet issues The group
scchs appropriale funding for any addional comphance costs in the regulated business as part of the price
detersnation process

Lvents, service mnterruptions, systems failures, water shortages or contanunation of water
supphies

Rivh

The group controls and eperates water and wastewadler networhs and maintains the associated assels with
the objective of providing 4 continwous service In exceptional circumstances d significant nterruption of
service provision such as prolonged droughi or catasirophic damage such as a dam buist could occur
iesulting in significant loss of hife and/or envuonmental damage dand/or economic and socual disiupuion
Such errcumstances might artse for example from water shortages the failure of an asset or an clement of
a nctworh or supporting plant and equipment human ctror dan ndividual s malicious niervention o
unavoidable resoutce shortfalls Lhe group could be fined for breaches of statutory obhgations or held
hable to third parties or be required to provide an alternative water supply of cquivalent quality which
could mncrease costs The group s also dependent upon the abily 10 access utilise and communucate
remotely via electronic softwate apphicattons mounted upon corpordte information technology hardware
and communicating through internat and external networks The ownership maintenance and 1ecovery of
such apphicaiions hardware and networks are not wholly under its control
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Business review (continued)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERFAINTILS (continued)

Events, service interruptions, svstems failures, water _shortagcs or contamination of water
supplies (continued)

Vhtigation

The group operates long-standing well tested and appropriately resourced incident response and escalation
procedures The processes continue to be refined alongside related rish management and business
continuity procedures which complement the governance and inspection regimes for hey infrastructure
assets such as aqueducts dams reservours and treaiment works These recognise that possible events can
have varving causes, tmpacts and hkelthoods Sustainability of our water supply 15 also managed through
regional aqueduct neiworks which will be enhanced by the completion of the West East Link pipeline
While the group secks to ensure that 1t has appropriate processes and preventative controls in place there
can be no certainty that such measures will be effective in preventing or, when necessary, managing large-
scale mcidents 1o the satsfaction of customers, regulators, government and the wider stakeholder
community The group dlso maimntains surance cover n relation to losses and labilities hikely to be
associated with such sigmficant risks although potential habthties atising {rom a catastrophic event could
exceed the mavimum level of insurance cover that can be obtained cost effectively The heence of the
regulated business also contains a shipwreck clause that 1f applicable may offer a degree of recourse 1o
Ofwat 1n the event of a catastiophic meident

Material htigation

Risk

In February 2009 Lnied Lulities International Limned (LLIL) was served with notice of a muluparty
class action’ in Argentmna related 1o the issuance and payment default of a LSS230 million bond by
Inversora Electrica de Buenaos Anes S A (IDBA) an Argentine project company sct up to puichase ene of
the Argenune clecticity disttibution networks, which was privansed i 1997 LULIL had a 45 per cent
sharcholding m IEBA which 1 sold m 2005 The claim s for a non-quantified amount ef unspecificd
damages and purports o be pursued aon behalf of umidentificd consumer bondholders in IEBA - LUIL has
filed a defunee 1o the acuion and will vigorously resisi the procecdings given the robust defences that
LUIL has been advised that 1t has on procedutal and substanuive grounds

In March 2010 Manchester Ship Canal Company (MSCC) owners of the Manchester Ship Canal (the
canal ), 1ssued proceedings seching amengst othet 1ehef damages alleging trespass agamnst LLW n
respect of LLW s discharges of watet and treated effluent mto the canal The iespective legal nighis of
MSCC and UL W ielatmg to the discharges ate unclear Accordingly the relevani legal principles need o
be tested through court process LLW have filed a defence and counterclaim in support of us believed
entitlement to mahe discharges mto the canal withoui charge and MSCC s <laim will be vigorously
defended thereafier We now await VISCC s tesponse to our defence and counterclam

Vhiigation

Che group faces the general nisk of littgation 1in cennection with 1ts business  In most cases, liability for
Iitigation 1s difficult to assess or quanuify recovery may be sought for very large andfor determimate
amounts and the esience and magnuude of habiliiy may remain unhnown for substanual pertods of ume
e group robustly defends lingation where appropriate and seeks 1o mmimise s exposure to such claims
by early identification of rishs and comphiance wath 1ts legal and other obhgations Based upon the facts
and matters currently known and the provisions caried in the group s statement of financial posttion the
dircctors arc of the opinion that the possibihity of the dispute referred to in this risk section having a
material adverse effect on the group s financial poesiiton 1s remote
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Directors’ report

the directors present their report and the audied financial statements of Lruted Luliues PLC and us
subsidianies for the year ended 31 March 2011

Principal activities and business review

The company 1s a public hmited company registered i England and Wales Its registeted office address 15
at Haweswater House, Lingley Mcre Business Parh, Lingley Green Avenue Great Sankey, Warrington
WAS5 JLP

The company is the ntermediate holding company of a group which predominantly owns and operates
water and wastewater assets in the “North West of England During the year, the group disposed of the
majonty of 11s non-resulated assets

The business review (pages 3 to 27), which meludes the Chief executive officer’s statement and the
financial performance section (pages 10 to 13), provides a balanced analysis of the development and
performance of the group’s business during the financial year and the posiion of the group s business at
the year end, and forms part of this directors report A summary of key performance indicators can be
found i the petformance section of the business teview on page 6 A summary of the principal risks and
uncertaintics can be found on pages 23 to 27 An indication of hikely future developments of the group can
be found on pages 4 and 5 The company s principal subsidiary undertakings and the associated companies
and jomt ventuwres m which the group participates are hsted m note 13 to the consolidated financial
statenienis

Dividends

Ihe directors have not recommended a {inal dividend for the year ended 31 Maich 2011 An witerim
dividend of 8 64 pence per ordinay share was declared and pard [he mnterim and final dividends paid
respect of the 2009/10 financial yvear were 9 07 pence and 17 87 pence par ordinary shaie 1especitvely

Dnectors

[he directors who held office duting the vear and 1o date ate given below

PA Aspin (appointed 21 May 2010)
M Carmedy (appointed 21 May 2010}
S1. Mogford {appoinied 4 April 2011)
JR Houlden {appotnied 1 Cctober 2010)
' Weller (resigned 21 May 2010)
C Cornish (resigned 30 Sepiember 2010)
PN\ Green (resigned 31 March 2011)

Directors’ indemmities and insurange

LLUG has in place contractual entitlements for direciors of subsidiary and certain associated companics to
claim mdemnification by LLG 1 1espect of certain habiliues which might be incurred by them n the
course of thewr duties as dircetors  These artangements which constitute quahifving third party indemnuy
provision and quahfving pension scheme indemnity provision, have been estabhished 1n comphance with
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2006 They include provision for LLG to fund the costs
mcurred by directors in defending certain claims aganst them 1n relation to thewr duties as directors of
subsidiary or associated companies of LLG LLG also procures an appropriate level of directors and
officers labiluy insurance for both LLG and all us subsidiaty compantes Directors and oificers of the
LULG group are covered under this insurance policy wherc they have been ashed by the group to carry out
duties on behalf of the group
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Directors’ report (continued)

Political and charitable donations

The group docs not support any political party and does not make what are comunonly regaided as
donatons to any political party or othet political organisations However, the wide definition of donations
in the Political Parties Llecuions and Referendums Act 2000 covers activities which form part of the
necessary relationship between the group and poluical staheholders This mcludes promoting the group s
activines at any of the mamn political parties annual conferences when they are held in the North West
region In 2010/11 the Labow Pariy held us annual conference in Manchester as did the Conservative
Party wn the previous year The group mecurred expendiure of £5,000 (2010 £19,155) as part of this
process At the 2010 United Luliies Group PLC annual general meeting, an authorty was taken Lo cover
such expenditure A sunilar resolution witl be put to the shareholders at the 2011 United Ltihties Group
PLC annual general meeting 1o authorise the company and uts subsidiaries to make such expenditure

Charitable donations by the group in the year amounted to £5,193,987 (2010 £5,247 202) i support of
charitable causes in the local commuminies in which i operates and those of interest to 11s employees

Employees

The group mims to create a great place to work ensuring the right people with the right skills are in the
right roles to deliver the best possible scrvice to 1ts customers

Health and safety

[he 1eported aceident incidence rate per 100 000 employees (injuties causing an absence of gredter than
one dav) increased from 740 (restated) 10 1 101 1eflecing an unfortunate rise i accidents In response the
group has scught to consolidate s health and safety management f1ameworh and renew 1is focus on back
to basics for good health and safety praciice, hinked to improvement plans which are in place across the
aroup

lhe company has mteduced a new dedicated incident hotline and mniegrated data analysis and reporung
solutton  launched a safety awareness campawgn and devcloped 1obust procedures governing accident
nvestigation

i he competence of emplovees plays a key part in mimmising the rishs they face and reduces the group s
tish exposue The group contimues to develop new ways to measure and review competence 1n health and
safety shilis and mereasingly 1 security and risk management

The reported aceident incidence raie per 100 000 emplovees for the group s conuactors 1s 416
tepresenting a significant impiovemensi over the priot vear s performance of 1 232 (restaied)

Ihe imponance of preventing occupational 11l health can not be overstated The group provides health
monitoring arrangements through s pariner Serco n particular, emplovment surveillance absence
nterventions and Ifesiyle services 4s part of our health protection and prevention programme  Fhe
company contnues to review the services provided to mahe improvements where requied not only 1o
ensure value for moneyv but aiso to provide the best experience for our employees

Employee engagement

Importance 1s placed on strengthening employees engagement measuring annually then acting to improve
how they feel about the company, understand s direction and are motivated to go beyond the tequirements
of the job The group s engagement score 1s §2 per cent which 1s tracking at LK high performance levels
of engagement More emplovees than ever before said they had scen action as a result of the feedback they
gave In the previous vear s survey, with 61 per cent recognising that improvements had been achieved a
score significantly above UK high performance norms

29




Lmited Utithiies PLC

ra ]

Directors’ report (continued)

Emplovees (continued)

Worhplace environment
There is a strong focus on talent and shills development Developing a flexible skilled and efficient
worhforce 15 crinical 1o the group s ability 1o deliver improved services to customers

Vore than 20 000 days of training were undertaken in the yvear and 300 employees wete supported thiough
further education Line managers have access to a number of accredited programmes through the Institute
of Leadership and Management, with 157 managers on a programme this vea

Apprenticeships and graduate recruitment are considered an essenual part of developing the group for the
future — there are currenily almost 100 apprentices, spread actoss the Noith West n a vaniety of roles with
a further 40 apprentices to be recruited each year for the next three years The group was recognised by the
National Apprenticeship Service for i1s commiunent and support to the tramning and skills of apprentices In
2010 the group took on seven engmeerng graduates and will be recruiting more graduates in 2011

Polictes on maternity, paternity, adoption, personal and special leave go beyend the requisite legal
obligations A large majorty of employees are members of the company pension schemes which includes
two defined benefit {closed to new members) and a defined contribution scheme

The group works with 1ts trade uniens undet an emplovee telattons frameworh Lo ensuic postive
relationships  The group 15 commutted 1o fulfiling ns obligations 1 accordance with the Disabihiy
Discrimination Act 1995 and best practice Fqual consideration s given to applicants with disabilities 1n
the employment critetia and the group will modify equipment and working practices wheiever s safe and
practical 1o do so

I he company s business punciples make cleat how 1t and all emplovees must sech o act with micgiay and
fanness and observe legal requuiements Anvone with sciious coneetns that the company may not be
adhering 1o these principles 15 cncouraged to speak up via theiwr line manager ot though a cenfidenual
iclephone hne

Essential contractual relationships

Certawn supplicts to the group contribute hey goods ot services the loss of which could cause disruption to
the group s services Howcever nonc are so vital that their loss would affect the viability of the group as a
whole nor 1s the business of the group overly dependent upon any one individual customer

Policy on pavment of creditors

Che group s policy 15 in hinc with the CBI Code of Prompt Pavment (copics are available from the CBI
Centre Point 103 “cw Oxford Sireet London, WCIA 1DL) Paymem terms are specific to the type of
conutact and the relevant commercial ariangements and arc agreed with suppheis in advance  he group
mahes every effort 1o comply with the payment terms as agreed with its suppliers subject to there being no
dispute with the mvoices received As at 31 March 2011 the average credit pertod taken for uade
purchases was 31 days for the group (2010 restaied 38 days) and 43 days (2010 17 days) for the company

Approach to technology development

The company s commutied to using innovative cost-cffective and practical solutions for providing high
quahty services [t recogmises the importance of ensuring that it focuses properly its investment m the
development of technotogy, that 11 has the nght skills to apply technology to achieve susiamable
compentive advantage and that 11 continues to be alert to emerging technological opporiunities
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Directors’ report (continued)

Financial instruments

‘L he rish management objectives and policies of the company 1n relation to the use of financial instruments
can be found in note 18 to the finanuial statements

Fived assets

The group holds significant land asseis, however the vast majority of these are water catchiment assets
which are an integral and essential part of the operation of the group s regulated business The nature of
thesc assets, which are primartly moorland areas and which could not be sold by the group, means that 1t 15
impractical to obtain meanmgful market values for the land Other land owned by the group the majority
of which rclates to operational sites docs not have a market vaiue matenaily different from historic cost

Events occurring after the reporting period
Details of events afier the reporting period are included in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements
on page 109

Cautionary statement

lhe Report and Financial Statements (the Report) contains certain forward-looking statements with 1espect
to the operations, performance and financial condition of both the UUG group and the group By their
nature, these statements involve uncertainty since future events and cucumstances can cause results and
developments 1o differ matetally from those anticipated The forward-looking statements reflect
knowledge and informauon available at the date of preparation of this Report and the company undertakes
no obligation 1o update these forward-looking statements Nothing in this Report should be constiued as a
profii forecast Certain regulatory performance data contamned 1n this Report 1s subject to regulatory audit

Information given to the auditor
Each of the persons who 15 a director at the date of approval of this 1eport cenfirms that

(1) so far as he 15 aware there 15 ne relevant audi information of which the company’s auditor 1s unaware,
and

(2) he has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himseif aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the company s auditor 1s aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be mterpteted, in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of
the Compantes Act 2006

Reappointment of auditor

During the year the UUG group audit commuttee took 1nto account the tenure of the ULG group s audsior
and considered whether there should be a tendet process for the 2011/12 audit It concluded that such a
process was appropriate, which was undertaken in the last quarier of the financial year Four firms were
nvited to tender FPotlowing a thorough process and tahing into account that Deloitte had been audiior to
the UGG group since 2002, the committee concluded that given the strategic refocus of the LUG group a
change 1n auditor was appropriate The audit commuttee therefore recommended to the board that KPMG
Audnt Ple be appotnted auditor to the LUG group and therefore to the group, following the conclusion of
Delote s audit of the 2011 financial statements The appropriate resolution to approve this will be put to
sharcholders at the forthcoming LUG group annual general meeting

Approved by the beard on 7 July 2011 and signed on 1ts behal{ by

s

Russ toulden
Direcior
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Repori and the financial statemenis i accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the ditectors to prepare financial statcmems for each financial vear Under that law
the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with Internationdl Fmancial
Reporting Standards (1'RSs) as adopted by the European Union  Lnder company law the directors must
not approve the financial staiements unless they are sausfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affaus of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period  In preparing these
financral statements International Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors

* pioperly select and apply accounting policies,

* present information including accounting policies, 1n a manner that provides relevant rehable,
compalable and understandable information,

e provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in 1FRSs are
msufficient o enable users to understand the unpact of paiucular transactions othet events and
condittons on the entity's financial position and financial performance and

* make an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concern

The directors are responsible for heeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explam the company s transaclions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tume the financial position
of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial stalements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They ate also tesponsible for safeguarding the asscts of the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and deiection of fraud and other 1rregularities

The directors are 1esponsible for the mamtenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information
mncluded on the company s websiie  Legislaiien m the Lnited Kingdom goverming the preparation and
dissemmination of financial statements may differ from legislation in othet jurisdictions

Directors’ responsibility statement

We confinm that to the best of our knowledge

s the financial statements, prepared m accordance with 1FRSs as adopted by the FLs, give a true and
fasr view of the asscts, habilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company and the
undertakings included 1n the consolidation tahen as a whole and

e the management report, which 1s incorporated mto the directors report includes a fair review of
the development and performance of the business and the position of the company and the
undertakings included 1n the consolidation taken as a whole together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertamniics that they face

Approved by the board on 7 July 2011 and signed on 11s behalf by

Aty

Russ Houlden
Direclor

(]
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Independent auditor’s report

to the members of Lmited Ltlittes PLLC

We have audited the financial statements of Linied Utiliies PLC for the year ended 31 Varch 2011 which
comprise the consolidated ncome statement, the consohdated statement of comprehensive income the
consohidated and company siatements of financial posiiion, the consolidated and company statements of
changes m cquity and the consolidaied and company statements of cash flows, the accounting policies and
the related notes 1 to 32 The financial reporting framework that has been applied i thew preparation 15
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union
and, as regards the paremt company financial statements as appiied 1n accordance with the provisions of
the Compames Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company s members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapier 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006 Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company s
members those matters we are 1equired to staic 1o them n an auditor’s report and f{or no other purpose To
the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As cexplained mote fully in the Duectors Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the
picparation of the financial statements and for being sausfied that they give a ttue and fair view  Our
tesponsibility 15 1o audit and cxpiess an opmion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Audning (LK and Ireland) Those siandards requne us to comply with
the Audiing Practices Board s Pthicdl Standatds for Auditors

Scope of the audut of the tinancial statements

An audit invelves obtaiming evidence about the amounis and disclosuies 1in the {inanual sidiements
sufficient to give 1easonable assutance that the financial statements are fice ftom matenial misstatement
whether caused by fraud o etror [his includes an assessment of  whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to ithe group s and the parent company s circumstances and have becn consistently apphied and
adequately disclosed the reasonableness of significant accounting estumates made by the directors and the
overall presentation of ihe financial statements  In addition we read alt the financial and non-financiat
information 1n the annual report to denufy matenial tnconsisiencics with the audied financial statements
If we bccome aware of any dapparent material misstalemenis or inconsistencies we consider the
imphicatiens for our report

Opiuon on finanaal statements

In our opimion

¢ the finanuial statements give a true and fair view of the siate of the gtoup s and of the parent
company s dffans as at 31 March 2011 and of the group s profit for the ycar then ended

e the group financial statements have been properiv prepared in aecordance with 1FRSs as adopted
by the European Lnion

»  the parent company financial staiements have been propetly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Lmon and as apphed m accordance with the provisions of the
Companics Act 2006 and

s the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

Opimien on other matter preseribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opimion the mformaton given 1 the Directors report for the financial year for which she financial
statcmentis are prepdred 1s consistent with the {inancial statements
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United Utilities PLC

Independent auditor’s report (continued)
to the members of United Utthties PLC

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006 requires us to
report to you 1f, 1n our opinion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

e the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
retumns, or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Douglas King (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
| Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
| Manchester

7 July 2011
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- |
Consolidated income statement
for the vear ended 31 Varch
Restated*
2011 2010
\ole £m £m
Contituing operafton
Revenue 12 15133 1,573 1
Emplovee benefits expense
excluding pension schemes cuttatlment gains arising on
amendment of pensien obligations and restructuring cosis 3 (142 8) (156 3)
pension schemes curtailment gains arising on amendment
of pension oblhigations 319 - 873
restructuring ¢osts 3 3D (25 8)
Total cmployee benefits expense 3 (1459) (%4 8)
Other reorganisation costs 2 (13 1) -
Other operating costs 4 (355 4) (321 8)
Other mcome 4 22 51
Depreciation and amottisation expense 4 {290 5) (280 1)
Infrastructure renewals expenditure {130 4) (137
I otal operating cxpenses (935 1) {8053
Operating protit 24 5802 767 8
Investment imcome 5 323 382
I tnance evpense 6 (2559 (365 4)
[nvestiment income and finance expense (223 6} (327 2)
Profit betore tavation 3566 440 6
Cunent tasation charge (433 (28 )
Deferred tavation charge (370) (422)
BDetetied tavation credit — change in taxation rate 990 -
[ aration 7 187 (70 6)
Profit after taxation from continuing operations 3753 3700
Dncontinned aperations
Profit dafter tavation from discontinued operdtions 8 1053 7 365
Profit after taxation 479 0 426 3

* The comparatives have been restated to reflect the tequirements of IFRS 5 Non-current Asscts Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations  and the adoption of IFRIC 18 lransfers of Assets ftom Customers
See note 32 and the accounting policies for details




Uniied Uuhitics PLLC

P )
Consolidated statement of comprchensive income
for the year ended 31 March
Resiated
2011 2010
Note £m £m
Profit after tavation 4790 426 3
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes 19 (44 7) (125 4)
Decferred taxaiion on actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes 20 116 35t
Revaluation of invesiments 13 11 34
Reclassification from other reserves arising on sale of financial
asset mnvestment 8 (66) (36 6)
Net fair value (losses)/gams on cash flow hedges (13e)} 09
Deferred taxation on net fair value losses/(gains) on cash flow hedges 20 01 {0 5)
Reclassification from other reserves arising on disposal of subsidianes 8 18 -
Reclassification fiom cumulative exchange reserve arising on disposal
of subsidiaries & (26 1) -
Foreign exchange adjustments 07 64
lotal comprehensive income 416 7 309 8

There 15 no taxation 1mpdct on the stems of other comprehensive mcome except where stated in the table

above
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Consolidated and company statements of finanecial position
at 31 March

Group Company
Restated
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note fm £m £m Im
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
Property plant and equipment 10 82749 81596 04 04
Goodwill 11 50 23 - -
Other mtangible assets 12 39 208 6 - -
[nvesiments 13 23 77 61765 61610
Trade and other receivables 15 - 56 5 - -
Deferred tax asset 20 - 295 99
Dertvative financial instruments 18 3633 3785 99 | 107 8
8,739 4 88134 63055 6,279 1
Current assets
[nventories 14 476 74 8 - -
[rade and other teceivables 15 1 798 7 1,970 7 1,682 6 i,6368
Cash and short-term deposits 16 2552 3015 2370 2393
Dervative financial instruments I8 20 i85 - -
210353 23633 19196 1876 1
Total assets 10,842 9 111787 82251 81532
LIABILITIES B
Non-current habilities
rade and other pavables 22 {249 8) (182 9) - -
Bonowings 17 (5203 6) (3307 9) (660 8) (686 6)
Retirement benefit obhigations 19 (195 0) (271 3) (52 1) (32 4)
Deferred tax hiabihties 20 (12931) (1353 4) - -
Provisions 21 (93) {8 3) - -
Derivative financial msttuments 18 (84 6) (102 3) (12 8) -
(7 035 4) (7228 1) {7257 (719 0)
Cutrent habihties - o
Irade and other pavables 22 (433 0) {396 3) (1 8000 (1 683 9)
Boriowings 17 (140 8) (229 3) (861 3) {898 3)
Current income tax hiabilities (87 3) (104 7) - -
Provisions 21 (14 5) (45 5) (22) (7 8)
Dervative financial instruments 18 (04) (25 8) 0 4) (0 2)
(676 0) (1,002 0) (2 663 9) (25390 2)
Total habihines 74 (8230 1) (3 389 6) (3309 2)
Total net assets 313153 29486 4 83553 4 846 0
EQUITY i - T
Capital and reseryves attributabie to equity holders of the company
Share capial 2324 8818 881 8 8818 8818
Share premium account 23 14300 14300 14300 14300
Revaluation reserve 23 158 8 158 8 - -
Cumulative exchange reserve 23 G 223 - -
Other reserves 23 - 38 - -
Retamned earnings 25 664 0 4519 2,5237 2,534 2
Shareholders” equity 313153 29486 4 8355 4 846 0

|

lhe consohdated comparatives for 31 March 2010 have been restaied to reflect the adoption of 1TRIC 18

Fransfers of Asscts from Customers  See note 32 and the accounting pohicies for details These financial
statements for the group and Lnited Lubities PLC (company number 2366616) were approved by the
board of directors on 7 July 2011 and signed on 1s behalf by

y

Russ Houlden
Director
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-
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the vear ended 31 Varch
Share Cumulaine
Shart  premuum Revaluztion  exchange Qther Retamed
captial account fsene resere rLSeres  eamings Tozal
£m £m im Em fm £m £m
Group
Al Apnl 2010 8818 L4300 158 8 223 38 1519 29486
Profit after laxauon - - - - - 4790 1790
Othor comprehensine income
Actuanial losses on defined benefit penston
schemes - - - - - (447 [CER)]
Defirred tananion on actearial Josses on
detined benc fit pension schumes - - - - - e 116
Revaluaton of myvestments - - - - il - 1t
Reclassificanion from other ruscrves ansing on
disposal of financial asset mvesiment - - - - (6 6) - (66)
Nel fair value losstson cash flow hedges - - - - (02) - {02}
Defirred tavation on net farr value losses on
cash {low hedges - - - - 01 - 01
Reclassification from other resenes ansing
on disposal of subsidianes - - - - 18 - 18
Reclassitication trom cumulative exchange
resenve arising on disposal of subsidiaries - - - (26 1) - - (26 1)
Forcign exchange adjustments - - - 07 - - 07
Total comprehensivg {evpense)income - - - (254) 6% 4439 He7
Transactions with owners
Dividonds - - - - - (233 &) {233 8)
At 31 ZMarch 20112 881 8 14300 1588 [RED] - 6610 313153
Share Cumuiatne
Share  premmnn Res duation owehange Othar Retamed
capital account raerve Tkt fLSLIVLS  LATRINGS Total
Em £m fm tm fm im Lm
Group
ALT April 2009 8818 1 1300 158 § 159 366 M9 28700
Profit abter taxation - - - - - 4265 426 3
Other comprehonwy Cinconty
Actuanal losses ondefined bencfit pnston
sohemes - - - - - (1239} (125 4)
Deterred tanation on actuanal 10sses on
dufined bent fit pension schunes - - - - - 351 351
Revaluaton of investinents - - - - 31 - 34
Reclassification from other resenves ansing on
disposal of financial asser invesiment - - - - (36 6} - (36 6)
Nt for value gams on cash flow hedges - - - - 09 - 09
Deferred tanaaen on net tair value gams on
cash flow hedges - - - - {03 - (03
Foreign exchange adjustments - - - 644 - - G4
lotal camprehensis ¢ income/ {expensy) - - - 64 {32 8) 3362 309 8
Iransactions with owners
Dvadends - - - - - (231 2) (231 2)
At 31 March 2010 8818 14300 158 8 223 38 509 29186
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- |
Company statement of changes in equity
for the vear ended 31 March
Share
Sharc premium Retamed
capital account edinings l otal
£m £m f£m fm
Company
At 1 Aprii 2010 8818 14300 25342 48460
Profit after tanation - - 2474 247 4
Other comprehensive income
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes - - (326)  (326)
Deferred tasation on aciuarial losses on defined
benefit pension schemes - - 85 85
Total comprehensive ncome - - 2233 2233
Transactions with owners
Dividends - - (2338 (233 8)
At 31 Viarch 2011 8818 1,4300 25237 48355
Share
Share pramium  Retained
capital account carnings lotal
£m £m £m fm
Company
ALl April 2009 8818 14300 32386 35,5704
L.oss afier tavation - - (4798) (479 8)
Other comprehensne {(expense)income
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes - - (186)  (i80)
Dcferred taxation on actuarial losses on defined )
benefit pension schemes - - 52 52
1 otal comprehensiy e expense - - 4932y (#4933 2)
l ransactions with owners
Dividends - - 2312y (2312
At 31 Mareh 2010 8818 14300 25342 48460




Lnued Uulitics PLC

i
Consolidated and company statements of cash flows
for the vear ended 31 Mardch
Group Company
Restated
2011 2010 2011 2010
Note im £m im £m
Operating activities
Cash gencrated from continuing operations 28 780 6 934 6 3230 4550
Intcrest pawd (165 8) (200 5) (24 8) (339
[nterest received and snmilar income 40 2 292 15 40
Tax paid (46 5) (312) (54 3) (512)
I'ax received - 505 - 506
et cash generated from operating activities
(continuwing operations) 608 5 762 6 2454 424 5
Net cash generated from operating activities
(dhiscontinued operations) 137 317 - -
[evesting activitics
Proceeds from disposal of discontinued operations 268 4 - - -
I ransaction costs deferied consideration and cash
disposed 979 - - -
Proceeds from disposal of discontinued
opcrations net of transaction costs, defeired
consideration and cash disposed 170 3 - - -
Investment in subsidiarics - - - (o)
Puichase of property plant and equipment (475 4) (500 4) - -
Purchase of mcicased sharcholding in jomnt
ventute (30) - - -
Puichase of other intangible asseis (20 2) (339 - -
Proceeds from sale of propetty plant and
cquipment 98 39 - -
Purchase of investments 13 - o8 - T
Net cash used in v esting activities {(eontnuing
operations) (3203) (331 2) - (10
et cash (used tn)/generated by inyvesting
activities {(discontinued operations) (527) 7853 - -
Finaneing activities
Pracceds from botrowings 94 1 2650 309 427
Repdyment of borrowings (1126) (362 1) (252 (1zmn
Dividends paid 1o cquity holders of the
compdany 9 (233 8) (2312) (233 8) (2312)
Net cash used in financing activities
{continuing operationsy (232 3) (328 3) (228 1) (301 2)
Net cash used in finanding activities
(discontinucd opcerations) (4 8) (2 6) - .
Effects of exchange rate changes
(continuing cperations) - - (19 -
Fffects of exchange rdte changes
{discontinued operations) (13) 153 - -
Net inerease/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents (continuing operations) 359 (909 154 1223
et (decrease)increase i cash and cash
equivalents (discontinued operations) “@5 1D 14} 1 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 16 2560 2118 2215 99 2
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
year 16 246 8 2560 2369 2215
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Accounting policics

The principal accounting policies adopicd in the preparation of these financial statements are set out befow

a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International inancial Reporting
Standards (IT'RSs) as adopted by the European Union (EL) including International Accounting Standards
(IAS) and Interpretations 1ssued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(IFRIC)

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basts, except for the revaluation of
financial mstruments

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepled accounting principles
(GAAP) under ITRS requires management to mahe estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of
assets and liabiliies at the date of the financial statcments and the amounts of revenues and eapenses
during the reporting periods presented Although these cstimates are based upon management s best
knowledge of the amount, event or actions actual results ultumately may differ from these estimates

The compaiatives for the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
veat ended 31 March 2010 have been restated 1o reflect the disclosure of the results of the non-regulated
busincsses disposed of during the vear as discontinued opetations (sec note 8)

Ihe adopuon of the following standards and interpretations at t Apuil 2010, has had no material impact on
the group s financial statements

IFRIC 18 lransfers of Assets from Customers

Lhe interpretation applies to all agreemenis in which an entity receives fiom a customer an item of
ptoperty plant and cquipment (PPE) (or cash 1o constiuct ot aequite an em of PPLE) that the cnuity must
then wse enther 1o connect the customet to a network o1 to provide the customer with ongoing aceess 1o a
supply of goods ot seivices or 1o do both Its applicauion 1s retrospective and has been applied to transfers
of assets from customets 1ccerved on ot afier 1 Tuly 2009 Hence 1estatement of the miotmation presented
for the vear ended 31 March 2010 35 requueed

The mmpact 1o the vear ended 31 March 2011 in respect of transfts of assets fiom customets which were
not previously accounted for is to record PPE of £39 8 milhion {2010 £36 & million) with a credit of the
same amount o defened revenue within curtent and non-current trade and other pas ables combmed The
assets will be demreciated over then useful life and the defcired revenue released over the same peitod

Cuntain wransfers of assets fiom customers were previously tecognised nnmediately within 1cvenue and
operating espenses and have therefore been reclassified to deferred 1evenue and PPE thereby reducing both
revenue and operating expenses, as thev would otherwise have been reported by £3 6 million 1 the year
ended March 2011 (2010 £2 5 nullion)

As a result of the adoption of this intarpretation the group has presented a restated consohdated meome
statementi and consolidated statement of financial position for the year ended 31 March 2010

IFRS 3 Bustness Combinations

'his revised siandard issued i January 2008 1s effecuve for periods commencing on or after t July 2009
and was cndorsed by the EU on 12 June 2009 Tt will have a matenal impact on the group s financiat
staternents only 1f it enters into any relevant iransactions in the future

Improvements to I'RSs (2009)

'his 15 a collection of amendments 1o 12 standards as part of the Iniernational Accounting Standards Board
{lASB) programme of anaual improvements with no maierial impact on the group’s financial statcments
The improvements were 1ssued in April 2009 are effective for periods commencing on or after | January
2010 and were endorsed by the EU on 23 March 2010




Lmited Utthities PLLC

Accounting policies (continucd)

a) Basis of preparation (continued)

Going coneern

The direciors have a rcasonable expectauon that the company has adequate resources available to 1t to
contmte in opetauonal existence for the foreseeable futuic and have therefore continued to adopt the going
concern basis i preparing the financial siatements This approach taking into account the relatively siable
and regulated nature of the business, 1s based amongst other matters, upon a review of the company s
budget for 20i1/12 the company s five-year business plan and investment programme, iogether with a
review of the cash and commiued borrowing facilities avarlable 1o the company (discussed n further detail
in the hiquidity section on page 13 and the debt financing and interesi 1ale management section on pages 12
and 13} That review gives details of the company’s headroom as at 31 March 2011

'he board also took into account potential contingent habilities and other rish factors as interpreted by the
swdance given in Going Concern and Liquidity Risk Guidance for Directors of LK Companies 2009
published by the F'inancial Reporiing Council m Qctober 2009

Operating profit
Operatung profit 1s stated after charging operating expenses but before investiment mcome and finance
expense

b) Basis of consolidation

The group financal statements censolidate the financial statements of the company and entities controlled
by the company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 March cach year and incorporate the resulis of s shate
of jomntly controlled entities using proportionate consolidation

I'he 1esults of subsidiartes and jomt ventures acquired o1 disposed of during the vear are included in the
consohdated income statement fiom the date contiol 15 obtamed or unul the date that control ceases as
appropridlc

Where necessary adjustments are made to the {inancial statements of subsidiatics to biing the accounting
policies used under the televant Jocal GAAP into bine with thosc used by the gioup

Subsidiaries

Conttol 18 achieved where the company has the power 1o govern the financial and opeating policies
geacially accompanted by a sharcholding of more than one-half of the voting 11ghts of an investee entiy so
as to obtan benefits from 1ts acuviuies In the parent company accounts mvesunents atc held at cost less
provision for impdirment

On acquisition the assets and habiliies and conungent habihiies of a subsidiary ate measured at their {fan
values at the daie of acquisiion Any excess of the cost of acquisiion over the fair values of the
idenuifiable net assets acguired 1s recognised as goodwill Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below
the fair values of the identiftable net assets acquired 15 ciedited to the income siatement in the period of
acquisiion All imra-group ransactions balances income and expenses are chminated on consolidation

Jownt ventures

Jomt ventures are entities in which the group holds an mterest on a long-term basis and which are jomily
controlled with one or more parties under 2 contractual arrangement The gioup’s share of joint venure
income, expenses assets liabiliies and cash flows are included n the consohdated financial statements on
4 proportionate consohidation basis using the same accounting methods as adopted for subsidiarics




United Lulines PLLC

Accounting policics (continucd)

¢) Non-current assets held for sale
Non-cunent asseis (and disposal groups compuising assets held for sale and the associated Labihities)
ciassified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrving ammeunt and fair value tess costs to selt

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrymg amoun: will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather than thiough continuing use This condition 1s regarded as met
only when the sale 1s highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) 1s available for immediate sale i its
present condition Management must be committed to the sale which should be expected o qualify for
recogniion as a completed sale within one vear from ihe date of classification

d) Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation 1s recogmised as an asset Following niuial recognition, goodwill 13
subject 1o impairment reviews, at least annually, and measured at mitial value less accumulated impairment
losses Any impamrment 1s recognised 1mmediatelv 1 the income statement and s not subsequently
reversed

On disposal of a subsidiarv, or Jointly controlled entity the atributable amount of goodwill 1s mcluded in
the determination of the gaw or loss on disposal

Goodwill wiitten oif o 1eserves under LK GAAP prio: to 1998 has not been reinstated and 1s not mncluded
1 determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets aic measured imtially at cost and are amottised on a straight-line basis over then
estimated useful ives  The carrying amount 1s reduced by any provision for impairment where necessdry

On a business combination as well as recording separable mtangible asscs already recognised mn the
datement of financial posttion of the acquied entity at their fan value :dentiflable intangible asseis that
duse fiom contractual o other legal nghts aie alse mduded o the acquisition statement of financial
posiuon at fan value

Internal expenditwe 1s capitahised as nternally gencraied intangibles only 1f it meets the criteria of 1AS 38
Intangible Asscis

Amotusation pertods for caicgories of intangible assets arc

e Compulet sofiware 3 to 10 vears
e Other intangible asseis 2 1o 20 years, and
® Scivice concesstons 20 to 30 vedrs

¢) Property, plant and equipment
Property plant and equipment comprises watet and wastewater mnfrasitucture asscts and other assets
(including properties and overground plani and equipment)

I'he useful hves of these assets are as follows

® Water and wastewater ifrastructure assets
— Impounding reservoirs 200 vears
— Mains and raw water aqueducts 30 to 290 vears
— Sewers 60 to 283 years
— Sca outfalls 77 vears
# Buildings 10 to 60 vears,
¢ Operational assets 3 to 80 vears and
e Fintures, fittings tools and equipment 3 to 40 vears
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Accounting policies (continued)

¢) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Water and wastewater infrastructure assets

[nfrasiructure assets compnise a ncitwork of water and wastewater systems  Lipenditure on the
Infrastructure assets includmg borrowing costs where applicable relauing to nercases in capaciy or
enhancements of the network 1s treated as addinons Amounts incurred 1in maintaming the operating
capability of the network 1n accordance with defined standards of service are expensed 1n the year in which
the expendiure 15 mcurted Infrastructure assets are depreciated by wiiting off their deemed cost less the
cstimadted residual value evenly over thewr useful lives

Employee cosis mcurred i implementing the capual schemes of the group are capniabised within
mftastructure assets

Other assets
All other property, plant and equipment s stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation

Historical cost includes expendiiure that 1s directly attributable to the acquisition of the items, including
relevant borrowing costs where applicable for qualifving assets Subsequent costs are included in the
assel s carrying amount or recognised as a scparale assei, as appropriate, only when 11 15 probable that
future economic benefits associated with the 1tem will flow to the group and the cost of the nem can be
measured rehably All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the
financial pertod n which they are mcuncd

Frechold land and assets in the course of consttuction are not deprecidated Other assels are demeciated by
writing off then cost less thewr estunated residual value evenly over therr estumated usciul hves, based
upon management s pudgement and experience

Depteciatuon methods tesidual values and useful hives are reassessed annually and 1f neeessary changes
arc accounted for prospectively The gain or loss anising on the disposal or retnemient of an asscl s
detetmined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset and 15
recognised i ethet income

N Impairment of tangible and mtangible assets excludig goodwill

Intangibie assets with definite useful lives and ptoperty piant and cquipment ate reviewed for impaiment
ai cach reporting date 10 determmine whether there 1s any indication that those assets may have suffered an
mpawrment loss If anv such indtcdation exists the tecoverable amount of the assct 1s estimated 1n order to
determune the extent of the impairment loss 1f anv Where the assct does not gencraie cash flows that aie
mdependent from other assets the group cstimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit 1o
which the assct belongs

[he recoverable amount 1s the higher of fan value less costs to sell and value in use Value in use
tepresents the net present value of expected {uture cash flows discounted on a pre-tavation basis using a
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the rishs speeific 1o the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash gencrating umit) 15 estimated to be less than its carrving
amount the carrying amount of the assei (or cash generating unn) 1s reduced to 115 recoverable amount
Impamment losses i respect of non-current assets are recognised 1n the thcome statement within operating
costs

Where an impairment loss subsequentiy tevetses the reversal 1s recognised in the income statement and
the carrying amcunt of the asset 15 increased io the revised estimate of us recoverable amount, but not so as
to exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recogmised 1in
priar vears
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Accounting policies (continued)

g) Financial mstruments

Financial assets and financial liabiliies are recogmised and derccognised on the group s statement of
financial posiion on the trade date when the group becomes z party to the contractual provisions of the
Instrument

Cash and short-term deposits

Cash and short-term deposits include cash at bank and i hand deposits and other shott-tetm highly liquid
nvestments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, have a matunity of three months or
less from the date of acquisition and which are subject to an insigmificant rish of change in vaiue in the
consolidaied statement of cash flows and related notes, cash and cash equivalents clude cash and short-
tenin deposits, net of bank overdrafis

Financial investments

Investments (other than interests 1n associates subsidiaries, joimnt ventures and fised deposits) are imnally
measuted at fair value, ncluding transaction costs  Investments classified as avaiable for sele in
accordance with 1AS 39 Twinancial Instruments Recogmition and Measurement are measured at
subsequent teporting dates at fair value Gains and losses anising from changes in fan value are recognised
duectly n equity, until the sccurity is disposed of o1 15 determimned to be imparred, at which tume the
cuntulative gain or loss previously recognised 1 equuity 18 inctuded m the net profit or loss for the period
[nvestments classified as loans and receivables in aecordance wih 1AS 39 Financial Instruments
Recogniion and Medasurement are measuted at amortised cost

Service concession finanaial assers
Sec note r

I rade receivables

[Made 1ccevables are imtially measured at fair value and are subscquently measured at amortised cost, less
any impaitment for nrccoverable amounts Esumated irrccoverable amounts are based upon hisiorical
experience of the receivables balance

I rade payables
Itade payables are miually measured at fan value and ate subscquently measured at amorused cost

Financial habilities and equity

Pinancial habihities and equity insttuments arc classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangoments entered e An equily mstrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the group after deducting all of 1is habilines

Fquity instruments
Fquiy instrumenis 1ssued by the group are recorded at the proceeds teccived net of direct 1ssuc costs

Borrowings

The group s default treatment 15 that bonds loans and overdrafis are 1miually measured at fair value being
the cash procceds received, net of any direct 1ssuc costs They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
applving the effective interest method cexcept where they are designated within a fair value hedge
relationship o1 as fau value through profit or loss [he difference between the net cash proceeds 1cceived at
inception and the principat cash flows due at matunity 1§ accrued over the term of the borrowing

Borrowings designated within a fair value hedge relationship

Where designaied bonds and loans are iminatly measured at fair value being the cash procceds received,
net of any direct tssuc costs |hey are subsequently adjusted for any change i fau value atiributable to the
rish being hedged at cach reporting date with the change being charged or credited to finance expense 1n
the income siatement Designation 1s made where 1t can be demonstrated from inception that a highly
effective fair value hedge evists

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued prospecuively when the hedging nstrument s sold, terminated or
excrcised, or where the hedge relationship no longer qualifies for hedge accounting
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Fal i 3

Accounting policies (continued)

g) Financial instruments (continued)

Borrowings designated at fair value through profit or loss

Where designated bonds and foans are ininally measuted at fan value being the cash proceeds recerved
net of any direct 15sue costs and are subsequemily measured at faw value at cach reporting date with
changes in fair value being charged or credited to finance expense in the income statement Designation 1s
made where the requirements to designate withm a fair value hedge cannot be met at inception despiie
there bemng sigmificant fair value offset between the borrowing and the hedging derivative

Denvative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fan value at each reporting date with changes in fan value
being charged or credited to finance expense 1n the income stalement The group enters nto financial
dertvatives contracts to manage its financial exposure to changes w market rates (see note 18)

h) Foreign currency translation

Transactions and balances

Transactions 1 foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates applicable on the dates of the
transactions At each reporting daie, monetary assets and habilities denominated n foreign cunencies are
translated tnto sterling at the relevant tates of exchange applicable on that date Gams and losses ansing on
retranslation are included in net profit or loss for the period Exchange differences arising on investments
i equity msttuments classified as available for sale are included in the gamns ot losses ansing from changes
in faur value which are tecogmised directly n equaty

In order to hedge its eaposwie to certam foreign exchange nishs, the gioup enters wto denvative
insttuments (see note 18)

Group companies

On consohdation the staicments of financial position of overseas subsidiaries and jomi ventures (none of
which has the cuntency of a hyperninflauonary economy) are tianslated into sterhing at exchange 1ates
applicable at each teporting date I he income statements are translated mto stething using the average rate
unless exchange rates flucluate signmificantly in which case the exchange rate at the date the transaction
occuired 1y used Eschange differences resulting fiom the translation of such statements of financial
position dal rates ruling ai the begmning and end of the penied together with the differences buiween
meome stalements uanshated at average 1dies and tates 1uhing at the period end are dualt with as
movements on the group s cumulative cxchange tesetve a separate component of equity  Such trenslation
diiferences are 1ecognised as income or capense in the period i which the operation 1s disposed of

Goodwill and fan valuc adjustments arising on the acquisiion of a foreign enuty arc treated as assets and
llabitities of the forcign entity and tanslated at the clesing tate The group has elecied to tieat goodwill and
fau value adjustments ansing on acquisiions before the date of mmplementation of IFRS 3 Business
Combmauons (1 April 1999) as sterling denomtnated asscis and habilities

1) Borrowing costs and finance income
Fxcept as noted below all borrowing costs and finance income are recogiiised 1 the income siaiement n
the period 1in which they are accrued

ransdction costs that are directly attiibutable to the acquisition or 1ssue of a financial asset o1 financial
habilitv are included in the initial fair value of that instrument

Where boriowing costs are attnibutable to the acquisttion construction or produciton of a qualifying asset
such costs are capitabised as part of the specific asset

1) Long-term contract accounting

Where the outcome of a long-term contract can be esiimated rehiably, revenue and costs are recognised by
reference to the stage of compleuon of the contract activily at each reporting date as measured by the
proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs
Variations i contract work, claims and incentive payments are inctuded to the cxtent that they have been
agreed with the cusiomer
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Accounting policies (continued)

1) Long-term contract accounting (continued})

Where the outcome of a long-term contract cannot be estimated tehably contiact revenue 15 iecognised to
the exteni of contract costs incurred that 1t 1s probable wall be recoverable Coniract costs are recognised as
expenses 1n the period in which they are mcurred When 1t 1s probable that 1oial contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue the expected loss 1s recognised as an ¢xpense immediately

k) Taxation
Fhe tavation expense represents the sum of current tasation and deferred tavation

Current taxation

Current 1axauion, mecluding UK corporanton tasation and foreign taxation 15 based upon the taxable profit
for the petiod and is previded at amounts expected to be paid or recovered using the taxation rates and faws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at cach reporting date

laxable profit differs from the net profit as reported m the income statement because u excludes iwems of
income or expense that are tasable or deductible m other vears and 1t further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible

Deferred taxation

Deferted taxation 1s the taxation expected to be payable or 1ccoverable on differences between the cairying
amounts of assets and habilities in the financial statements and the contesponding taxation bases used mn the
computation of taxable profit Deferred tavauon habihitics are provided using the Labihty method on gll
1arable temporary differences at each reporting date Such assets and habelities are not 1ecognsed if the
tempotaty difference atises fiom goodwill o fiom the immal tecogmuon (othet than in a business
combination) of other asscts and habiiitics 1n a transaction that affects nesthar the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit

Deferred tanation habihitics are recognised for tandble temporary differences arsmg on mvesuments in
subsidiaries and nterests i jomni veniures except where the group 1s able to control the reversal of the
emporaty difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporaty dilference will not everse m the foreseeable
future

Deferred taxation 1s measured at the average tasation rates that are expected 1o apply in the periods in
which the temporary uming differences are expected 10 1everse based upon taxdtion rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at each reporting date

The cattying amount of deleired tazaiion assets 13 reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the
extent that 11 1s no longer probable that suificicnt tavable profits will be available 1o allow all o1 part of the
assel to be recovered

Deferred taxation 1s charged o credited m the mcome statement except when 1t relates to items chatged or
crediied 1o equity 1n which case the deferred 1avation s also deali wath in equity

1) Emplovee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

The group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes which are independent of the group s
finances for the majonty of its cmployees Actuarial valuanions of ithe schemes are carried oui as
determined by the pension scheme trusices using the projected unit credit meihod at intervals of not more
than three years the rates of contribution payable and the pension cost being determined on the advice of
the actuaries, having regard 1o the 1esults of these valuations in any intervening vears, the actuaries review
the continuing appropriateness of the contribution rates
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Accounting policies (continued)

1) Emplovee bencfits {(continued)

Retirement benefit obhpations (continued)

Defined benefit assets are measured at far value while habihues are measured at present value The
difference between the two amounts 1s recognised as a surplus or obligation 1n the statement of financial
position

The cost of providing penston benefits to employees relating to the current year s service 1s included within
the mcome statement within emplovee costs 1he difference between the expected return on scheme assets
and interest on scheme habilities 15 included within the mmcome statement within investment income or
finance expense

Al actuarial gains and lesses, excluding curtailment gans and losses, aie recognised outside the income
statement sn retained carnings and presented n the statement of comprehensive income

In addiion, the group also operates defined contribution pension schemes Payments are charged as
employee costs as they fall due The group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been pard

Share-based compensation arrangements

The gioup opelaics equity-seitled share-based compensation plans In accordance with the transittonal
piovisions [FRS 2 Shaic-based Pavimenis has been applied to all gramts of equity mstruments afier 7
Noveinber 2002 that were unvested as of 1 April 2004

The group issues equitv-scitled shate-based pavments to certamn employees  Equity-setiled share-based
pavments are measured at fan value at the daw of grant 1he fan value determuned at the grant date 1s
cvpensed on a sttaighi-lme basis over the vesting petiod based upon esumates of the number of options
that arc cxpected to vest "au valuc 1s based upon both sunulation and binomial modcls according to the
televant medsutes of performanee m accordance with the advice of an expert The group has the option o
sciile some of these equiy-settled sharc-based paviments on a net basis in cash

At cach 1eporting date the group revises 1ts estimate of the numbur of options that are expecied to become
exerusable with the impact of any revision bemg recogmised m the income statement and a cortesponding
adjustment to equily over the 1emaiming vesting period The proceeds received net of any ducctly
attribuiable nansaction costs are credited to share capual (nominal value) and share premium when the
options are exercised

m) Provisions

Provisions are tecogmsed when the group has 4 prosent legal or constiuctive obligation as a tesult of past
cvents, 1 1s probable that an outflow of 1esources will be 1equired to settle the obligation and the amount
can be reliably csumated Expendiure that relates 1o an existing condition causcd by past operations that
does not contnbute to curens or future carnings 1s expensed Liabifities for environmental temediation and
decommissioning ¢osts arc recogmsed and capitahsed 1 accordance with IAS 37 Provisions Conlingent
Liabilites and Conungent Asseis as appropnaie when there s a legal or construcuve obligation
environmental assessments indicaic that clean-up 1s probable and the associated cosis can be rehably
estimated

n) Revenue recogmition

Revenue represents the fair vatue of the income recervable i the ordinary course of business for goods and
services provided Where relevant this icludes an estmate of the sales value of units supplied o0
customers between the daic of the last meter reading and the period end exclusive of value added iax and
foreign sales 1ax

The group recognises revenue generally at the tme of dehvery and when collection of the resulting
receivable 1s reasonably assured Should the group consider that the eriteria for revenue recognition are not
met for a wransaction revenue recogmion would be delayed unul such ume as the transaction becomes
futly earned or collectability 1s 1casonably assured Payments received i advance of revenue recogmition
are recorded as deferred income
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Accounting policies (continued)

o) Grants and contributions

Grants and coniributions receivable i respect of property, plant and equipment are treated as deferned
mcome which 1s credited to the tmcome statement over the estimated useful economic hves of the related
assets

p) Leases

Leases are classificd according to the substance of the transaction A lease that transfers substantially all
the rishs and rewards of ownership to the lessee 1s classified as a finance lease All other leases are
classified as operating leases

Opcerating leases
Operating lease 1entals are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease

q) Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost less any provision necessary 1o recognise damage and obsolescence Finished
goods and goods for resale are stated at the lower of cost (comprising where applicable direet matenals
direct labour costs and appropriate oveiheads mecurred 1in bringing them to their present location and
condition} and net realisable value

Properties held for tesale are mcluded at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost meludes the cost
of acquiting ¢nd devcloping the sutes inciudimg botrowing costs where applicable

Nt realisable value represents the estumated selling price less all estumated costs of compleiion and costs
to be incurred in marketing selling and distribution

r) Service concessions

[ERIC 12 Service Concesston Atlangoments  addicsses accounting by privaie sector operaiors involved 1n
the prowvision of public sector infrastiuctre assets and services Relevant asscts withm its scope aic
classified as financial assets (where the operator has an unconditional night 1o recerve 4 specified amount of
cash ot other finaneial asset over the hife of the anangement) or intangible assets (where the operator s
fuiure cash flows are not specified) or a combination of both (where the opetator s return 1s provided
partially by a financial asset and partially by an intangible asset)

The group bore demand t1sk on revenues anising from its service concession arrangements in Scotdand and
Bulgaria In accordance with IFRIC 12 the telated asscts were theretore classified as intangibie assets (see
note 12) The service concession attangements i Austiabia had ¢ miy of revenue sticams some were fined
while othets varied depending upon demand levels Lhe 1clated assets were therefore classified as financial
asset loan receivables or mtangible assets as appropridie (see notes 13 and 12)

s} Critical accounting judgements and hev sources of estimation uncertamsy

In the process of applving us accounting poheics the group 15 required to mahke certain estimates
Judgemenis and assumpuens that 1t believes are reasonable based upon the information available These
estimaics and assumptions affect the amounts of assets and habtliies at the date of the financial statements
and the amounts of revenues and expenses 1ccognised during the 1eporting periods presented

On an ongoing basis the group evaluates s esuimates wsing historical cyperience consultaiton with
experts and other methods consideted reasonable in the particular circumstances  Actual 1esults may differ
signtficanily from the estunates the ctfect of which 1s recogmised 1 the period i which the facts that give
rise to the revision become hnown

[he following paragraphs deiail the estimates and judgements ihe group believes to have the most
significant :impact en the annual results under 1IFRS
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Accounting policies (continucd)

s) Critical acconunting judgements and hev sources of estumation uncertainty {(continued)

Carrying value of proper iy, plant and equipment

l'he estimaied useful economic lives of property plant and equipment (PPL) are based upon management s
Judgement and expetience When management 1dentifies that actual useful hves differ materially from the
estmates used to calculate depreciation that charge 1s adjusted prospectively Due to the sigmificance of
PPE mvestment to the group, vanations between actual and estimated useful lives could impact operating
results both positively and negatively, although historically few changes to estimated useful lives have
been required

The group 1s required to evaluate the carrying values of PPE for impaiment whenever circumstances
mdicate tn management’s judgement, that the carrying value of such assets may not be recoverable An
impairment review requires management to mahe subjective judgements concerning the cash flows, growth
tates and discount rates of the cash genetating units under review

Revenue recognition

The group recognises revenue generally at the time of dchvery and when collection of the resulting
recetvable 1s reasonably assured When the gioup constders that the eritenia for revenue recogniion are not
met for a transaction revenue recognition 1s dedayved unnl such nme as the transaction becomes fully
cained or collectability 1s teasonably assured Pavments 1eceived in advance of revenue recognition are
recorded as deferred mcome

Lated Ludities Water PLC 1aises bills in accordance with s entitlement 1o recerve 1evenue in line with the
himuts established by the pertodic regulatory price 1evicw processes | or water and wastewater cuslomers
with water metets, the recervable billed 1s dependent upon the volume supplied including the sales value of
an estimate of the units supplied between the date of the last meter reading and the bilhing date Meters are
read on a cvelical basts and the group 1ecognises revenue for unbilled amiounts bascd upon estundied usage
fiom the last bilhing thiough 1o cach 1eporting date  The csumated usage 15 bascd upon historical dala
Judgement and assumpuons  acual 1esubis could differ from these estimates  which would 1esuli n
operating 1evenues beng adjusied m the period that the tevision 1o the estimates 15 detammed o
customers who do not have a meter the reecivabie billed 1s dependent upon the rateable value of the
propcity as assessed by an mdependeni rating oificer

For the group s other businesses revenue 1s recogmised in hine with acuivity and petformance normally
using amounts spectficd i conttaciual obligations and when recoverabitity 15 reasonably assured
In general
e  variable revenues for example revenues dependent upon customer volumes m ihe penod  dre
recognised only when thosce vatiable activities ate petformed
s performance incentives are recognised in revenue only to the exteni that it 1s probable that the
telated economic benefits will flow to the group and
s revenue nvoteed or received i advance of petformance is 1ecogmsed as deferted mcome When
performance oceurs the deferred income 1s released and reported as revenue

A breahdown of revenues by segment s contamed 1n note 2 1o the financial staicments

Provision for doubtful receivables

At cach reporting date the company and each of 1ts subsidiaries cvaluate the recoverabiiny of trade
receivables and record provisions for doubtful receivables based upon espertence These provisions arc
based upon amongst other things customer category and consideration of actual collection history [he
aciual level of receivables collccted may differ from the esumated levels of recovery which could impact
operating results positively or negatively
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Accounting policies (continued)

) Critical accounting judgements and hev sources of estimation uncertamty {(continued)

Accountuing for provisions and contingencies

The group is subject to a number of claims mcidental 1o the normal conduct of 1ts busmess, relating o and
ncluding commercial contractual and employment maiters which are handled and defended mn the
ordmary course of business [he group routinely assesses the likehhood of any adverse judgements o
outcomes to these matters as well as ranges of probable and reasonably estimated losses

Reasonable estimates mvolve judgements made by management after considering information including
noufications, setilements, estimates performed by independent parties and legal counsel, avaiable facts
identification of other potentially 1esponsible partics and their ability to contribute, and prior experience A
provision 1s recogmsed when 1t 15 probable that an obligation ewists for which a reliable estimate can be
made afier careful analysis of the individual matter The required provision may change in the futwe dueto
new developments and as additional information becomes available Matters that either aic possible
obhgations or do not meet the recogniiion critena for a provision are disclosed as contingent habithties in
note 29 unless the possibility of nansferring economic benefits 1s remote

Retirement benefits
T'he group operates a number of defined benefit schemes two of which have a defined contribution section
which are independent of the eroup s finances Aciuarial valuauons of the schemes are carried out as
determined by the ttustees at inteivals of not mote than thiee vears The pension cost under IAS 19
Emplovee Benefits s assessed in accoidance with the advice of a firm of aciuanes based upon the latest
dctuanial valuation and assumptions determined by the actuary  The assumptions ate based upon
informaton supphed 1o the actuary by the company supplemented by discussions between the actuary and
management |he assumptions arc disciosed m note 19 Piofit before tanation and net assets are affected by
the actuanial assumpuions used [hese assumiptions include mvestment retuins on the schemes  assels,
discount ratcs pav growth and increases to pensions 1n payviment and defetred pensions and may diffet from
actual results due to changing markct and cconomic condittons and longet ot shotter lives of particpants

Dernatnes and borrowings — hedging

The group s default eatment 15 that borrowings are carried at amottised cost whilst associated hedging
derivatives are recognised at fair value lhis accounung measurcment mismatch has the potential io
ntroduce considerable volatlity to both the ncome statement and the statement of financal position

lheiefore whae feasible the group tahes advantage of the provisions under [AS 39 [maneial
Instruments Recogniiton and Measurement to fair value its borrowing mstruments 1o teducc this volaulny
and better represent the cconomic hedges that ewist between the group s borrowmgs and associated
derivalive contracts

Where feasible the group designates 1ts fingnaal instruments within fair value hedge telationships In
order to apply far value hedge accounimg 1t must be demonstrated that the hedging denivative has been
and will continue 1o bu a highly cifccitve hedge of the nisk being hedged within the applicable borrowing
mstrument

Borrowings are designated at fair valuc through profit or loss wheie the designatton of such borrowimngs
within a fair value hedge telationship 1s not feasible despite there bemg a sigmificant faer value offset
between the hedged tem and the denvaitve and where otherwise the inconsisient accounting treatment
would result 1 a significant accounting measurement misinatch
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Accounting policies (continued)

s) Critical accounting judgements and hey sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Derivatives and borrowings —yvaluation

Designated borrowings and denivatives recorded at fair value are valued using a net present value valuation
model The model uses applicable mterest rate curve data al each reporting date to determine any floaiing
cash flows Projected future cash flows associated with cach financial mstrument are discounted to the
reporting daie using discount factors detived from the applicable interest curves adjusted for counterparty
credit nish where appropriate Discounted forewgn currency cash flows are converted mto sterling at the spot
exchange rate at each reporung date

The valuation of debt designated m a fair value hedge relationship 1s calculated based upon the risk beng
hedged as prescribed by IAS 39 Fmancial instruments Recognition and Measurement  The group s
policy 15 to hedge 1ts exposure to changes i the apphcable underlying interest rate and it 1s this portion of
the cash flows that 1s included m the valuation model (cxcluding any applicable company credit rish
spread)

The valuation of debt designated at fair value through the profit or loss incorporates an assumed credi risk
spread in the applicable discount factor Credit spreads are determined based upon indicative pricing data

Tavatton

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tas positions requites Judgements to be made regarding the apphcation
of tax law and the result of negotiations with and enquuies friom tav authoritics m a nunber of
Jurisdictions

1) Recently issued accounting pronouncemecents

Imernational Ninancial Reportmg Stemdear ds

At the date of authoinisauion of thesc financial statements the following relevant siandards and
witerprelations werce 1 1ssue but not vet effective  The directlors anticipaie that the group will adopt these
standards and intetpretations on then effective dates

[he dnectors anticipate that the adoption of the followmg standards and interpretations mdy have 4
matcrial impact on the group s {inancial statements

s IFRS 9 tinancial Instuments — amendnient  issucd in October 2010 s effecuve for periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2013 but will not be considered for endorsement by the LU
untl the remaining elements of the project have been completed Under the provisions of this
siandard where the gtoup has choscn 10 measuie bortowines at fan value thiough the profit or
loss the portion of the thange 1 fair value due to changes in the group s own credit rish will be
recognised m other comprchensive mcome rathet than within profit or loss

Lhe directots anticipaie that the adopuion of the following standards and mterpretations will have no
mater izl impact on the group s financid] statements

= IAS 12 Income iaves — amendment issued m December 2010 s effecuve for periods
commencing on ot afier 1 January 2012 but not yet endoised by the LU

s IFRIC 14 Prepavments of a Mimmum Funding Reguirement — amendment  1ssued in November
2009 1s effecuve for periods commencing on or afier 1 January 2011 and was endorsed by the 'L
on 19 July 2010

. Improvements to ITRS (2010) , 1ssued in May 2010 s effecuive for pertods commencing on or
after 1 January 2011 and was endorsed by the EL on 18 ebruary 2011

* IFRS 7 lmnanaal Insiruments — amendment  1ssued i May 2010 15 effective for pertods
commencing on or afier 1 January 2011 and was endorsed by the EL on 18 ebruary 2011

« IFRS 7 Fmancial [nsiruments — amendment , 1ssued 1n October 2010, 15 effecuve for penods
commencig on or after 1 July 2011 but has not yet been endorsed by the EL This will have a
material impact on the group s financial statements only 1f 1t enters mnto any relevant transactions
in the future,
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Accounting policies (continued)

t) Recently 1ssued accounting pronouncements (continued)
International Financral Reporting Standar dy (continied)

*« [IFRS 10 Consoldated financial standards, i1ssued i May 201t s effecive for periods
commencing on or afier I January 2013 but has not vet been endorsed by the EL,

e IAS 27 Sepaiatc financial statements - revised’ issued 1n May 2011, 1s effective for periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2013 bui has not vet been endorsed by the EL

e [FRS 11 Jomnt antangements , 1ssued in May 2011, 1s effective for periods commencing on or
after 1 January 2013 but has not vet been endorsed by the Eli The adoption of IFRS 11 15
expected to remove the option currently taken by the group to proportionally censohdate 1ts jomnt
venlures and require equity accounting

e IAS 28 [nvestmenis in associates and jomni ventures — revised | 1ssued in May 2011 1s effective
for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013 but has not vet been endorsed by the EL. The
revision to [AS 28 1s expecied to remove the option currently tahen by the group to proporiionatly
consolidate 11s joint ventures and require cquity accouning,

e I'RS 12 Dusclosure of mterests in other entites |, 1ssued 1 May 2011, 1s effective for periods
commencing on ot after | January 2013 but has not yet been endorsed by the LU

s IFRS 13 Fair value measurement ssued i May 2011 1s effective for pertods commencing on
ot after 1 January 2013 but has not vet been endorsed by the EL

« [AS 19 Emplovee benefits | revised June 2011 15 elfective for periods commencing on o1 alter |
January 2013 but has not vet been endorsed by the EL and

e IAS | Presentanon of financial statements — amendments  1ssued n June 2011 16 effective foi
peniods commencing on or after 1 July 2012 bui has not vel been endoised by the EL

New and revised standards and nterpretations inoissue but not yet effective which are not considered
televant to the actvities of the group are as follows

« 1AS 24 Related Party Misclosuies — amendment  assued in November 2009 s cifective for
periods commeneing on o after 1 January 2011 and was endorsed by the FLoon 19 July 2010

e IFRS | tust-ume Adopuon - amendment sssued in January 2010 s cffccuve for periods
commencing on ot aficr | July 2010 and was endorsed by the 2L on 30 June 2010

e IFRS 1 {irst-time Adoption — amendment , issued 10 December 2010 s effecuve for periods
commenciig on ot afier [ July 20§ 1 but has not yet been endorsed by the L and

 IFRIC 19 | xunguishing Financial 1iabihties with Lquay Instruments  1ssued 1 Novembe
2009 s effective for paniods commencing on or after | July 2010 and was endorsed by the EL on
25 July 2010
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Total revenue

Total revenue disclosed as required by [AS 18 Revenue recognised i the consolidated meome
statement 15 analvsed as follows

Restated

2011 2010

£m £m

Provision of goods and services (see note 2) 15133 1,575 i

Revenue 1,513 3 15731
Dividend income (see note 4) 01 2

Investment mcome {sce note 3) 323 382

1 o1al revenue 1,543 7 1,613 7

Duting the vear ended 31 Maich 2001, £0 4 mulhion of revenue was derived from exchanges of goods or
services In relation to [IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers (2010 £ml)

Total revenue information 1n respect of discontinued operations 1s given m note 8
2 Scgmernt reporting
[he group s revenue predonunantly arises from the provision of scivices

Lhe group now has one oparating division fo: management purposes being regulated activities  1his forms
the basis on which the operating segment information presented m acvordance with [FRS 8 Operating
Scegments 15 reported

Durning the year the gtoup completed us non-tegulated disposdl programune and in accordance with [FRS
3 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and I2isconunued Operations  the resulis of the relevant disposal
groups have been reclassified from the previously teported non-regulated activities operatuing scgment to
disconunued operations m the consohdated mcome statement and the compatauve information has been
restated accordingly (see noie 8)

I he segmental informdtion presented has been restaied to reflect the changes 1n the group [he elements of
the previously reporicd nonregulated activities opuating scgment which have not been classified as
discontinued operaltons no longer form a separately reporiable scgment as 1equued by RS 8 and are
therefore included within all other segments Scgmental infonmation in respect of discontinued operations
1s mcluded m note 8

Ihe regulated activines segment 1s as previously reported and includes the resulis of the regulated
businesses of Lmited Lulies Water PLC

[he all othet scgments category includes the results of United Lulities Property Services Limed Lnited
Luhties PLC the remaining non-regulated busmesses not classified as discontinued and other gtoup
holding companies

Ihe disclosure correlates with the informauon provided to the board of Lniied Luilities PLC ( the board )
for the purposes of assessing performance and atlocating tesoutces The boeard 1eviews revenue, underlying
aperauing, profit and operating profit by segment but assets and habihiies are reviewed at 4 consohdated
level Investment meome and finance expense and tasation are managed on a group basis and arc not
allocaied 1o operating segments

Irading between segments 15 carried out on an arm s length basts and transactions are priced accordingly
Laternal market prices are used where available where not available, margins generated are compared to
those generated from external sales and adjusted where necessary
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2. Segment reporting (continued)

Regulated All other

activites segments Group
Year ended 31 March 2011 £m fm £m
Contining eperations
Total 1evenue 14773 48 0 1,5253
Inter-segment revenue (04 (11 6) (120)
External revenue 1,476 9 36 4 i 515335
Underlying segmental operatimg profit 580 1 163 596 4
Restructuring costs 21 (10} (3 1)
Other reorganisation costs (7 0) o1 (3 1}
Segmental operating profit 5710 92 3802
Investment income 325
Fiance expense (255 9)
Profit before taxation 356 6

Regulated All other

activilcs segments Group
Year cnded 31 March 2010 restated fm fm £m
Cantunimg operations
lotal 1evenue 15382 40 8 15790
Inter-segment tevenue (0 8) (5 1) (5 9)
Fxaternal revenue v 15374 337 15731
Lnderlying segmental operating profit 700 8 35 706 3
Restiucturing costs (15 8) (100} (25 8)
Pension schemes curtalliment gain arismg on amendment
of penston obligations 767 106 873
Segmental operating profit 7617 61 767 8
Investment meome S ) 382
Finance expense (365 4)
Profit before taxation 440 6

For further informauoen on the pension schemes curtaillment gamns arsing on amendment of pension
obligations sece note 19

wh
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2. Segment reporting (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2011

Other information
Depreciation and amortisation

Statement of financial position
Segment tolal assets

Year ended 31 March 2010 restated

Other information
Depreciation and amortisation

Statement of financial positien
Scgment total assels

Regulated
activilies
£

249 9

86074

——
Regulated All other

activines segments Gtoup

£m fm Im

288 7 18 290 5

88557 1 9872 10 8429
All other Discontinued

scgmients  operations* Group

£m Lm £m

302 - 280 1

20077 3636 111787

* Depreciation and amottisdiion it respece of the group s disconunued operations 1s disclosed mnoie 3

Scegment results and assets include items ducctly atirbutable to a segment as well as those that can be

allocated on a reasonable basis

2011

Eaterndl revenue
Non-cutrent assets*

2010 restaied

External revenue
Non-current asscis™®

LK
Lm

14962
83211

LK
£m

1,55553

8 066 4

* Scgmental nes-current assets exclude financial mstruments

The group docs not relv on any major customers

Continuing

opctations
Rest of
wotld I'otal LK
£m Lm f£m

171 1,3133 2963

550 83761

Continuing
opctdtions

Rest of
world
£m

I otal LK
{m £m

137351 734

533 81197 191

LVER O]

Iiscontnued
operailons

Rest of
world fotal
£im fm
371 33554
Discontinued
operations

Rest of
world  Total
£m fm
1093 86353
1239 3152

lotal

Group
£m

1 8667
§376 1

iotal

Group
fm

4
4

G Ll

606
49
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3 Directors and employees

Directors’ remuneration

2011 2010

£m £m

Salaries 17 16
Benefits 02 01
Bonus 23 20
472 37

Included within the above 1s salary of £0 8 million (2010 £0 8 milhon) and bonus of £1 0 muiltion (2010
£0 9 mitlion) in respect of the highest paid director The group paid £0 2 million in the year (2010 £0 2
mulhon) to the group s defined contribution pension scheme on behalfl of the highest paid director The
highest paid director exercised share options in the year

2011 2010

£m im

Aggregate amounts receivable under long-term incentive plans 09 -
201t 2010

\umber \umber

Nuraber of directors who received shares n respect of quahfying services 4 5
Number of directors who exeicised share options 3 -
Number of directers accruing benefits under defined benefit schemes 1 -
Number of directors accruing benefits under defined contribution schemes 4 3

There were three directors with mcentive plans which vested during the year ended 31 March 2011 (2010
ml)

Details of the cmployce Sharesave Scheme and the executive share option scheme operated by United
Ltihities Group PLC are given in the UL G group's financidl statements

All executive dinectors were cither members of the defined benefit section or the defined contribution
section of the group s pension scheme during the vear or had opted for a cash allowance n liev of their
defined contribution pension entitlement (see note 19)

Remuneration of key management personnel

200t 2010

£m £m

Salaries and short-term emplovee benefits 71 61
Post-employment benefits 05 06
76 67

Key management personnel comprises all direciors and certain senlor managers who are members of the
execuiive commitice

wn
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
3 Directors and emplovees (continued)
Employ ee benefits expense (including directors})
Group Company
Restated
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £im £m £m
Continuing operaiion
Wages and salaries 174 6 187 5 238 34 1
Social security costs 134 142 24 34
Post-employment benefits excluding pension
schemes curtailment gamns ansing
on amendment of pension obligations
and restructuring costs 171 24 8 25 32
Charged io capial schemes (62 3) (70 2) - -
Employee benefits expense excluding pension
schemes curtallment gains and restructuring
costs 142 8 1563 287 407
Pension schemes cuttallment gains arising on )
amendment of pension obhgations - (87 3) - (54)
Restructuting costs 31 258 06 92
Emplovee benefits expense attributable to )
continuimg operations 1459 94 8 293 44 3

I he emplovee benefits exponse information n tespect of discontinued operations s included m noie 8

2011 2011
fm fm
Group
Contnuing operations
Wages and salaries 174 6
Socal secutity costs 13 4

Post-emplovment benefits
pension costs excluding curtailment gams artsing
on amendiment of pension obligations and
restruciuring costs 171
pension schemes curtailment gamns arising on
amendment of pension obhgations -

171
Restructuting costs 31
208 2
Charged to capital schemes (62 3)
Fmplovee benefits expense 1459
Less cmployee benefits expensc aurnibutable 1o
joint ventuics (19
1o1al employee benefits expense eacluding

Joint ventures 144 0

Restaied
2010
£m

24 8

(87 3)

Restated
2010
£m
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
3 Dhirectors and emplovees {continued)
2011 2011 2010 2010
£m £m £m £fm
Company
Comtmuing operations
Wages and salaries 238 341
Social security costs 24 34
Post-employment benefits
pension costs excluding curtaillment gains arising
on amendment of pension obligations and
restructurimg costs 23 32
pension schemes curtaillment gains arsing on
amendment of pension obligations - (54)
25 (22)
Resttucturing costs 06 92
203 44 5
Charged 1o capital schemes - -
Total emplovee benefits expense 2953 44 5
The table below shows the nature of post-cmployment benefits
Group Company
Restated
2011 2010 2011 2010
i&m fm fm £m
Continumng opetafions
Defined penston expensc/(income) charged/(credited)
to operating profit
pension costs cacluding pensions schemes
curtathinent gains atising on amendment of
pension obligations and restructut ing costs 119 19 3 11 09
pension schemes curtailment gains arising on
amendment of pension obhigations - (87 3) - (54
iy (68 0 11 (43)
Defined contribution pension costs (sce note 19) 32 35 14 25
171 (62 3) 25 22

In addition 10 the above pension cuttalmenis atismg on reorganmisation of €2 7 muthon (2010 restated £9 3
mullion) ate included within resttuctuning costs within conttnuing totat employee benefits expense and L0 7
mullion (2010 £n1l) are mcluded within other 1corgamsation costs resulting in total defined benefit pension
expense of £13 3 million (2010 £38 7 muthion mcome) (sec note 19)

Average number of employees during the vear (full-time equivalent including directors)

Restated
2011 2010
number number
Group

Contiunng operationy
Regulated acuivities 4218 4257
All other segments 517 763
4,735 5,020

Me average number of employees 1n respect of discontinued operations 1s included i note 8 1he average
number of employees during the yvear employed by the company was 406 (2010 627)




Lned Culiies PLLC

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Operating profit

The following items have been charged/(credited) 1o the income statement i arriving at the group s
operating profit from continung operations

Restated
201 2010
fm fm
Other operating costs
Hired and contracted services 166 8 1723
Materials 453 473
Power 49 1 62 4
Property rates 65 i 539
Charge for bad and doubtful receivables 306 563
Other operating leases payable
Property 49 49
Plant and equipment 08 09
Amortisation of deferred grants and contributions (sec note 22) ()] 67
Research and development expenses 09 08
Other (12) (70 5)
3554 3218
Other income
Dividend income ©1n (24)
Loss on disposal of propurty plant and equipment 27 30
Othe: mcome (4 8) (57
(22) 5H
Depreaation and amortindtion expense
Deprectation of property plant and equipment owned assets 2585 2541
Amoitisation of other intangible asscis 322 260
2005 2801

Durmng the vear the group obtamed the following services ftom its auditor at the costs detaiked below

2011 2010

Im £m

Statutory audit of the financial staicments 03 04
Other fees 1o the audno

Local statutory audits for subsidiaties 02 04

Other audit related 01 -

Regulatory reporting 01 02

Duc dihigence and transaction support 06 53

13 65

Included 1n the above statutory audit fee1s £30 000 n relation to the company for the vear ended 31 Match
2011 (2010 £30 000} [he opetating mofit mformation in respect of discontinued opcrations 1s meluded m
note 8

5. Investment income

Restated

2011 2010

Im £m

[nterest recetvable on short-term bank deposits held al amortised cost 28 62
Interest receivable from ultimaie parent undertaking 295 320
323 382
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
6. Frinance expense
Restated
2011 2010
Lm £m
Interest payable
Interest payable on borrowmgs held at amortised cost 2710 2069
Intercompany nterest — pavable to discontinued operations 03 03
Intcrest payable to ultimate parent undertaking - 01
2783 2073
Fair value (gaimns)/ losses on debt and dervative instruments o
Fair value hedge relationships
Botiowings (202) {(1106)
Designated swaps 111 124 7
©on 141
tinancial instruments at fan value through profit or loss
Borrowings designated at fan value through profit or loss = (0 8) 80
Held for tiading derivatives — economic hedge il 860
03 94 0
Held for nading denvanves = 2005-2010 regulatory hedges (73) (47 3)
Held for trading derivatives — 2010-2015 regulatony hedges 14 497
Nt (1eceipts) / paviments on swaps d_nd debt undar fan value option (02) 24 2
Held for trading denvatives — other G 07
Other 48 15
(10 4) 284
Net fan value (gams) / losscs on debt and denvative mstuments ¢ ! (19 2) 1365
Ixpecied return on penston schemes  assets (see note 19) (1022 (83 8)
Interest cost on pension schemes obligations (see nute 19) 106 0 105 4
\Cl pension Imterest expense 38 216
lotal finance expense 2559 3654

Notes

(1) Far value (eams)flosses on debe and dernaine mstruments mnddudes toragn oxehange gains of £13 2 milhien (2010 €411
tlhon) oxcluding those on mstrugents measured at far v alue throush profiu or loss These gams are larodiy offsec by fanr valuc

losses on deris aiives

(2)  Includes £11 nullion lesses (2010 £18 2 anllion) on the valuazion of deb reported at farr value throrgh protit or loss due o

changes w credit spread assumpaions

Interest payable for the vear ended 31 March 2011 s stated net of £4 4 mithon (2010 £0 5 milhion)
borrowing costs capitalised 1n the cost of quahfving assets within property plant and equipment during the
vear ‘This has been calculated by applving a capriehsation rate of 4 6 per cent (2010 3

expenditure on such assets as prescribed by 1AS 23 (Revised 2007} Borrowing Costs

Includes Tair valuc mosemans i rdatton o other ceononie hedge dornvanes relatng to dobt hedd at amorused eest
(#)  Includes £3 7 malhion meome (2010 £22 2 nullion expunse) interest on swaps and debt under fair value option

per cent) to
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
7  Taxation
Restated
2011 2010
£m £m
Current taxation
LK corporation tax 701 74 6
loreign tax 19 09
Prior vear adjustments (287) 471)
433 284
Deferred tavation (scc note 20)
Current year 257 48 8
Prior vear adjustments 113 {6 6}
370 422
Change 1n tax rate (99 0) -
(620 422
Total tax (credst)/chaige for the vear (187) 70 6

The tables below reconcile the notional tax tharge at the LK cotporation tax 14te 1o the effcetive tay rate
for the yea

Continuing Discontinued
opetations operations lotal
2011 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011
£m % fm Yo £m %
Profit before texation 336 6 238 3804
fav at the LK corporation tax 1ate of 28 per cent 99 8 280 67 280 1063 280
Adjustments mn respect of prior periods (174)  (49) 18 76 (1536) (41
Change n tax ratc (9% 0y (271D 09 38 (981) (258)
Net 1nceome not tanable 20 (0 0) {02) (0 8) (23) (06
Total tax (crcdity/charge and effective tan tate for
the vea (187 (52 92 386 (93) (23)
Contmuing Discontinued
operations operatons Foual
Restated 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
{m % £m % £m Yo
Profit before tavation 440 6 6353 3061
Fav at the LK corporation iaw rate of
28 pereent 123 4 280 18 4 280 1418 280
Adjustments i 1espect of prior petiods (337 (122) 08 (t2)y (345 (108)
et expense/(income ) not deductible/(tavable) 09 02 86) (I3 1) (77) (13)
lotal tax charge and effective tay rate for
the veat 706 16 0 90 137 796 157

Ihe continumg operations defetred tavation credit for the year ended 31 March 2011 includes a credit of
£99 0 milhon to reflect both the change enacied on 27 July 2010 to reduce the mainstream rate of
corporalion tas from 28 per cent to 27 per cent and subsequent change enacted on 29 March 2011 to reduce
the mamstream corporation tax rate further to 26 per cent effecnive from 1 April 2011 There will be a
further phased reduction i the mainsiream corporaiion tax rate to 23 per cent by | Apnil 2014 The total
deferred taxation credit in respect of this further reduction 15 expected to be 1n the region of £150 0 milhion

A taxauon credu of £17 4 mulhion (2010 £33 7 milhion) arose 1n the year i conlinuing operations in
relatton to the agreement of prior years UK tavation matters
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3  Discontinued operations

During ihe vear the group completed 1ts non-regulated disposal programme which, including the prior year
disposals achieved a total enterprise value of £579 2 million In accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Asscts Held for Sale and Disconunued Operations the relevant disposal groups are therefore classified as
disconinued operations i the consolidaied income statement and consohdated statement of cash flows

Ihe busmesses included 1n the group s non-regulated disposal programme and the related transactions wete
as follows

= the prnincipal non-regulated watet interests in the Umied Kingdom and Europe 1o Veola Water
LK PLC on 9 November 2010,

e« United Ltilies Austrahia Pty Limited and telated entiies to a consortium led by Mitsubishi
Corporation on 22 October 2010,

= the 30 per cent holding 1n the non-regulated gas and eleciricity meter owneiship business Meter
i, to the existing joint venture partner Marhin Acquisttions Limued, on 1 October 2010, and

e the other non-regulated businesses, including the eleciricity operations and maintenance business
i the North West of England the gas and electricity metening installation contract with British
Gas Trading and the Derbyshue municipal solid waste (MSW) preferred bidder position and other
MSW related interests

I he group has retamed 1ts holding 1n AS 1allinna Vesi ( lallinn Water) (see notes 11 and 13)
lhe resubts of the discontinued opetations up untit the point of disposal during the year ended 31 March

2011 and the compatanve year, which have been disclosed separately n the consohddted income
statement as required by IFRS 3 are as follows

2011 2010
fin fm
Reyvenue 3534 865 3
Pmployee benefits expense
cxcluding pension schemes curtailment gans ansing on
amendment of pension obligations and restructuiing costs (88 6) (206 1)
pension schemes curtaument gains artsing on amendment
of pension obhgations - 50
resttucturing costs (3 8) (49
Fotal cmployee benefits expense (92 4) {206 0)
Other reorganisaiion credis 70 -
Other operaung Losts (223 5) (3807)
Other mecome (24 (20
Depiectation and amottisation capnse (63) (24 7)
Opcerating profit 358 301
Investment incoine and finance cxpense (70 (10 4)
Profit on disposal of investments - 366
Evatuation and disposal costs relating to discontinued operations (50) (10 8)
Profit before tavation 238 655
Current iavatien charge (18) (2 5)
Deferred tanation charge (74) {6 3)
lavation (92) 5 0)
Profit after taxation 146 365
Profit on disposal of discontinued operatiens after taxation 891
T'otal profit after taxation from discontinued operations 103 7
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
8. Discontinued operations (continued)
T'he net assets and habilities a: disposal and the profit on disposal were as follows

2011

£m

Total proceeds'” 268 4
Property plant and equipment (176 7)
Goodwill (sce note 11) (179
Other mtangible assets (119 6)
Investments (sce note 13) (6 6)
Non-current trade and other recervables (594
inventories (117
Curient trade and other tecetvables (203 1)
Cash and shori-term depostts (50 0}
Irade and other pavables 2308
Jom venture debt 228 7
Provistons (sce note 21) 179
Retirement benefit obligations {see notc 19) 73
Deferred tavation assets (sce note 20) (+ 0
Net assets disposed of (164 3)
Iransaction and othet costs of disposal (45 9)
Reclassification from other reserves ansing on disposal of financial asset mvestment G6
Reclassification from other reserves arising on disposal of subsidiaries (18)
Reclassification from cumutative exchange tesave arisig on disposal of subsidiaries 261
Profit on disposal ot discontinued operations after taxation 89 1
(11 Total tar value ef procceds comprised vash of £268 4 million The enterprise vatue ot £447 1 oullion ncorporates cash

consideration reeen od added 1o the market value of the debt disposed of which at the date of disposal totalled £178 7 nullion
Combined with the cash consideration reeened trom the disposal ot iy estments i the prior year of £132 1 mulhien: the non-
rezulaed disposal programme citerprise s dhue wotalled 879 2 nulhon

Disposal of investments

As reported n the puior vear the group disposed of 1ts 1§ 7 per cent economic nterest i vania Water
Companv (MWC) to Avala Corporation and Philwaier Holdings Company Inc both existing shaieholders
of MWC foi cash consideration of LSS73 nullion (£46 3 milhon) on 12 November 2009

In addion the group disposed of 1ts 15 0 per cent cconomic mtetest in Notthein Gas Nctworhs Holdings
Limited (\NGN\) to Cheung Kong Infrastiuciure Holdings Limned (CKI) and SAS Trusice Corporation
(managed by RRELF Altctnauve Investmenis) both ewisung sharcholders of NG\ foir a cash
considetation of £83 8 mulhon on 16 Noevember 2009

VIWC NG T otal
fm £m £

Group
2010
Proceeds 46 3 838 1321
Carrying value of invesiment (see note 13) (46 3) (85 8) (132 n
Reclassification ftom other reserves arising on disposal of
financial asset investument 366 - 36 6
Profit on disposal of investments 366 - 366
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3. Dicontinued operations (continued)

Suppiementary mformation i respeet of discontinued operations
Total revenue disclosed as required by [AS 18 Revenue recognised from discontinued operations 1s
analvsed as follows

2011 2010
f£m £m

Group
Provision of goods and services 3334 8635
Revenue 353 4 863 5
Investment income 63 79
lotal 1evenue 3597 8714
Employee benefit expense for discontinued operations 1s analysed as follows

2011 2010

im £m

Wages and salarics 720 168 2
Social secunity costs 3 120
Post-cmploviment benefits evcluding pension schemes cuntailment
gains auising on amendment of pension oblizations and restructurmg costs 1534 259
Cmployvee benefits expense excluding pension schemes cuttathment
ga1ns and 1estraciuring costs 886 2001
Pension schemes curtathment gains atsing on
amendment of penston obligations - (G0
Resuucturing costs 38 49
Emplovee henefits expense attributable to discontinued operations 924 2060

Ihe average number of emplovees duiing the period / year (full-time equivalent including directors) fot
discontinued operatons 15 analvsed as follows

2011 2010
numbet number
Group

Non-regulated activities 1 656 4 345
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

8. Discontinued operatiens (continued)

The following ttems have been charged/(eredited) in emiving at operating proflt reporied by disconunued
operations

2011 2010
£m fm
Other operating costs
Hired and contracted services 104 5 3297
Viatcriais 349 1138
Power 49 315
Property rates 2 19
Charge for bad and doubiful receivables 20 14
Other operating leases payable
Propenty 17 27
Plant and equipment 12 17
Other 551 980
2235 5807
Other mcome
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipiment 37 43
Other mcome (13) (2 3)
24 20
Depreciation and amor fisation expense
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 34 212
Amortisatton of other intangible assets 09 33
3 247

[he following formation 1n respect of disconumued operations 15 disclosed in the relevant note
geographical analvsis of external revenue and non-curient assets (sec note 2) wavauon (see note 7) and
rctitement benefit obhgations (see note 19)

9. Dividends

Amounts tecognised as distributions 1o equity holders of the company in the veat comptise

2011 2010
£m Lm
Ordinary shares
Fial dividend for the year ended 31 March 2010 at 17 87 pence pet shate
(2009 17 15 pencd) 1576 1512
Interum dividend for the yvear ended 31 March 2011 ai 8 64 pence per
share (2010 9 07 pence) 76 2 8§00
2338 2312
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 Maich 2011 at tul pence per shate
(2010 17 87 pence) - 1376

the proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2010 was subject to approval by equity holders
of Lnited Luhnes PLC and hence has not been included as a liability in the conselidated financial
statements at 31 March 2010
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10. Property, plant and equipment
Fintures
[nfra- fittings Assels n
Land and structure Operational tools and course of
buildings assels assets  cquipment construction I'otal
£m £m £m Em £m fm
Group
Cost
At 1 Apiel 2009 2215 35799 44138 5922 924 8 9.7522
Additions 95 76 0 96 6 558 3062 347 1
Iransfers 104 607 3177 91 (379 7) -
Disposals (83 (135) (17 03 Ge1) 23 (772
Curiency translation
differences (02) 29 01 02 3 (4 3)
At 31 March 2010 as
pteviously reporied 2329 37002 48112 6030 8305 10,197 8
Adjustment for IFRIC 18
(sce note 32) - 344 26 - - 370
A1 31 March 2010
as rcstated 23209 37346 48138 603 6 8505 10,234 8
Additions 14 4 126 2 396 3 3328 5699
Iansfers 42 840 3251 124 (423 7) -
Disposals (33) (677) (33 0) (224 7) (13 0) (342 3)
Cunency transiation
diffetences - G0 - 03 on (2 8)
At 31 March 2011 2482 38741 51633 4279 745 9 10439 6
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 Apnil 2009 70 1 145 4 1 3680 2816 - 18654
Charge for the year 126 452 164 5 549 - 2752
Itansfers - 26 102 (12 8) - -
Disposals 85 (1553) (170 (26 7) - (653)
Curiency tianslation
differences - (04 01 02 - (0 1)
AL131 March 2010 as
proviously reported 74 7 1773 135258 2972 - 20750
Adjustment for IFRIC 18
(sce note 32) - 01 01 - - 2
A131 March 2010
as testated 74 7 177 4 15259 2972 - 20752
Charge for the year 8i 266 187 4 416 - 2637
Dhsposals (28 318 (26 8) (91 5) - (152 %)
Currency translation
differences - (15) - 02 - (13
A1 31 Vlarch 2011 800 170 7 1 6865 2475 - 21847
et book value at
31 March 2011 168 2 3,703 4 34770 180 4 7459 8,274 9
et book value at
31 March 2010 restaied 1582 3,5572 3,2879 3058 8505 8.1596

At 31 March 2011, the group had entered inte coniractual commitments for the acquisiion of property,

plant and cquipment amounting ie £241 7 nullion (2010 £382 6 nullion)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
10 Property, ptant and equipment {continued)
Fintures,
fittings
1ools and
equipment
fm
Company
Cost
At 1 Aprii 2009 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2011 48
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2009, 31 Maich 2010 and 31 March 2011 44

et book value at 31 Viarch 2010 and 31 March 2011 04

The conmpany had no contractual commutments for the acquisiion of property, plant and equipment at 31
March 2011 or at 31 March 2010

11 Goodwill

fm
Group
Cost
At Aptil 2009 26
Curtency translatton differences (on
AL 31 March 2010 25
Addmens 204
Disposals (sec notc §) (179N
At 31 Viarch 2011 50

The addinons 1o goodwill relaic 10 an nctease i the group s sharcholding i AS lallinna Ves) (1allnn
A%

Water) from 26 3 per cent to 35 3 per cent and Sofivsha Voda AD from 37 8 pet cent to 77 1 pet cent
Sofivsha Voda Al was subscquently disposed (see noie 8)

the company has no goodwiil
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12 Other intangible assets
Computer Service
software concessions Other lotal
£m fm fm £m
Group
Cost
At l April 2009 1819 1220 243 3282
Adduions — purchased 342 - 02 344
Currency uanslation differences 58 (07 51
A1 31 March 2010 216 1 127 8 238 3677
Additions — purchased 183 213 08 40 6
Disposals (15) (149 6) (14 2) (165 1)
Currency translation differences - 03 (02) 01
At 31 March 2011 2331 - 102 2433
Amor tisation
At ] April 2009 883 292 116 129 3
Chairge {or the year 257 30 08 295
Cuttenev nanslation differences - 08 (0 3) 03
At 31 March 2010 114 2 330 119 159 1
Charge for the vear 320 07 04 331
DDisposals O 1) (337) (89 427
Cutrency translation differcnces - - o1n 0
At 31 March 2011 146 1 - 33 149 4
Net book value at 31 March 201t 870 - 69 939
et book value at 31 March 2010 04 8 It 9 208 6

The other mtangible assets catcgory 1clates mainly to customer related intangibles such ds customa
contracis and customer lists Fhe service concession dsscis 1elated 1o operations in Scotland Australia and
Bulgaria, which have been sold as pait of the non-tegulated activities disposal programme duning the yea

(scc noic §)

At 31 March 2011 the group had entered into comtraciual commuments for the acquisition of other

imangible assets amounung to £43 9 mullion (2010 £16 4 million)

lhe company has no other ntangible asscts

acquisition of other intangible assets at 31 March 2011 ot 31 Maich 2010

the company had no conttactual commitments for the
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13 Investments
Other
nvestments
£m
Group
At 1 Apnil 2009 156 8
Additions 08
Revaluations 3
Disposals (see note §) {132 1)
Currency translation differences (12)
At 31 Varch 2010 77
Additions 01
Revaluattons 11
Disposals (see note §) (6 6)

At 31 Vlarch 2011 23

At 31 March 2011 the group s other investments mamiy compnise Lnied Luhiues PLC s preference
shates in Philwatcr Holdings Company Inc

The available for sale mmvestment in1espect of the group s accountng for the retrement benetit obligations
of Northern Gas Networks Pension Scheme (sce note 19) which represenied a large part of the mvestinent
balance at 31 March 2010 was disposed of during the year

As acported i the puor vear on completion of the disposal of its economic mterest i Manila Water
Company mn Maich 2010 the group temvested approvamately LSSE2 mallion (£0 8 mullion) in new
prefetence shares m Philwater Holdings Company Ine which was classtfied as a loans and reccivables
investment i accordance with IAS 39 |inancial Tosttuments Recognition and Mieastiement

tor details of the disposals tefer w note 8
Details of puneipal operaung subsidiary underizhings and jont ventures are set out bilow  Lhese

undettakings are included within the consohdated financial statements

Proportion of
share capital
Class of share  owedfvoting

capnal held  nghts % Nature of busiiness
Subsudrary undertahing
Great Britain
Lmted Lnlittes Water PL C Ordinary 100 0*  Water and wastewater services and network
management
United Ltihties International Limited Ordinary 100 0*  Consulting services and project management
Lnited Litihties Propenty Services Ordinary 1000 Property management
f.imited
Jowut venturey
Fstoma
AS Tallinna Vesi Ordinary 333*  Coniract operations and maintenance services

* Shares are held by subsidiary undertahings rather than dircetly by Lnted Utihies PLC
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13 Investments (continucd)

Jont management of AS Tallinna Vesi (1allinn Water) 1s based upon a sharcholders agreement Tallmn
Water s financial year end 1s not cotermmous with that of the group The most recent financial year ended
on 31 December 2010

In relation 1o the group s intetests 1n joint ventures the assets labilities gross income and ¢xpenses are
summarised below

2011 2010
£m £m

Group share of jomt ventures
Non-current assets 524 32067
Current assets 152 89 7
Non-current habilities (GO0 (261 0)
Curtent liabintics (67) (39 2)
309 96 2
2011 2010
Lm fm

Group share of joint ventures
Gross meome 1211 186 8§
Cxpenses {94 8) (161 6)
[avauon (24 “ D
Profit after taxation 239 211

Included withmn the jont venture income statement measures disclosed m the wable above are gross income
of £108 3 nuihion (2010 £175 2 millien) expenses of £89 3 mithon (2010 L1335 5 nullion) and tasation of
£0 5 nullion (2010 £3 1 mullion) telaung to entities that have been disposed of duting the vear ended 31
Match 2011 and henee are recorded within the results for disconunued opetattons

The Jount ventuzes have no sigmificant contingent liabilities 1o which the group 15 exposcd and the group
has 1ssued guarantees of £5 9 million 1o 11s jont veniures (2010 £126 8 nuliion) which are included w the
contmgent habihtics total disclosed i note 29

Shates n
subsidiary
undettahings
and total

{m
Compdny
At 1 Apnl 2009 114813
Addiuons 1 500 8
Impamrment charge {6821 1)
A1 31 March 2010 61610
Additions 30170
Impaiment charge (15017
Disposals (1499 8)
At 31 Vlarch 2011 61765
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13. Investments (continued)

Addiions of £3 0170 nullion include £1 499 § nuliion mvesuments 1n the ordiary shares of Linued
Lulities Investments (\o 7) Limited and a caputal conttibution of £17 4 million to Unuted Ltilines Ltthity
Solutions Holdings I imiied Also during the vear ended 31 March 2011 the company entered mto a stock
lending agreement with Lnited Luliies Invesiment Partnerships (No 2) LP (LUIP) transferring 476
miliien ordinary shares in United Ltihites North West PLC resulung i additional investments in the pareni
companies of LUIP, being £1 187 9 million in Lnited Ltilites Emplovee Share Trust £296 9 nillion 1n
Lnned Lulines (Jersey) Invesuments (No 6) Limited and £13 0 million in Lmited Lulines Invesiments
(No 3) Limited

An unpairment of £1 500 8 mullion has been taken against investments 1n Lmted Unhues One Limited
following 2 £1 500 8 milhon realisauon of value through receipt of dividends An impairment of £09
million has been tahen agamst investments in United Luhiues Investments (ho 3) Limited

The abovementioned transfer of ordmary shares in Linuted Lulities North West PLC resulted in a disposal
of £1 499 8 mullion

During the yea ended 31 March 2011, a teview has been performed supporting the carrving value of the
mvestment of £1 713 2 milfion 1 Lmted Lulities North West PLC (LLNW) As in the prior vear the
review considered a4 fair value tess costs to sell valuation and whether there were any indicanions that the
value of the underlying business may have changed No indications of impattment or mpanment teversals
werce identified

Prior vear addimons of £1,500 8 milhon 1elate to investments in ordinary shares in Lnited Ltihues One
1 imuied

Asacported i the prior vear an impawrment of £6 127 0 million was tahen agamst mvestments i Lnied
Lulwes (Jersey) Invesiments No 1 Lnlemited Lnned Lulittes (Jersey) Invesuments No 2 Lninmied
Lmicd Liahiies (lersey) Investments No 3 Lnhmited and Lmited Lulbiies (Jersey) Investments No 4
Lnlemuted following a £6 128 9 muilhon teahsation of value through receipt of dividends

Also i the prior year, the investment of £3 907 1 milhon in United Lulities Notth West P1LC (LLNW)
was tested for impaument durning the yeai ended 31 March 2010 following the acceptance of Ofwat s final
detenmination by LLW s pumcipal operating company bLuned Luhiues Water PIEC (LLW)Y  The final
detenminauion for 2010-15 set the retums on mvestment allowed by the regulator lor this penod

The valuauien of LLNW for the purposes of the impanment test was based upon a fan value less costs 1o
scil approach which mcorporated the regulatory capual value (RCVY for LLW as at March 2010 An
mmpamment of £694 1 mullion was taken reducing the value of the company s investment i LUNW at 31
Maich 2010 to £3 213 0 million

14 Inventores

2011 2010
Group {m £m
Raw materials and finished goods 47 18 9
Properties held for resale 429 341
Wotk in progress N 18
47 6 74 8

The company has no inventories (2010 £nil)
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15 “lrade and other recewvables
Group Company
2011 2010 201 2010
£m £m £m £m
Trade receivables 188 3 2011 33 09
Amounts owed by subsidiary
undertahings - - 16727 16234
Amounts owed by ultimate patent
undertaking (sce note 27) * 15019 15197 01 47
Amounts owed by related partics
(see note 27) 27 192 - -
Other debtors 156 790 03 03
Prepaymenis and accrued income 902 2082 62 73
1,798 7 2,0272 1,682 6 1,636 8

* dncluded i net amounts owed by the ultrmaie parent enderiahing 1s £0 1 muihion for the group (2010 £5 1 muilion) and £0 1
mithion for the company {20t0 £3 | nulhion) relanng to net group tax rehiefrecen able from Lnied Luhiies Group PLC

Irade and other reccivables have been analvsed between non-current and cuntent as follows

Group Companm

2011 2010 2011 2010

£m fm £ £m

Non-current - 563 - -
Cuntent 17987 19707 16826 16368

1798 7 20272 16826 16368

Ttade reeaivables do not cany interest and are stated net of aliowances for doubtful teccivables an analysis
of which 1s as follows

2011 2010
fm fm

Group
Atthe start of the vear 206 6 1928
Amounts charged to operating expenses 3206 317
ltede receivables wnitten-off (170 1) {43 9}
Disposed of duting the vear (139 -
At the ond of the vear 332 20606

At cach reporting date the companv and each of its subsidianies evaluate the recoverabiluy of trade
receivables and record provisions for doubtful recervables based upon experience

Any allowance for doubtful receivables s determined by a detaited review of balances due on a company
by company basis and by reference to the ongoimng activities of each company within the group

During the vear ended 31 March 2011 €131 1 mulhon of debt has been written off as a result of a detailed
review of the group s trade receivables balance I his debt was significanily provided therefore the charge
for bad and doubtful recervables as a result of this exercise was a lower amount of £2 5 nullion
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15. T'rade and other receivables (continuced)
Agemg of gross receivables
The following table provides information regatding the agemg of gross 1cceivables
Aged
Aged between Aged

less than one year and  gieater than Carrying

one year two vears two veats value
Group £m £m £m £m
At 31 VMarch 2011
Trade recervables - gross 147 2 43 4 329 2435
Amounts owed by ultimate parent undertaking - 374 1,464 5 135019
Amounts owed by related parties 25 01 01 27
Other debtors 156 - - 156
Prepayments and acciued income 90 2 - - 902
At 31 March 2010
Trade recervables - gross 2103 616 1358 4077
Amounts owed by ultimale parent undertaking 374 1,482 5 - 15197
Amounts owed by related partics 172 11 09 192
Othar debtors . 790 - - 790
Prepayments and acerued income 2080 - 02 208 2

lhe above analvsis in respect of gross trade recetvables reconctles to net uade receivables by deduction of

the allowance for doubtful receivables of £33 2 milhon (2010 £206 6 mitilion)

The group manages us rcguiated bad debt rish by providing against gross ttade 1ccervables  This allowance
15 caleulated by rofarened 1o custemer categorics rathet than on the age profile of gross dobior balances
15 thercfore not possible to age the allowance for doubttul 1eccivables

Companv
At 31 March 2011
frade recetvables - gross

Amounts owed by subsidiary undettakings  gross

Othet debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

At 31 March 2010
Irade recervables - gross

Amounts owed by subsidiary undeitakings - gross

Amounts owed by ultimate patent undertahing
— gross

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

Aged
less than
one veat

£m

[VF)
=
b L

wd h

Aged
between

one vear and
Lwo scars
{im

198
05

482

~J

Aged
greater than
WO vVedis
£m

06

908 3

Catrving
valuc
{m

Amounts owed by subsidiary undenahings are a sum of all subsidiary balances where the total of inter-
company tav, debt, interest and irade balances 1s 1n a net receivable position  The recoverability of these
balances has been assessed at the year end and except for the allowance for doubtful receivables detailed
below, the balances arc deemed to be fully recoverable
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

15. Trade and other reeervables (continued)

1he above analysis in 1espeet of gross trade receivables 1econciles to net tade receivables by the deduction
of the allowance for doubtful receivables of £0 6 mullion (2010 £1 4 miilion)

The above analysis in respect of gross amounts owed by subsidiary undertahmgs reconciles to net amounts
duc by deduction of the allowance for doubtful recervables of £80 6 million (2010 £82 9 nulhien) relating
to non-trading subsidiaty undertahings

Trade and other teceivables 1s split as follows

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m
Debiors in respect of unmetered
water supplies 100 8 930 - -
Dcebtors in respect of metered
water supplies 1132 150 - -
Other regulated debtors 530 430 - -
lotal 1egulated debiois 2670 2510 - -
Nen-regulated debtors 13317 17762 16826  1,6568
Irade and other 1eceivables 1 798 7

20272 16826 1.636 8

The directors consider that the canying ameunt of ttade and other recervables approvemates 1o then fan
value at 31 Maich 2011 and 31 Maich 2010

I he group s average ciedn penod taken on sales 15 31 days (2010 restated 65 days)

16 Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

tm Lm Lm im

Cash at bank and in hand 173 726 13 10 4

Short-term bank deposits 2379 2289 2357 2289

Cash and short-term deposns 2532 30153 2370 2365

Bank overdrafis (included i borrowings sce note 17) (8 4} (43 3) 0N (178
Cash and cash equivalents i the statement

of cash flows 246 8 256 0 2369 22153

Cash and short-ierm deposits include cash at bank and in hand deposits and other shori-term highly iquid
investments which are readily convertible mto known amounis of cash and have a matunty of three months
o1 less
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17 Borrowings
The following analvsis provides information about the contractual terms of the group s borrowings
2011 2010
Group £m £m
Non-current habihties
Bonds 42085 41590
Bank and other term borrowings 993 1 11489
3,205 6 53079
Current habthtres
Bank and other 1erm borrowings 98 9 1205
Bank overdrafis g4 455
Amounts owed to ulumate parent undertaking 333 6353
140 8 2293
5344 4 35374

I'erms and debt repayment schedule

{he principal ceonomic terms and conditions of outstanding bortowings weie as follows

Cutrency
Group
Borrowmgs in fau value hedge relauonships
5 625% 300m bond aBre
5 7%% 373m bond Gipe
3 375% 130m bond GRP
5 00% 200m bond Gnpe
4 253% 500m bond FLR
4 55% 250m bond LSD
5 375% 350m bond LSD

502% JPY 10bn dual cuntency loan IPY/LSD

Year of
final re-
pavinent

2027
2022
2018
2035
2020
2018
2019
2029

Fau
value
2001

£in

3102
3907
163 8
1863
436 2
1554
2250
735

Canying
value
2011

Lm

Fan
valuc
2010

im

0
8

L) oo

L2
W

161 6
184 6
da4d 8
1579
23035

701

Canying
value
2010

Lm

3267
3679
1630
208 2
467 2
169 6
2501

840
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17. Borrowings (continued)
Year of Fair Carrving Fan Carrving
Curtency  findl re- value value value value
payment 2011 2011 2010 2010
£m £m £m £im

Borrowings designated at fatr value
through profit or loss

6 875% 400m bond LSD 2028 2643 2643 2668 266 8
1 135% 3bn bond Py 2013 225 223 208 208
Borrowings measured at amortised cost
I 5802%~RPI 100 1L bond GBP 2042 102 8 116 3 859 1o
1 7829%~RPI 100m 1L bond GBP 2040 109 5 1167 923 1114
1 9799%-RP{ 100m 11 bond GBP 2033 1153 1179 100 4 112 6
3 375%~RP1 50m IL bond GBP 2032 791 626 740 397
1 3258%~RP1 50m IL bond GBP 2041 48 5 582 404 556
1 397%~RP1 50m IL bond GBP 2046 482 582 40 1 353
1 5803%~RPI 35m IL bond GBP 2056 285 40 1 229 382
1 435%-RP1 30m 1L bond GBP 2056 416 573 3353 543
I 556%~RPI 50m IL bond GBP 2056 435 575 351 547
I 5865%-RP1 50m H. bond GBP 2036 437 378 353 3530
1 591% -RP125m IL bond GBP 20356 218 288 176 274
1 662% -RPE100m I bond GBp 2036 897 1137 727 1101
1 815%-RP1 100m H. bond GBp 2036 94 3 1139 76 8 11053
1 847%-RPE 100m I bond GRP 2036 954 1164 778 110 8
1 3366% RPI30m  bond GBP 2043 510 580 423 554
1 7937% RPI 30m 1L bond GRBP 2049 358 376 439 553
1 585% RPI100m I bond GRP 2057 873 1113 705 1059
P 702% RPIS0m IL bend GRp 2057 45 0 561 3569 534
240% RPH70m 1T bond GRP 2039 738 75 1 671 714
1 66% RPI35m L bond GBp 20537 37 386 28 8 367
F97% RPI200m 1L loan GRBP 2016 2070 2285 20536 21753
I 61%-RPI50m IL loan GBP 2020 515 528 498 502
1 73%- RPI 30m IL loan GBP 2020 520 327 504 502
I 84% RPI350m IL loan GBP 2020 524 527 309 301
b 88%6- RPI 50m IL loan GBP 2020 327 525 310 499
i 90%- RPI 30m L loan GBP 2020 528 526 512 501
[ 93% RPI30m T loan B3P 2020 529 526 313 300
2 10% RPI30m IL loan GBP 2020 537 524 321 499
246% RP130m 11 loan GRP 2020 353 525 3539 499
['23% RPI30m Il bond GRP 2029 429 500 - -
6 125% 425m bond GBP 2015 4723 4309 4732 4320
0 24%- LIBOR (floating) 6 5m bond aGne 2013 653 67 65 63
1 30% LIBOR (floating) 5bn bend Iy 2017 410 378 388 333
| ong-teim bank borrowings - floating GBP 2011-12 199 9 2000 2499 2500
Commnussion for New lowns toan - fixed GBp 2033 499 304 509 306
Other debt 1ssued by joint ventures Vatious  Various 301 301 2537 2337
Shori-term bank borrowmngs - fixed GBP 2011 463 463 333 333
Other borrowings
Amounts owed to ultimate parent underaking GBP 2011 335 335 635 633
Bank overdrafis GBP 2011 84 84 453 453
50606 1 53444 51528 53374

Borrowings arc unsecured Funding raised w currencies other than sterhing 1s generally swapped 1o sterhng
to match funding costs to income and assets Abbreviaiions used i the above table are defined on page 78
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
17. Borrowings (continued)
Ihe following analvsis provides information about the contractual terms of the company s borrowings
2011 2010
Company £ fm
Non-current ltabilities
Bonds 660 8 686 6
660 8 686 6
Current habihties
Bank and other term borrowings 46 5 533
Bank overdraft 01 17 8
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 781 4 7637
Amounts owed to ultimate parent undertaking 355 633
8613 8983
1,522 1 1,584 9
lerms and debt repavment schedule
The principal economic wnns and condiions of outstanding borrowings wete as follows
Yedt of Fau Cantymg Fair Canving
Currency final value value value value
tepayvment 2011 2011 2010 2010
Company £m £m Lm Lm
Borrowimgs in fair vaiue hedge relationships
5 375% 330m bond LSD 2019 2250 242 4 2305 2501
4 33% 250m bond LSD 2018 155 4 1652 1379 169 6
Botrowings measured at amortised cost
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertahings GBP 2011 781 4 781 4 7637 763 7
Amounts owed to ultimate parent undettahing  GBP 2011 335 3353 635 635
Short-tertn bank botrowings ~ fised GBpe 2011 463 463 5333 533
0 24% LIBOR {floating) 6 5m bond Gip 2013 65 67 63 63
6 873% 400m bond LSD 2028 264 3 2465 266 8 260 4
Other borrowings
Bank overdiafis GBp 2011 01 01 17 8 17 8

Borrowings are unsecured

Notes

Curiency

GBP pound sterhing
ELR eure

Lsh Limited States dotlar
PY Japanese ven

[Index-hinhed debt

IL [ndex-Iinhed debt — Fhas debi s adjusted for movements in the Retanl Price Index wath reference to a base RPI cstabhished at
trade date
RPI The LK gencral indes of retai! prees (tor all items) as published by the Office for Naitonal Statstics (Jan 1987=100)
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18 Financial instruments

Risk management

The LLG board 15 responsible for treasury stratcgy and governance which 1s reviewed on an annual basis
The annual treasury sirategy review covers the group s funding hquidny capial imanagement and interest
rate management stiategies along with the delegation of specific funding and hedging authorities 1o the
treasuty committee

The treasury commitice a sub-commiitee of the LUG board, has responsibithty for setting and monitoring
the group s adheience to teasury policics along with oversight in relation to the activities of the treasury
function

Treasuy pohicics cover the hey financial rishs liquadity risk credit risk, market 1isk (inflation interest raie,
currency and electricty commodity price) and capiial nisk  1hese policies are reviewcd by the tieasury
comnutiee for approval on at least an annual basis, or following any major changes in tricasury opetations
and/ or financial market conditions

Day-to-day responsibihity for operational compliance with the treasury pohicies resis with the treasurer An
opetational compliance report s provided monthly to the treasury commuttce members which details the
status of the group s compliance with the treasury policies and highhghts the level of nisk against the
appropriate risk limits i place

The group s treasuty functien does not act as 4 profit centze and does not undertake any speculative nading
activity  Lhe group s exposure to tisk and 1ts objcctives, policies and proccsses for managing tish and the
methods used for measuting rish have not materially changed since the prior veal

Liquidity rish

L iguidity nish 15 the nisk that the @ioup will not have the appropriate level of hquid funding availabie o
meel 1is tequirementis Mamtaining an inadequae amount of hgudity and being unable to access the deb
mathets when requined exposes the group 10 the sk of insolvent nading  whilst mamtaimng eseess
Liquidity potentially exposes the group o the rish of @ highet cost of carty resuiting in an adverse economic
mpact

The gtoup looks 1o manage 11s tish by mamtaming hquidiny within a LLG board approved duation range
Ligmduy s actrvely monnioted by the group s ucasuty function and 15 1epotied monthly to the treasury
committee through the oparational comphiance report

At 31 March 2011 the group had £1 184 6 miliion {2010 £1 368 3 rullion) of available hquiditv which
compnised £235 2 mullion (2010 £301 5 mullion) cash and short-term depostts and £929 4 nulhion (2010
£1 066 8 mullion) of undrawn commuiced bontowing faciliies Short-term deposits mature within three
months and bank overdrafts are tepavable on demand

[he group and company hed available conuniited borrowmg facihities as follows

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

im £m Im fm

spiring within one vear 3750 100 0 2500 750
Expiring after onc year but in less than two years 2500 5250 1250 4000
Expiring after more than two vears 3200 5200 170 0 2700
lotal borrowing facithues 9450 1,145 0 5450 74590
Offsctting bank guaraniees (156) (78 2) (15 6) (78 2)
Undrawn barrowing facibities 9294 106638 5294 666 8
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18. Finanaal instruments (continued)

Laquidinty risk (continued)

These facihties ate arranged on a bilateral rather than a syndicated basis, which spreads the maturitics more
evenly over a longer tme period thereby reducing the refinancing rish by providing several rencwal points
rather than a large single financing pomnt In addition to the commutted facihuies available the group can
use 1ts €2 biliton curo-commercial paper programme to help 1 manage its liquidity position

Vaturity analysns

Concentrations of rish may ansc 1f large cash flows are concentiated within particular me periods 1he
maturity profile in the following table represents the forecast future contractual principal and wnterest cash
flows 1 relaton to group and company s financial habilines and dervatives on an undiscounted basis
Dervative cash flows have been shown net wherc there 1s a contractual agreement 1o settle on a net basis,
otherwise the cash flows arc shown gross

More
Adjust- b year 1-2 23 3-4 4-5  than$
Total'  ment® orless years  years  years  years  vears
Group £m Lm £m fm fm £m £m £m
At 31 March 2011
Bonds 161192 1663 1739 1918 1690 5950 88232
Bank and other term
borrowings 13621 1312 174 4 337 246 207 11663
Amounts owed to ulumate
pareni undertaking 335 3553 - - - -
Adjustment o cativing
value'” (63704) (63704)
Mnancial liabibties
excluding davauves 33444 (63704) 3310 5485 2275 1936 6247 99897
Detivatives
Pavable 10859 898 6Y 7 8035 528 474 7437
Reccivable (14397 (116 4y (1016) (1432) (880) (566) (9319)
Adjusiment 1o cartying
value™® 735 735
Dervatives — net assets (280 3) 733 (266) (319 (47 (332) (92) (i1862)
Viore
Adjusi- 1 vear 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-3  than3
fotal™  ment'™  orlcss  vears  yvears  vears  vears  vedrs
Group fm {m {m £m £m £m fm Lm
At 31 March 2010
Bonds 101939 167 1 1679 1752 1818 1700 93219
Banhk and other term
borrowings 18723 203 4 893 196 3 419 377 15037
Amounts owed to ulumate
parcnt undertaking 635 635 - - - - -
Adjustment to carrying
value'® (65923) (63923)
Financial habilities
encluding denivatives 55374 (63923) 4340 2572 3715 2337 2077106256
Derivanves
Payable 1,252°3 1569 74 8 68 6 823 370 8129
Receivable (1,377 3) (1399) (993) (932) (1421) (B83)10143)
Adjustment to carrying
value™ 561 3610
Dervatives — net assets (2687 561 P70 (247 (246) (598) (313) (201 4)
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18. Financial instruments (continued)
Maturity analysis (continued)
More
Adjust- | vear -2 2-3 34 4.5 than 3
Total mem®™ orless wvears  years  years  ycars  years
Company £m £m Im £m £m £in £m fm
At 31 Viarch 2011
Bonds 1,082 8 362 430 366 366 367 8937
Bank and other term borrowings 46 4 46 4 - - - - -
Amounts owed 1o ultimate
parcni undertaking 3533 335 - - - - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary
undertakings 781 4 781 4 - - - - -

Adjustment 1o canving value'® (422 0) (422 0)

Tnancial habihties
excluding derivatives 13221 (4220) 8975 430 366 366 367 8937

Derivatives

Pavable 3100 405 89 14 4 lao 91 2205
Reccivable (403 9) (336)  (190) (303) (119 (120) (2369)
Adjustment to canying valuc®! 100 100
Dermatives — net assets (85 9) 100 (30 (101 (361D 47 29y (364)
More
Adjusi- | vear -2 23 3-4 4-3  than 3
Towl™ munt™  or less vears vears Veats VOedls o vedls
Company £m £m fm £m fim Lm Lm Lm
A1 31 Maich 2010
Boads 11451 381 382 44 7 378 377 9486
Bank and othet term bortowmes 7t 1 711 - - - - -
Amounts owed to ulumate
parent undeitaking 63 3 633 - - - - -
Amounts owced to subsidiary
undertahings 7637 7637 - - - - -

Adjustment to cattving value™ (458 3) (458 3)

Fiancial hiabihities
ovcluding dervatves

5849 (4583} 9364 582 447 378 377 9486

Denvatives

Pavable 2926 24 4 63 97 104 93 2323
Recervable (416 7) (399) (199 (199 (313) (¥123) (2752)
Adjustiment 1o carrying valuc™ 165 165

Dervatines — net assety (107 6) 163 (153 (i36) (102y @1 30 4o0h
Notes

(1) Torceast futare cash flows are caleelaud where apphicable uubising forw ard interest raws based upon the interest e ironment
al yvear end and are theretore suscepueble to changes 1in market conditions For mndsv-hinked debt 1t has been assumed that RPI
will be 2 65 per cent over the life of cach bond

(2) The carmving value of debt 1s calculated following various methods in accordance with 1AS 39 Financial Instruments
Recogmuon and Muaserement and therefore this adjustment reconailes tht undiscounted forecast future cash tlows 10 the
carry ing value of debtin the statement of financial position

81




Lnued Lulines PLC
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18. Financial insta uments (continued)

Credit rish

Credit nisk 1s the nisk thai financial loss anses from the falluie of 4 customer or counierparty 10 mect 1s
obligations under a contract It arises principally from trade finance (the supply of services 1o the public
and other busimesses) and treasury activities (the depositing of cash and holding of derivative and foreign
cxchange mstruments) The group and company do not beheve they are exposed 1o any matenal
concentrations of credit 115k

The group manages its rish from trade finance through the effective management of customer relationships

Concentrations of credit nish with respect to trade receivables are imited due to the group s customer base
consisting of a large number of unrelated houscholds and businesses  The Water Indusuty Act 1991 (as
amended by the Water Industry Act 1999) prohibits the disconnection of a water supply and the hmiting of
supply with the mtention of enforcing payment for certain premises nciuding domestic dwelimgs

However, allowance 15 made by the water regulator 1n the price hiunits a1 each price review for a proportion
of debt deemed 10 be 1riecoverable Considering the above the directors beheve there 1s no further credn
risk ptovision iequited 1n excess of the allowance for doubtfut receivables

The gioup manages s tish {lom ireasury activities by establishing a total credit lumt by counterparty
which 1s COMPrises a counterpaity credit imut and an additional settlement himit 10 cover mnird ddy gross
seitlement cash flows In addition potential derivative evposure limus ate also established 1o tahe account
of potenuat future exposure which may arise undar denvative tansactions  [hese himits atc caleulated by
reference to a measure of capual and crednt 1atngs of the individual counterparties and are subject 1o 4
mavimum single counterparty hmit A conuel mechamism to trigger a review of speaific counterparty
limits wrespective of credit ratng action 15 1 place  This entails datly monuoring of counterparty credit
default swap levels andfor share price volaudity Credit exposure 1s monitored daily by the group s treasury
function and 15 tepotted monthly to the ttcasury comnutice through the opetanonat compliance report

Al 31 March the masvimum esposute 1o credit nsh for the group and company 15 1epresented by the
cartving amownt of each financiad asset 1 the statement of financial position

Group Companv
2011 2010 201} 2010
£m £fm £m £m

Cash and short-term deposits
{sce notc 16) 255 3005 2370 2393

[1ade and other rcceivables

(sec note 15) 1798 7 20272 168206 16368
Investiments (sce note 13) 253 77 - -
Dervative finangial mstruments 36353 3068 99 | 107 8
242153 20187 19839

b
~J

4

|
[

Included within tiade and othes receivables for group aie amounts owed by the ulimaic parent undertahing

of £1 301 9 mullion (2010 £1 519 7 milhion)

I he credil exposute on denvatives 1s disclosed gross of any collateral held As at 31 March 2011 the group

P e

and company held £46 3 mullion (2010 £33 3
msirtiments

milhon) as coltateral in relaton to denvauve {inancial
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

18. Financial instruments (continued)

Vlarket rivk

Market nsh 1s the nsk that movements 1n marhet rates including inflanon nterest rates foreign exchange
rates and electneity commodity prices will result in cconomic losses to the group

The group s exposure to market rishs primarily result from ns finaneing arrangements and the economic
teturn which 1t 15 allowed on the regulatory capital vaiue (RCV)

The group uses a variety of financial mstruments, inrcluding derivatives, 1 order to manage the exposure to
these t1sks As at the reporting date thete weie no financial mstrumenis i place 1n relation 1o electricity
commodity prices

Inflation risk

The group earns an economtrc return on 11is RCY comprising a real return through revenues and an inflation
retutn as an uplift 1o 1s RCV To the evtent that nominal debt liabilities finance a piropartion of the RCV,
there 1s an asset hability imsmatch which potentially exposes the group to the sk of economic loss where
actual inflation 1s lower than that implicitly locked i through norunal debt

Ihe group’s index-linked borrowings which are hinked to RPI nflation form an economic hedge of the
group s regulatory assets which are also inked to RPIinflation  In particular index-linked debt delivers a
cash flow benefit compated 1o nomumal debt as the mflation adjustment on the sndex-hinked Labilities 15 a
defeired cash flow unul the matunity of cach financial imsttument providing 4 better match 1o the inflation
adjustment on the regulated assets, which s iecogmised as a non-cash uplifi 1o the RCV

Ihe group scehs to manage this rish by identifving oppoitunities to merease the economi hedge currently
in place subject to relative value  Inflauon nisk 15 teported monthly to the treasuty comnutice m the
opctationdl compliance report

Fhe carrving valuc of index-hoked debt held by the group 1s as follows

2011 2010
fm fm
Indes-linked debt 22157 20627

Sensitivaty analysis

As required by [FRS 7 the sensuivity analvsis has been prepared on the basis of the amount of mdoy-
linked debt in place as at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010 1espectively As a tesult this analysis 1clates
to the positton at the reporting date and 1s not indiwative of the vears then ended as these factors would
have vaned throughout the vcar  The following wable detals the sensitiviiv of profit before tavation fo
changes inthe RPU on the group s mdes-linked borrowimngs

2011 2010
Group £m Im
Impact on profit before taxation and equity
One per cent increase 1in RPI (22 6) (21 1)
One per cent decrease in RP 226 211

Bracheis denote 2 reduction in profit

This table cxcludes the hedgng aspect of the group s regulatory assets which being fived assets arc not
financial assets as defined by IAS 32 and are tvpically held at cost or deemed cost less accumulated
deptreciation on the consolidated statement of financial pesition
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18. Finanaal instruments (continued)
Senswtivity analyvsis (continued)

The analysis assumes a one per cent change 1n RPI having a corresponding one per cent impacl on ihs
posttion over a twelve month period Tt should be noted, however, that there 1s a time lag by which curtem
RPI changes impact on the mcome statement and the analysis does net incorporate this factor  The
portfolio of index-linked debt 1s etther calculated on a three or eighi month lag basis  Therefore at the
repertng date the index-hnhed nterest and principal adjustments nmpacting the income statement are fixed
and based upon the annual RPI change either three or eight months earher

The company has no material exposure 1o inflation risk

Interest rate rish

The group s fined rate bortowings are exposed 1o a nish of change in therr fair value duc to changes n
miterest rates  T'he group s floaung taie borrowings aie cxposed to a risk of change in interest cash flows
due to changes 1n interest rates [he group uses mterest rate swap contiacts to hedge these eaposurces,
wherc appropridie

The group s policy 1s to stiuncture debt 1n a way that best matches s undetlying asscts and cash flows The
2roup carns an cconomic teturn on 1ts RCV compnising a real return through revenues determined by the
real cost of capital fined by the regulator for each five-year regulaiory pricing period and an nflation
retuin as an uplift 1o 11s RCV

Ihe prefetied form of debt thetefore 1s sietling index-lmked debt which ineurs fived mterest, in real tams
and forms a natural hedge of regulatory assets and cash flows

Whete convenuondl fong-term debt 1s taised in a fived-tate form to mdanage exposure to long-term intercst
ratcs the debi 1s generaliv swapped at neeption to eredte d floating 1awe habilny for the term ol the habiluy
thiough the use of mtacst tate swaps  These msuuments are tvpically designated within ¢ fan value
accountmg hedge

F'o manage the exposure 1o medium-ietm intetest rates the group has fixed interest costs for 4 substantial
proportion of the group s net debt for the dutaiion of the current five-year regulatory pricing period  The
group scchs Lo manage ns rnish by mamtaining 1ts interest tate exposure within 2 LLG board approved
range Intetest tate rish s icported monthly to the treasury committee thtough the opaational compliance
report

Sensitivity analysis

As required bv IPRS 7 | manaial Instuments Iisclosures  the sensiividy analvsis has been prepared on
the basis of the amount of net debt and the mterest 1ate hedge posiions in place at the reporting date As a
result this analysis s not indicative of the vears then ended as these factors would have vanced throughout
the veat

The following assumpuens were made i calculating the interest sensitivity analysts

e fair value hedge relattonships are fully effective
s borrowings designated at fair value through profit or loss are cffectively hedged by associated swaps

e the maw far value sensitivity 1o interest rates mn the statement of financial postiion (excluding the
effect of accrued interest) 1s in relation to the regulatory swaps which swap the majority of the floating
rale exposure 1o fixed rate for the five-year regulatory period,

» cash flow sensitivity m the statement of financial position to ntciest rates 1s calculated on floatg
interest rate net debt

e the sensiivity excludes the impact of interest rates on post-retirement obligauons,
s management have assessed one perceni as a reasonably possible movement in UK interest rates and

* all other factors are held constant
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18. Financial instruments (continued)

Sensttivity analvas (continued)

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £in fm im

Impact on profit before tavation and equity
| per cent increase 1 interest rate 610 759 (237 98
| per cent decrease 1n interest rate (63 0) (80 9) 262 110

Brackets denote e reduction in profit

The exposue largely relates 1o the fan value exposure on the group’s fived rate finanemng which provides a
partial cconomie hedge that 1s aligned 10 the five-year revenue cash flows allowed by the regulator

Repricing analysis

Ihe following tables categorise the group and company s borrowings derivanves and cash deposits on the
basis of when they teprice or 1f carlier, mature The 1epricing analysis demonstrates the group and
company s exposure to {loating interest rate risk

More
1 year 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-3 than 3
CGroup Total or less veats yedars vears Vedrs vears
At 31 March 2041 Im fm £m {m im £m fm
Borrowings in fair value hedge
relationships
"ined rate msituments 20178 - - - - - L0178
Ptfeet of swaps -7y - - - - (24817 8)
20178 2078 - __ - - - ___ =
Borrowings designated at fair
value through the profit or loss
I 1ved rate insttuments 286 8 - - 225 - - 264 5
Fficct of swaps - 28638 - (22 3) - - (2043)
_2868 2868 - - _ - __ ___=
Borrowings measured at
amortised cost
Fined rate msiruments 5076 46 6 03 03 03 4313 28 8
Iloaung rate mstiuments 2850 2850 - - - - -
Index-Tinked msttuments 22037 22157 - - s -
30063 25433 053 03 05 43153 288
IMficct of a fived hedge for the
teim of the regulatory pentod o - (1831 3) - - 13813 43500 -
lotal external borrowings 53109 30186 03 03 13816 8815 288
Amoumns owed 1o uliimate
parent underiaking 335 333 - - I
Total barrowings 53444 30521 03 03 13816 8813 28 8
Cash and short-term deposits (2352) (2552) - - - - -
et borrowings 50802 27969 05 3 13816 3813 288
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18 Finanewstl instruments (continued)
Repricing analvsis (continued)
More
1 year 1-2 2-5 3-4 4-3 than 3
Group lotal or less yeats years years yedrs yecals
At 31 March 2010 fm Em £m £m Lm £m £m
Borrowings in hedge
relationships
Fived rate mstruments 20367 - - - - - 20367
Effect of swaps - 20367 - - - - (20367
20367 20367 - - - - -
Borrowings designated at fair
value through the profit or loss
Fived rate instrumenis 2876 - - - 208 - 266 8
Effect of swaps - 2876 - - (20 8) - (266 8)
287 6 287 6 - - - - -
Bortowings measured at
amortised cost
Fixed rate instruments 3989 356 22 43 26 31 331
Floating :ate instruments 488 0 488 0 - - - - -
[ndes-hinked instruments 20627 20627 - - -
31496 26063 22 43 26 31 3311
1 ffect of a fined hedge for the
teim of the regulatory penod - (1813 - - - 13813 4500
fotal external borrowings 54739 309935 22 43 26 13844 981 1
Amounts owed o ulumate
parcnt undetiaking 635 635 - - _ - -
Lotal borrowings 33374 31628 12 43 26 13844 9811
Cash and short-term deposns (30 §=2) (301 3) - - - - -
Net borrowimos 32359 28013 22 43 26 13844 981 1
o S o o -_\1()!—(.:
| year 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-3 than 3
lotal or fess vears vears vears yedrs vears
Company £m £m £m Em £m £m £
AL 31 March 2011
Borrowings in hedge
relationships
Iived rate mnstuments 407 6 - - - - - 4076
I'ffeet of swaps - 76 - - - - (4076)
4076 4076 - - - i -
Bortowings measured at
amoz tised cost
Fived rate mstruments 202 8 463 - - - - 240 3
Floating rate instruments B 8 68 - - - -
2996 531 - - - - 2463
lotal external borrowings 072 4607 - - - - 2465
Amounts owed o subsidiary
undertakings measured at
amoriised cost 7814 7814 - - - - -
Amounts owed to ultimate
parent undertaking 335 335 - - - - -
Effect of a fixed hedge with a
subsidiary underntahing - 400 0 - - (4000) - -
lotal borrowings 15224 1 6756 - - (4000) - 2465
Cash and short-term deposits (2370) (2370) - - - - -
et borrowings 1,285 1 11,4386 - - (4000) - 2465
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I8 Financial instruments (continued)
Repricing analysis (continued)
More
1 vear 1-2 2-3 53-4 4-5 than 5
lotal or lcss vears years years vears years
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 Vlarch 2010
Borrowings in hedge
relationships
Fived rate msiruments 4197 - - - - - 4197
Effect of swaps - 4197 - - - - @187
4197 4197 - - - - -
Borrowings measured at
amortsed cost
Fined 1ate istruments 3137 533 - - - - 260 4
Flodating 1dte mstruments 243 243 - - - - -
3380 776 - - - - 2604
F'otal external borrowings 7577 4973 - - - - 2604
Amounts owed 1o subsidiary
undertahings measued at
amortised cost 7637 765 7 - - - - -
Amounts owed to ulumate
parent undertahing 035 63 5 - - - - -
Total borrowings 135849 13243 - - - 260 4
Cash and short-term deposits (2393) (2393) -t s -
et bortowings 13456 10852 - - - - 260 4

Currency r1ish

Cunency exposize prncipelly arises m respect of funding raised i foteign cutrencies Other less matertal
curtency exposures arise {rom overseas operalions mvestments n foreign currency denominated asscls and
irading with foreign supphiers

Co mdnage exposure o cutiehey 1ates forcign cuntency debt 15 hedged into sterling through the usc of
cross cunteney swaps and these are ivpically designated within @ fan value accounting hedge Where
maictial forergn curtency invesimenis and straicgic cash flows arising from the group s overseas activilies
are hedged nto sterhing through the loreign exchange market and opetational cash flows arc hedged at the
disctetion of the ucasuret

[ he group seehs to manage 1is rish by maintaming currency exposute within LLG boatd approved himits
Curtency tish o telation to foreign currency denonunated financial mstraments 1s repotied monthly to the
treasy committee through the operdiional comphiance repoert

The group and company have no material net exposure 1o moevements 1 CUITency rates
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18 Financial instruments (continued)

Capital risk management

Capnal rish measures whether the gioup 1s adequately cepitalised and financially solvent FPhe group s
objecuve when managing capual 1s to maintain a capital structure that enables its prumary subsidiary
Lnned LUnhues Water PLC to retam a credit rating of A3 from Moody s Investors Services (Moody §)
which the group believes best nurrors the Water Services Regulation Authority s {Ofwat) assumptions in
relation to caprial structure The strategy of targeling a credit raung of A3 has been consistently maintained
since 2007

One of Ofwat s primary duties 1s to cnsure that water compames are able 1o finance then functions, n
particular by sccuring a reasonable retuin on therr capial  Therefore, murroring Ofwat s assumptions for
crednt ratings (and henee capual siructure) should safeguard the group s ability to earn a reasonable return
on Its capital, sccurmg access te finance at a recasonable cost and enabling the group to centinue as a going
concern In order to provide retutns for sharcholders and credit nvestors, and benefits for othet
stakeholders

In otder to mamtam a credit 1ating of A3 the group needs to manage s capital sttucture with reference o
the ratings methodology and measwies used by Moody s The ratings methodology 1s normally based upon
a number of key ratios (such as RCV gearing and adjusted mterest cover) and threshold levels as updated
and published fiom time 1o time by Voody s

[he group looks to manage 1ts 11sh by mantaining the televant hey financial rattos used by the aeditraung
agencies 1o detuimine & corporate s ciedit rating, within the thiesholds approved by the LLG board
Capital 115k 55 reporied monthly to the treaswry commiitee thiough the opetational compliance icport

Further detail on the precise measuies and methodologies used to assess water companies  ciedin tatings
can be found in the methodology papers pubhished by the 1ating agencies
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18 Financial instruments (continued)

Farir v alues

The far values of financial assets and habibties together with the cartying amounts shown n the stalement
of financial position are as follows
Restated  Restated

Fair Carrving Fair Carrving
value value value vdlue
2011 2011 2010 2010
Group £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Non-current assety
Available for sale investments 14 14 69 69
Loans and 1cceivables
Investments 09 09 08 08
Irade and other receivables - - 563 565
Derrvative financial instruments
Fair value hedge derivatives — swaps 2800 2800 295 8 29338
teld for trading derivauves — swaps'™ 835 833 84 7 847
Current assets
[.oans and tcccivables
Trade and other receivables 17987 17987 19707 19707
Cash and shoit-tanm depostts 2552 2552 3015 3015
Dernvative financial instiuments
ticld for ading detivatives - swaps'™ 20 20 183 183

Financial habihitics

Non-current habilites

‘T'tade and other pavablos dl amortised cost (249 8) (2498) (1829) (182 %
Bonowmgs

Financial habiltties 1 hedged relationships

Fair value hedge (1941 1) (20178) (19412) (2036 7)
Pinancial habihities designated at fau value

through profit o1 losa (286 8) (2868) (2876) (287¢)
Other financial habihties {2727 4) (2899 0) (2694 3) (2983 6)

(1955 3) (5203 6) (4923 3) (53079)

Dervatve financial insttuments

Fan value hedge derivatives - swaps 23 (23) 30 M
Held for tradimg detivauves  swaps'? (823 (823) (97 3) (973
Current habilities

“Trade and other pavablis at amortised cost C(4330) @330) (3963) (396 3)
Borrowings

Oiher financial liabilitics (140 8) (1408) (22935 (2295)
Dervatve financial instruments

Held for trading dertvatives — swapsm (0 4} (0 ) (23 8) 23 8)
Adjusiment for accrued interest'” 387 - 40 8 -

(3403 7) (3690 7) (32863) (3,711 7)

Notes

(1) Fair values quotcd mcluds accrued micrest of £38 7 mnlleon (2010 £40 8§ muthon) in respect of the associatud borrowings This
accrued interest 15 also ineluded n the tair value of trade and other pavables The impact on the tetal fawr value of financial
instruments has been remosod 1nthe adjustment for accrued interest

(2) Dernvauves forming an economic hedge of the currency expostre on borrowings mciuded 1n these balances were £85 3 million
(2010 £100 3 milhon)
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18 Financial instruments {continued)
Fair values (continued)

In order 10 deternune the fair values i the table above all borrowings and denvatives are valued using a
discounted cash flow valuanon modcl as described within the accounung policies on pages 41 to 53 In
determimning fair values assumplions are made with regard to credit spreads based upon indicative pricing data

In respect of the total change during the year in the fair value of financial habilitics designated at fair value
through profit or loss for continuing operations of £0 8 nuilion gan (2010 £7 9 mulhion loss) £4 | mitlion loss
(2010 £48 2 million loss) 1s atinibutable to changes n own credit nish The cumulative amount recogrised in the
income statement due to changes in credit spread was £54 9 mulhon profit (2010 £59 0 mathon profit) lhe
difference between the carrving amount and the amount contracted te setile on maturily was a cdrrying amount
mcrease of £62 6 milhion (2010 a carrying amount increase of £63 4 midlion)

Fan Carrying Fau Cannymg
value value value value
2011 2011 2010 2010
Companv fm £m £ £m
Financial assets
Noun-current assefs
Detivative {inancial insttwinents
Fan vdalue hedge detivatives ~ swaps 99 | 99 | 078 1078
Current assety
{ oans and recewvables i 68206 1,682 6 1 656 8 1 6368
Cash and short-tetm deposits 2370 2370 2593 2393
Finanaial habilities
Non-current habilities
Botrowings
Fimancial labithuies n hedged 1elationships
Fan value hedge (380 (407 6) (388 4) («1197)
Other financial habihies @78 (2532)  (2753) (266 9)
__(6512)  (6608) __ (6617)  (6866)
Petivative financial instruments
Held for trading derivatives - swaps™ (12 8) (128) - -
Current iabtlities
I'rade and other pavables at amottised cost (L8C00Yy  (1800G)  (1683Y) () 6839)
Boiowmgs
Othet {inancial habihitics (861 5) (8613) (8983} (898 3)
Derivative financial msitements
Held for trading derivauves - swaps 04 (04) (02) (02
Adjustment for acciued interest't ____ 62 - 63 T
(13008 (1316 6) (12537 (1285 1)
Notes T -

(1) Fair values quoted include acerued micnst of £6 2 nulhon (2010 £6 3 nullion) in respect of the assouated borrosangs Fhis
accrucd interest i also meduded i the tar value of trade and other payrables The impact on the total tar value of financial
instruments has boen emoved snthe adjustment for acerued iterest

(2} Includes ameunts owed 10 subsidian undertakings of £12 8 million (2010 £l nullion)

The following tables provide an analvsis of financizl instrumenms that are measured subsequent to inual
recognition at fair value grouped into levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable

o Level | fair value measurements ate those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) i active markets
for 1dentical assets or habiliues,

e lLevel 2 fawr value measuremenis are those derived from nputs other than quoted prices included
withmn level | that are observable for the asset or habihty either divectly (1 ¢ 4s prices) or indirectly
(1 ¢ derved from prices) and

¢ Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that inciude inputs for
the asset or hiabihity that are not based upon observable market data (unobservable)
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18. Financial instruments (continued)
Fair values (continued)
Group Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2011 £m im £m im
Available for sale financial asscts
Investments - 14 - 14
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivauve financial assets - 3653 - 3633
Financial llabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Detivative financial habilities - (85 0) - (83 0)
Financial iabilities designated as far value thiough profit or loss - (286 8) - (286 8)
- (5 1) - 10
Group Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total
2010 £m £m £m fm
Avatlable for sale finanaial assets
Investments - 69 - 69
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Detvanve financial asscis - 396 8 - 396 8
Finanaal habihities at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial Labilitics - (128 1) - (128 1)
Fmancial habilities designated as fan value thiough profit or loss - (287 0) - (287 6)
- (12m - (1203
Companv level i Level2  Tewvel3d 1otal
20EL Lm £in fm £m
Finanaial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Dernvative financial assets - 99 | - 99 1
Finanaial habiities at fane value through profit o1 loss
Dernvatve financial habilities - (13 2) - (i32)
- 859 - 859
Company lTevel T level2  fevel3 lotal
2010 fm Lm im £m
Financial assets at {air value through profit or loss
Dervative findanctal assets - 107 8 - 107 8
Financual habities at fair value through profit or loss
Dervative financial habihities - (0 2) - (02)
- 1076 - 1076

T here were no transfcors between level 1 and 2 duning the vear
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19. Retirement benefit obligations

I he group participaies m a number of pension schemes principatly in the Liited Kingdom  The 1wo major
schemes ate funded defined benelit schemes — the United Lulites Pension Scheme (LU PS) and the Lnited
Lulies PLC Group of the Llecticity Supply Pension Scheme (ESPS) both of which are closed 1o new
emplovees The assets of these schemes are held 1 trust funds independent of the group s finances 1he
sroup no longer participaies m the Northern Gas Networks Pension Scheme (NGNPS) following the
disposal of the vast majority of 11s non-regulated activiies (sec note 8)

The last actuarial valuations of LUPS and ESPS were cartied out as at 31 Maich 2010 These valuations
have been updated to take account of the requirements of [AS 19 Employee Benefits n order to assess
the position at 31 March 2011 by projecung forward from the dates of the respective valuations and have
been petformed by an independent actuary Viercer Linied

LUPS has entered mto an mflatton mechamsm with the company as pait of the funding and de-tisking
meastites that have tahen place duting the year ‘The mechanmism 1s based upon a long-term fixed inflabon
assumpuion for the scheme valuation of 2 73 per cent per annum [n periods when actuat inflation 1s higher
than 2 75 per cent the company witl make additional contributions (simoothed over a five-year petiod) 1n
respect of the imcteased liabilinies caused by highar mflaien Given the company, via 1s regulated capital
sttuctute has a natuial hedge against inflation, management believes that this 1s an appropnate stiuctue to
have put in place Fhis has been entered mto as part of a de-rishing mandate agieed with the Pension
Trusice micluding reducing equitv and interest raie tishs and 15 aimed at 1educmg the volaulity i fuune
funding and contiibutions Whilst this reduces the pension scheme fundmg risk at should be noted that it
witll not necessatily have a sumilar impact on the IAS 19 basis pension disclosutes 1AS 19 assumpuons are
bascd upon current matket expectations and will temam subject to market rclated inflation rates at future
reporting dates 1t should thuetore be noted in particular that any disclosed IAS 19 mateual ncreases 1o
market related mflation capectations will continue 10 negatively impact the disclosed IAS 19 basis position

The groep made ol contributions of £133 0 nulhon (2010 L44 1 mulhion) to 1ts pension schemes for the
vear ended 31 March 2011 Lintad Lulines Watar PLC having tecommenced company contributtons om
I Aptl 2010 As previcusly iepotied on 31 Mairch 20035 the group made lump sum payments of L2160
mullion and £103 5 million to LLPS and I'SPS respecuively  The payments were in lieu of the esimated
company contributions that were expected 10 have been pavable for defined benefit members over the {ive
vears from 1 Apuil 2005 Whilst some company contributions 1o LULPS and I'SPS resumed in respect of the
defined benefit members during 2008/09  sigmificamt clements of the company contnibution hohiday
following the lunp sum payments contnucd duning the vear ended 31 Madh 2010 The group also
operates a series of unfunded unregistered tetirement benefit schemes  lhe cost of the uniunded
unregasiered reurement benefit schemes 1s included n the wotal pension cost on a basis consistent with IAS
19 and ihe assumptions set out below

Included :n the contuibutions above the group made lump sum payments of £218 million and £100
mullion to FSPS and LUPS respectively during the year The payments weie m relayon to the sale of the
non-regulated businesses (sce note 8) The group also made lump sum pavinents of £0 8 mullion and 116 0
muthon to F'SPS and LLPS respectively m relation to the bulh transfer from the schemes 1o Welsh Water
Dvir Cymru s pension arrangements following the termination of the Welsh Water contract

The group also continucs 1o payv contrnbutons in respect of the defined contiibution members and insurance
premiums Overall the group expects 1o contribuie around £77 0 mulhion to 11s defined benefit schemes
the year ending 31 March 2012

Lhe company made total contributions of £62 | nullion (2010 £35 2 millton) to 11s pension schemes for the
vear ended 31 March 2011 Overall, the company expects to contribute around £23 § mulhien 1o s defined
benefit schemes in the vear ending 31 March 2012
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19. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

I'he total defined benefit pension expense from continuing operations for the year was £19 1 milhion (2010
restated £37 1 nulbon income) mcluding pension expense charged to operating profit of £15 3 million
(2010 restated £58 7 million mcome credied) which reflects curimlment gains ansing on amendment of
pension obligations of £m1] (2010 restated £87 3 million) and curtailment losses ansing on 1corganisdation
of £3 4 mullon (2010 £9 3 million) A pension obligation of £193 0 million 1s mcluded n ihe statement of
financial position at 31 March 2011 (2010 £271 3 million) Information about the pension arrangements
fot executive directots 1s contained n note 3

The crednt of £87 3 nullion offsetting the pension expense for the year ended 31 March 2010 arose as a
result of the amendment of pensions obligations (see pensions mformation 1 the business review on page
14) These included the mtroduction of a restriction on the rate of increase in pensionable pay for defined
benefit members of the ULPS and the LSPS  [his restiiction took effect on 31 March 2010 Changes to the
benefits accruing afier 31 March 2010 for the defined benefit members of the LLPS were also
mmplemented The impact of these changes 1s reflecied n the current service cost element of the pension
expensc for 2010/11

The main financial assumptions used by the actuary to calculate the defined benefit obligatons of LUPS
and ESPS were as foliows

2011 2010
% ] A

Group and Company
Discount rate 530 370
Expeeted retum on assets — LLPS 365 620
Expected return on assets — | SPS 610 630
Pensionable salary growth 335 330
Pcnsion incieases 333 350
Price inflauon 333 330

The mam financial assumpuions used by the actuary 1o caleulate the defined beneflv obliganons of the
NGAPS prier 1o the date of disposal were as follows

2010
%

Group and Companmy
[Discount rate 570
Expected return on assets 6 10
Pensionable salary growth 430
Pension increases 330
Price inflaton 330

I'he current ife expectancies at age 60 underlying the value of the accrued habilities for the schemies are

2011 2010
vedrs vears
Group and Compam
Retired member - male 251 24 9
Nen-retired member - male 266 260
Retired member - female 2890 280
Non-retired member - female 304 287

Studies 1n the last five yvears have shown fasier rates of hfe expectancy improvement than had previously
been expected Studies have also illustrated that mortality rates vary sigmficanily according to the
demographics of the schemes members These factors have been taken into account in the hife
exvpectancies disclosed above and the calculation of the defined benefit obligations of the group
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19. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Al 31 March the fair value of the schemes asseis and habilines recogmised in the staicment of financial
posiiton were as follows

Schemes Schemes
asscts 2011 asscls 2010
% £m %o £m
Group
Equitics 341 585 1 4810 9178
Gilts 23 437 88 168 4
Bonds 46 6 8006 421 8050
Property - - 08 156
Other 16 8 2885 02 41
lotal fair vaiue of schemes assets 1000 17179 100 0 1,910 9
Preseni value of defined benefit obligauions (19129 (2182 2)
Net retirement benefit abligations (195 0y (271 3)
Schemes Scheines
A55E1S 2011 assels 2010
% £m % £in
Company
Fquitics 391 2407 3153 184 9
Glts 60 366 100 361
Bonds 42 3 260 5 386 139 2
Propenty - - - -
Othet 126 778 0 04
[otal fair value of schumes asscts 100 0 6136 1000 3606
Present value of defined bunefit obligations (667 7} (395 M
Net retirement benefit obhgations (32 ) (32

Fo develop the expected long-tetm rate of return on asset assumnpitons the group considered the curent
level of expected teiurns on rish-fice mvestments the histotical level of the rish premium associated with
the othcr asset classes in which the portfolo 1s invesicd and the expectations for futurc returns of cach asset
¢lass The expecied retnn for each asset class was then weighted based upon the actual asset allocation to
develop the expecied long-lerm rate of return on asset assumptions for the pottfoho  The group s aciual
retirn on the schemes  assets was 4 gamn of £134 9 nulhion (2010 £459 3 nullion) and the company s
actual 1etum on the schemes asscis was a gamn of £32 9 mullon (2010 £87 9 milhion gam)

Lhe assets as at 31 Viarch 2011 1 respect of the LULPS included in the breakdown above have been
allocated to cach asset class based upon the return the assets are cvpected 1o achieve and not bascd upon
the physical assets held  The reason for this bemg that dunng the year to 31 Viarch 2011 the LUPS enieted
Mo a varewv of derivative transdactions in order 1o change the reiurn charactenstics of the physicdl asscis
held and in order 1o reduce undesirable market and habihty rnisks

The Other element of the portfolio 1s set aside for collateral purposcs hinked to the denvative contracts
entered into during the vear as described above The collateral portfolio tn addition to providing sufficient
lquidity 10 maintan the derivative transactions, 15 expected to achieve a return in excess of [ IBOR
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19. Retirement benefit obhigations (continued)
Vovements 1n the present value of the defined benefit obligations arc as {ollows
Group Company
2041 2010 2011 2010
£m £im £m £m
At the start of the year (2,182 2) (1,696 9) (393 0) (303 2)
Interest cost on schemes obligations (112 6) (117 3) Gin (207}
Actuarial losses (70 3) (490 6) (34 6) (88 9)
Curtailments/seitlements
drISINg On reot ganisalion 3921 (17 2) (0 2) o7
ansing on amendment of pension obligations - 9253 29 54
Viember contributions (7hH (8 8) (0 6) (0 3)
Benefits paid 828 851 239 163
Curtent serviee cost (i54) (26 0) (rn 07N
Past service cost - 28) - 02)
Business combinations - - {233 9) -
At the cnd of the year (o129 (2,182 2) (667 7) (393 0)

At 31 March 2011 £7 6 milhion (2010 £7 2 nullion) of the group s defined benefit obligauons related to
unfunded unregisiered benefit plans and £7 6 milhon (2010 £7 2 mullion) of the company s defined
benefit obligations related to unfunded, unregistered benefit plans

Movements 1 the tan value of the schemes asscts were as follows

Group Company

2011 20100 2011 2010

tm im im tin

At the stari of the veat 19109 1 483 8 360 6 2835
Expected raurn on schemes  assets 109 1 94 1 309 176
Actuaiial gains 258 3652 20 703
Momber contributions 71 88 06 053
Benefits paid (82 8) (85 1) 239 {16 3)
Curtailinenis/scttlements Aiising on 1eerganisalion (3852 - (35) -
Company contributtons 1330 441 621 32
Business combinations - - 188 8 -
At the end of the year 17179 19109 6136 3606
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

19. Retirement benefit obhgations (continued)

The net pension {expense)/mcome before tavaiion recognised i the income statement mn respect of the
defined benefit schemes 1s summanised as follows

Group Company
Restated
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m
Continuing operaony
Current service cost (11 9) (16 3) (1n ()]
Curtallments/settlements
arising on reorganisation (34 (93) (479 "N
atising on amendment of pension obligations - 873 - 54
Past service cost - (2 8) - (032)
Pension (expense)/income {charged)/credited
to operating profit (sec note 4) (15 3) 587 (49 0) 38
Expected return on schemes  asscts 102 2 838 309 176
Interest on schemes obligations {106 Q) (105 4) Gl 207
Pension evpense ¢harged 1o investment
imcome and finance expease (sce note 6) 38 (216) (02 GhH
Net pension (expenseYincome (charged)/
credited before tavation (19 H 371 (49 2) 07

Defined benefit pension costs excluding pension schemes cntallment gams arising on amendment of
pensien obligatiens and restructuning costs included within employvee benefit expense of £11 9 mullion
{2010 restated £19 3 muthon) comprisc curient service costs and past service costs otal post-employment
buncfits exvpense cacluding pension schemes curlaiiment 241ns arlsing on amendment of punsion
obligations and testruciuning costs chatged 10 operaung profit of €17 i mulhion (2010 1estated £34 8
million) comprise the defined benefit costs described above of £11 9 mulhon (2010 restated £19 3 muthon)
and defined conuibution pension costs of £3 2 million (2010 testated £33 nulhon)

Company deflined benefit pension costs excluding pension schemes curtatiment gams ansmg on
amendment of pension obligations and restructuting costs included wihin amployee benefit cxpense of
€11 milhon (2010 £0 9 million) comprise cutient seivice cosis and past service costs Total company
post-cmployment benefits expense excluding pension schemes curtaiiment gams arising on amendment of
pension obligaiions and restructuring costs charged 1o operating profit of £2 5 milhion (2010 £3 2 mithon)
comptise the defined benefit costs deseribed above of L1 1 nutlion (2010 £0 9 nulhon) and defined
comribution pension costs of £1 4 mellion (2010 £2 3 muilion}

Curtailments atising on 1coiganisatien of £2 7 milhon (2010 restated L9 3 nulbion) are mcluded within
1estructuring cosis within ioial emplovee bene fits expense and £0 7 milion (2010 £nil) are included within
othet 1e01ganisdation costs
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19 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)
Group
2011 2010
£m £m
Doscontinned operations )
Current service cost (33) (95)
Curtailments/sctilemenis
arising on reorganisation 50 (79
arising on amendment of pension obligations - 50
Pension expense charged to operating profit {see note 4) (03) (124)
Expecled return on schemes asscls 69 103
nterest on schemes obligations (6 6) (119
IPenston income/(expense} credited/(charged) to imvestment
income and finance expense (see note 6) 03 (16)
Curtailment/scitiement anismg on disposal and credited o
profii on disposal of discontinued operations (sec note 8) 73 -
Net pension income/{evpense) credited/
(charged) before tavation 71 (14 0)

Linplovee 1elated pension costs have been charged to operating profit within discontinued operations
where the emploving cenuty has been mcluded as a  discontimued operation Pension  wteresi
incomef(expense) has been meluded within mvestmnent income and finance cxpense where the underlyng
pension obligation has been disposed of duning the vear Curtailments/seitlements arising on the wansfer of
emplovees penston obligations with busimesses disposcd of duting the year are included within the profit
on dispasdal of discontinued oparations

Ihe teconaihiation of the openmg and closing statement of {inancial position balances 18 as foliows

Group Companv

2011 2010 2011 2010

fm fm £m tm

At the stait of the vea (271 3) (215 1) (324 (197
(I xpense)/meome recognised 1 the income

stdicment - conlinuing operdtions (raon 374 (49 2) 07
Income/(expense) recogmised 1 the coime

Statement - discontinued operdations 71 (14 0) - -

Contributions pard 1330 44 1 62 | 52

Aciuarial losses gross of 1axation (4 7} {(1254) (32 6) {18 6)

Atthe end of the year (193 0) (271 3) (32 ) (324

Adtuarial gains and losses are recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive income At 31 March
2011 a cumulative pre-tasation loss of £263 2 million (2010 £220 5 million) had been recorded directly n
the statement of comprechensive income and a cumulative toss of £119 4 milhon (2010 £86 8 mullien) for
the company had been recorded direcily in the statement of comprehensive income
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19 Retirement benefit obhgations (continued)

The hustory of the schemes for the current and priot vears 15 as follows

201t 2010 2009 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m £m
Group
Present value of defined benefis obligations (1,9129) (21822) (1,696 9) (1,964 4) (28353 3)
Fair value of schemes assets 1,7179 1,9109 14838 11,8632 28966
et reurement benefit (obhgations)/surplus (1950 (2713) (213 1) (1012) 613
Experience adjustiments on schemes habilities 252 18 (89 238 92 6
Experience adjustinents on schemes assets 258 3652 (4964) (2399) 433

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

£m £m £m fm £m
Company
Present value of defined benefit obligations (667 7) (3930) {3032) (3614) (3888
Fair value of schemes  assets 6156 3606 283 3 3460 3989
Net retinement benefit (obligations)/surplus (32 1) (G24) (197 (i3 4) 101
Laperience adjustments on schemes  labilities (127 - 20 16 4 133
Cxpetience adjustments on schemes  asseis 20 703 91 0) (68 6) (1n

Fhe gtoup has previously applied defined benefit accountuing in respect of the NGNPS scheme Durmg the
viar the gioup disposed of the 1elated fcedl entity (sce note 8) At disposal the gross penston ltabihties m
respect of tetmement bencfit obligations for the NGNPS were £232 2 nullion (2010 £233 5 nulhon) and
gtoss pension assels i o1espect of NGNPS were £243 0 mulhon (2010 £225 8 malhion) giving a net
position of £9 2 millien The group did not have the respensibiiity 1o fund the net pension deficn and
reflected this by the tecognition of an avatlable for sale assct within investments of £6 6 milhon at the date
of sale (2010 £5 5 million) this has also been disposed (sce note 13)

Defined contribution pension costs

[he schames also iclude a defined contiibution section which consututes atound two par cent of the total
asset value

Duning the year the gtoup made L3 2 mithon (2010 restated €5 53 milhen) of contributions (sce note 3) 1o
defined conubuuon sechemes relaung to conunuing opetations and £4 0 mulbion (2010 iestated  £4 4
million) relating to disconitnued operations  which are wncluded n armiving at operanng profit The
company made £1 4 miilion (2010 £2 3 million) of conttibutions 1o defined contribution schemes

Various companics i ihe Lnited Kingdom electricity industry parucipate n the Electricity Supply Pension
Scheme (ESPS) which 1s an industiv-wide defined benefit scheme  The Lnited Luhues Elecneny
Services Lomuted (LUES) section of the Electricity North West (ENW) Group of the scheme was created in
December 2007 to accommodate the transfer of employees from ENW (formeriy Umied Lulites
Electrrenty famited) to LLES At that date the LULS section of the scheme was fully funded The group
disposed of LUES 1ts cleciricity operanons and maintenance business m the North West of Fugland
during the year and therefore ceased to make any further cash contributions to the scheme {sce note 8) The
group made cash contributions over the period of the Asset Services Agreement (ASA) between UUES and
ENW, up 1o the date of disposal which were fully recoverable from ENW under the terms of the ASA
There 15 no obligation brought forward or carried forward for which the group 1s respensible
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19 Retirement benefit oblhigations (continued)
Cash contributiens of £5 9 million were made to the LLES section of the ESPS during the year ended 31
March 2011 (2010 £120 million) these cosis being charged to opcraung prefit from discontinued

operations within employee benefit expense, as defined contribuiion pension €osis

Lherefore, 1w total, the group weuncd defined contrbution pension costs of £9 9 wullion rddatng o
discontinued operations (2010 £16 4 milhon)

20. Deferred tax habilttics

The following are the major deferied tax habilities and assets recognised by the group and company and
the movements thereon, during the current and prior year

Acceleraied Retirement

lan benefit
depreciation obligations Othe lotal
£m £m £m £m
Group
At April 2009 1 438 0 (397 (37 0) 13415
Charged to the income statement 37 18 8 262 487
(Credited)/charged 1o equity (35D 03 (34 6)
At 3] March 2010 14617 (76 0) (30 3) 13354
(Credited)/charged to the income statement (89 7) 343 08§ (34 6)
Credued w equuy - (11 6) (01 (117
Disposals {sce nole 8} (4 0) 26 34 40
At 31 March 2011 13680 (307 (242 1293 1
Accelerated Retnement
tax benefit
depreciation obligations Other lotal
£m {m fm tm
Compan
At 1 Apnil 2009 (0 1) (5 6) (22) (79
Charged to the micome statcnent - 17 13 32
(Credited)/charged 1o equity - (32) - (52)
AU31 March 2010 on @ n (0N (9N
(Credned)/charged to the mcome statcment - 40 (151 (11
Credited 10 equity - (83) - (85
At 31 Varch 2011 on (136) (13 8)

Certain deferred tan assets and labilities have been offsct in accordance with 1AS 12 Income Faves

A deferred tas assct has been recognised 1n the company balance sheet as the group 1s profit making and as
such 1t 15 anuicipated that when the deferied 1ax assets reverse 1t will be possible 1o surtender any losses

arising as group relief
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21, Provisions

Group Company

Restructuring Other lotal Restructuring Other lotal

fm fm fm £m £m £m

AT Apnil 2009 114 284 398 - 25 25
Charged 10 the mcome

sialement 307 186 493 93 - 93

Luliscd in the year (23 %) (11 8) 353 4 0) - 40

At 31 March 2010 186 352 538 553 25 78
Charged to the income

statcment 98 239 337 50 (33) (10 3)

Ltilised in the year (24 2) (21 6) {43 8) 14 33 47

Disposals (sce note 8) (02) (rn (179) - - -

At 31 March 2011 40 198 238 17 05 22

The restructuning provision as at 31 March 2011 telates 1o scverance costs as a 1esult of group
reotgamisation Other provisions principally relate to contractual and legal claims agamst the group and
represent management s best estimate of the value of settiement and cosis the uming s dependent upon
the 1esolutton of the relovant legal claims

Provisions have been analvsed between curtent and non-cuitent as follows

Group Company
Restructunng Otha Fotal  Reswructuring Other Lotal
im Lm {m £m {m Lm
AT 31 March 2011
Non-eutrent - 93 93 - - -
Current 40 10 3 143 17 05 22
40 198 23 8 17 05 22
At 31 March 2010 T - o T
Non-curent - 83 853 - - -
Current 186 269 433 33 25 78
186 352 53 8 53 25 78
22 Irade and other payables
Group
Restated
201 2010
fm £m
Non-current
Deferred grants and contribuirens 2411 1757
Other creditors 87 72
2493 1829

[he company has no non-curent trade and other payables
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22. lrade and other payables (continued)
Group Company
Restated
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m fm fm £m
Current
Inade payables 397 676 33 24
Amounts owed to ultumate parent undertaking - 21 0l -
Amounts owed 10 subsidiary undertakings
Gtoup tax relief pavable - - 395 190
Other - - 17301 1,630 4
Amounis owed 1o rclated parties (see note 27) - 09 - -
Other tax and social security 44 76 07 10
Deferied grants and contributions 67 69 - -
Other creditors 29 3 29 30
Accruals and deferred income 3793 508 4 234 281
4330 396 5 1,800 0 | 6839

I'he average credit pertiod taken for trade purchases 1s 31 days for the group (2010 restated 38 days) and 1s
43 days (2010 17 days) for the company

The directors consider that the canying amount of tade payables appronimates to their fan value at both
31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010

Deterred grants and contributions

Restated .
2011 2010 |
fm £m .
Group
At the start of the veat 1826 1425
Recoved i the vear 721 470
Ciredited to the income statement 69 67

At the end of the vear 247 8 1826

Deferred grants are those amounis 1ecetved undet government gram schemes Deferted comnbutions are
those amounts recerved fiom customers 1n 1espect of new connections to the network

23 Sharcholders’ equity

2011 2010
{m fm
Group
Sharc capnal §818 881 8
Shate premium account 14300 14300
Rewvaluation reserve 158 8 1588
Cumulative exchange rescrve [ERD! 223
Other reserves - 3
Retamed earnings 6640 4519
31313 2,948 6
2011 2010
£m £m
Company
Share capnal 881 8 8818
Share premium account 14300 14500
Retained earnings 2,523 7 2,554 2
4,833 5 48460
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23 Sharcholders’ cquity (continucd)

As permutted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the company has not presenied s own income
statement  Fhe amount of group profit for the financial year dealt wath 1n the company s income statement
1s £247 4 nulhon (2010 £479 8 mullion loss) after accounting for dividends received from subsidiary
underiahings of £1 783 3 mulhion (2010 £6 3656 milhon) and impawment of investments of £1,5017
milhon (2010 £6 821 1 nullion)

24, Share capital

2011 20t1 2010 2010
Company number £ number £
Issued, called up and fully pard
Ordinary shares of 100 0 pence each 881,787 478 881 787,478 881,787478 881,787,478
Deferred A shares of 100 0 pence each 1 1 1 i

881 787,479 881 787,479  881,787479 881,787,479

The company has one class of ordmary shares which cany no right to fixed income The defenicd A shate
Laies no votmg tights not a tight to fixed mcome

25 Operating lease commitments

Plant and Plant and

Property equipment Property  wquipment

Group 2011 2011 2010 2010

Commitments under non-cancellable operaung fm £m tm fm
leases due

Within one yeat 36 07 30 [I

in the second 1o fifth vears mclusive 119 05 103 13

Aftar five years 2490 - 2475 0l

2645 12 2630 50

|
i
I
|

In respect of the group s commitment to significant property leases thete are no contingent rentals pavable
ot restictions on dividends debt or further leasing imposed by thesc lease arrangements  [he group docs
not have the right 1o tenew such leases in every case however whete rencewal nights do not exist there are
dppropriate strategics to ensure that suitable aliernauve property and accommodation solutions arc n place
in cach case Fscalanon of 1cnis 15 via rent teviews over a minmum five-vear penod

Plant and Piant and

Property  equipmient Property  equipment

Company 2011 2011 2010 2010

Commitments under non-cancellable operating fm £m £m £m
leases due

Within one year 04 01 053 01

In the second to {ifih vears inctusive 07 01 [ -

[ 02 16 01
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26. Sharc-based payments

l'he company operates several share option schemes Opuions are exercisable at a price equal 10 the average
quoted market price of the company s shares on the date of grant Opuons are forfeited 1f the employee
leaves the group through resignation or disnussal before the options vest

Cash-scitled and equity-scttled share-based pavments are measured at fair value at the date of grant 1he
fair value determined at the date of grant of equity-settled sharc-based pavments as calculated by KPMG
LLP, 15 expensed on a staight-line basis over the vesting peiod based upon the group s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest

Fan value 1s measured by usc of boih simulation and binoimal models according to the relevant measuies
of petformance The models include adjusiments based upon management s best estmate {or the effects
of exercise restrictions behavioural considerations and expected dividend payments The opion life 1s
detved from the models based upon these assumptions and other assumptions identified below

The total wcome included within operating profit fiom continuing opeiauons n respect of equuty-settied
sharc-based pavments was £0 1 million (2010 £2 4 milhon expense £1 7 million relaung to continuing
operatiens and £0 7 mulhon refating 1o disconunued operations) and £0 2 million expense (2010 £mil) in
1espect of cash-setiled share-based pavments, plus £mil acerual of national insurance contnibutions (2010
£0 3 mullion)

Fhe Lnned Luliues Lmplovee Shate Trust was estabhished by a nust decd executed on 21 August 1996
Lhe Trustecs hold the trust fund fo1 the bencfit of the beneficiaiics (being emplovees or foimer employees
of the group s compamies and then relatives) 10 the extent determuned by the riles of the share schemes As
at 31 March 2011 the Trust held no (2010 41 418) shares on ttust Duting the vear, these shares were uscd
10 satisfy awards pavablc under the gioup s petformance share plan All dividends pavable on the shates
durng the curtent and prior vears wore waved

Further details of the diffcront types of share-based pavments ate as follows

Company share oprion schome 1999

lhe company shate opuon schune 1999 15 for semior exceutves {eacluding  with oficet fiom the
intteduction of the group s long-teim incentive plan execunive directots and other execulives patticipaling
in that plan and 115 successor the perfortmance share plan)

Opuons under the company shaie option scheme 1999 are eercisable 4 pentod begimning no eailict than
thice yeas (five vears for discounted options under the former executive share option scheme which are
no tonger granted) and ending no later than 10 vears from the date of grant

Performance share plan

The performance shaie plan (PSP) 15 for semor executives of the group Options under the PSP aie
exereisable no carlier than three vears from the 31 March preceding the date of grant and have an excreise
period of thiee months PSP awards granted priot to 31 Maich 2008 are subject 10 a totdl sharcholder teturn
(15R) performance conditon (@ marhct-based measure of petformance) PSP awards granted from 1 Apil
2008 onwards are 50 per cent subject to a 1SR petformance condition the remaining 50 per cent of the
awards are subjeci to operational peiformance condittons

Vlatching share award plan

The matching shate award plan (MSAP) 1s for senior executives of the group Options under this scheme
arc excrcisable no ecarhier than three years from the 31 March preceding the date of grant and have an
excrcise period of three months MSAP awards are 30 per cent subject 1o a | SR performance condiion the
remaiming 30 per cent of the award 1s subject o operational performance condiions
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26. Share-based pavments (continued)

Deferred share plan

lhe deferred share plan (DSP) 15 for the emplovees at the level below sentor exccutive An annual award in
deferied group shares 1s made on the basis of a mavimum of 30 per cent of salary, apportioned according 10
the extent of the emplovee s achievement of the annual cash incentive plan masimum for the financial
year A hmited number of employees at the next level below sentor executive may also be nonnated to
recetve a one-off award of a fised number of deferred group shares in recogmtion of ciceptional
petformance during the vear Sharcs ate released afier a three-year holding period and arc conditional on
continued employment with the group duning this time  1hese opitons may at the gioup s discretion be
setiled in cash DSP awards grant employees free shares with no performance condiuions which are entitled
to dividend equivalents therefore the fair value of the award 1s equal to the market price of the share at the
arant date {2011 weighted average fan value ar daie of award £3 62 2010 £541)

Other share-based payment plan

The main all-emplovee scheme 1s the HME Revenue & Cusioms approved share incentive plan - ShareBuy
I'hs 15 a flevible way for employvees 10 acquire shares in the company by buying patinership shares up to
the lower of £1 300 or 10 per cent of tavable pav each year The funds are deducted fiom pre-tasable pay
and passed 1o an independent ttusice who makes a monthly purchase of shares at full market puice
Lmployees can reinvist the dividends on parinaship shaies to buy mote shares under the plan The group
gives one fiee share for every five parinership shares bought The shares need to be held in trust for a five-
vear iwm i order to 1etam the masmum taxation advaniages

Ihe lollowing tables show the mputs to the model used to caleulate the fan value of cquity-seitled share
options granicd durning the vears ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010 1espectively

Madhing MMagching
share share Porformance Porformiance . Porformance Poertormancy
award plan® ' award plan' ' share plan snare plan' ' share pl.m‘:' share pl.mm
ISR Opaetionat ISR Openinonal 1SR Opuratond
0% 30% S0% 0% 3004 <%
2011
Weighted average eaercise price
(£ pur share) - - - - - -
Vesting period (vears) 27 27 27 2 20 20
Expected volatihity (%) 278 - 278 - 259 -
Rish free rate (%) 14 - 14 - 13 -
I"spected dividend vield (%) - - - - - -
Fau valuc (£ per share} 271 560 271 360 236 589
Notes
(1) Awarded v Tuly 2010
2y Awarded m Maieh 2041
Matching Matchme
shar share  Purtormance Perionaanes
award plan’™ award plan’™  share plan’™  sharc plan®?
ISR Operationat ISR Operanonal
30% 30% 50% 30%
2010
Weighted average exercise price (£ per share) - - - -
Vesung period (years) 28 28 28 28
Expected volatility (%) 268 - 268 -
Risk free rate (%) 24 - 24 -
Expected dividend yield (9%) - - - -
Fair value (£ per share) 1 64 510 1 64 510
Notes

(3) Avwarded m Junce 2009

Cash-setiled share options amounting to £0 5 million were granted during the year (2010 £iul)

I'he expected volaulity is bascd upon the histerical volatdity of the company s share price over the
cypected ife of the option
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

26 Share-based pavments (continued)

The movement m total outstanding options m respect of giants of equity nsttuments after 7 Novemba
2002 unvested as of | Apitl 2004 and thercfore within the scope of [FRS 2 Shate-based Paymenis 18
provided below

Company Matching
share option sharc Performance Deferred
scheme 1999 award plan share plan share plan
Weighted
average
exercise
Number of pticc  “umbet of  Numbet of  Number of
options £ options options options
QOutstanding at | April 2009 108,531 5344 272 838 583 334 234,091
Granted - - 73,270 391 574 74 279
Dividend remnvestment - - 24036 68 108 17,567
Forfelied (7720) - (5 886) (14 374) (43 025)
Excrcised - - - - (61 423)
Lapucd - - - - -
Quistanding at 31 March 2010 100 811 544 364 278 1 028 642 221 487
Granted - - 24 612 275275 92 382
Dividend remvesument - - 10 842 49,417 13,079
totfened (29 362) - (227 381) (694 612) (16 432}
Myereised (15 803) 544 (15 082) - (110039
Expired - - - - -
Outstanding at 31 Viarch 2011 35 644 544 157 069 638 722 200 477
Range of prices T N T ) -
31 March 2004 544
31 Maich 2010 2.a4
Weighted average share price
at date of excreise
31 March 2011 601 338 n/a 371
31 March 2010 ) nwe _ nla ___ nla __ _na
Contractual remaming hite
31 March 2011 | 7 vears 03 vears I Ovears L3 vears
31 March 2010 27 veats  _ 09 wears 11 veas 3 vears

None of the share opaions identified above as ouistanding at 31 Viarch 2011 had vested at that date

lor the purpose of [ RS 2 eapiry of performance share plan awards 1s measured with teference to the
achievement of the petformanee conditions within the vesting conditzons at the reporting date not the end
of the notional vesung petiod of thice vears from giant date  Lherefore  optons with paformance
conditions measuted at the end of a tepotting pertod are tieated as expued if then petformance conditions
are not achieved at the 1eporting date
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

26 Share-based pavments (continued)

Options outstanding at 31 March under the shaze option schemes which are outside the scope of IFRS 2,
together with their exeraise prices and dates were

2011 2010 Exercise Normal
Number Numbei pricet dates
of opuions of options £ of excrcise
Company shale option scheme 1999 - 100 598 6 80 2003 to 2010
- 25923 6 66 2003 10 2010
79 503 110 291 6352 2004 10 2011
7357 40,104 5 8% 2003 to 2012
133,636 191,163 611 2005t0 2012
220 496 468 079

Notc
(1) The excresse price cqualiad the market pnige at the date the option was granted

27 Related partsy transactions

Group
[ransactions between the company dand 1is subsidiaties which are related parties have been elnmnaicd on
consolidation and are not disclosed m this note

Irading tnansactions
he following transactions wete cartied out with the group s jomt venuues
Purchases of goods

Sales of services and serviees

2011 2010 2011 2040

Ltm fm Lm Lm

Joint ventures 44 2 92 9 95 48
Amounts owed Amounts owed

bv related parties to related partics

2011 2010 2011 2010

£m £m £m Lm

jloint ventures (sec notes 15 22) 27 19 2 - 09

Included within the able above are amounts 1elating 1o enuities that have been disposced of during the veat
cnded 31 March 2011 A list of the principal joint ventures 1s included i the Lnited Laliies PLC Repont
and Nnancial Staicments for the yvear ended 31 March 2010

Sales of setvices to related parties were on the group s normal trading terms

T'he amounts outstanding arc unsecured and will be seitled in accordance with normal credit terms [he
group has ssucd guarantees of £5 9 mithon (2010 £126 8§ mulhon) to 1ts Joint ventures (sec note 13) A
£0 3 milhion provision has been made for doubtful receivables in respect of the amounts owed by related
parties (2010 £0 4 million) o expense has been recognised for bad and doubiful receivables m respeci of
the amounts owed by related partres (2010 £0 3 mithon)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

27. Related party transactions (continued)

Non-trading transactions

‘The following transactions were carried out with the group s ulumate parent undertahing Lnited Lutlities

Group PLC

Llumate parent undertaking

Interest recervable

2011 2010
£m £m
296 320

Interest payable

2011 2010
fm £m
- 01

Amounts owed
by rclated parties

Amounts owed
to related parties

2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m Im
L lismate parent undertaking 15019 15197 330 656

Company

Ihe company 1cceives dividend mcome, pays and 1cceives niteteslt and recharges costs to and from
subsidiarv undartahings and 1ts ulumate patent compeny 1n the normal course of business

Lotal dividend income tecerved duning the vear amounted to £1 783 5 mullion (2010 £6,365 6 million)
total mierest 1eecivable duning the vear from subsidiary undertahings was £17 0 mithon (2010 £18 7
mullion) total fan valuc losses duning the year from subsidiary undertakings was £26 2 mallion (2010
£17 9 mulliony m addition total interest reccivable duting the vear flom the ulimate patent company wes
£25 6 milon (2010 £16 0 mullion pavable) and total recharges were £75 3 million (2010 £102 2 mithon)
Amounis outstanding at 31 Maich 2011 between the patent company subsidiary undatanings and ultmate
parent undertahing are provided mnotes 13 17 20 and 22

lhe company has cntered into performance guarantees with joint ventuies as at 31 March 2011 where a
financial limu has been specified of £rul {2010 £157 3 nullion) the company guaranteed intra-group
loans made by subsidiaty undettakings of £343 9 nullion (2010 £343 9 million) Balances will be settled
in accordanee with normal credit tetms An allowance for doubtful reeeivables of £80 6 mulhon (2010
£82 9 million) has been made for amounts owed by subsidiary undertahmgs In the year ended 31 Miatch
2011 an expensc of £22 million wds tecorded n 1cspect of bad o doubtful reeeivables due from
substdtary undartahings (2010 £2 9 milhon)

Lhe company nicred into a £400 million mteicompany intciest 1ate swap with LL Wata PILC with a 3
vedr matutity date up to 31 March 2015 as pait of the 2010-2013 regulatory hedging progiamme Duting
the vear the company recetved net interest of £1 6 mithon and £12 8 milhion of fan value movements was
credited through the income statement
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

28. Cash generated from operations

Group Company
Restated
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m fm £n £m
Continuing operations
Profit/(loss) before 1anation 3566 440 6 2357 (474 3)
Adjustment for nvesiment income and finanee expense 2236 3272 (8 3) 26
Operating profit/(loss) 5802 7678 2274 E717
Adjustments for
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 2583 234 1 - -
Ameortsation of other mtangible assets 322 260 - -
Loss on disposal of propetty plant and equipment 27 30 - -
LLoss on disposal of other intangible assets 28 - - -
Equity-sctiled share-based payments (cicdit)/charge (0 1) 17 - -
Other non-cash movements* - (87 3) (24 6) 686 8
Changes 11 working capital
Decrease/(increase) m inventolies 21 (16) - -
{Incredsc)/dectease in trade and other 1eecivables (22 8) 30 43 1 112
(Decreasc)/mctcase m provisions and pavables (74 8) G20 771 127 8
Cash generated trom continuing operations 78006 934 6 3230 4550

* There were no material non-cash ansactions for the group dunine the sear ended 31 March 201D Material nen-cash transacions
for the company during the sear ended 31 March 2011 molude imparrment of the compamy s iy estumont i its subsidiary Lnaed
Lthittes One Dimned (£7 500 7 mlion s nete 13) oftset by non-cash settled dividonds recenved rom Limted Luinties On
Limited of £1 517 3 nulhen Thare wore no osher material transactions for the company m the vear Miewerial non-cash transachions
durne the prion yvear inglude for the grovp the ponsion schomes curaiment eams ansing o amendment of ponston eblisations
(L97 3 mullioa see now 19) and  ter the compeny the napamment of the compant s 1 ivesiment ity subsidiary Lied Lulites
Nort West PLE (E691 1 nuilion see note 13y and 13s ow lorsey subsidianies (£6 127 0 medlion sce note 13) eftset by non-wash
sodled dividends reconved fron e tour Torsey sibsidianies (L6 128 9 mullion) anu pension sthomios curtailnent gais etsimg on
anndmuont of pension obhiwaitoas (63 5 nulhon sco no o 19}

lhe company acquited £1 499 8 million of ordinaty shaies in Lnited Luliies Invesument (No 7) 1 imited
by transfer of an mter-company reccivable balance (scc note 13)

the compam crcased s nvestments by L1 187 9 million m Lnued Luliies Lmplovee Shate Trust
£296 9 mullwon m United Lithties (Jersey) Investments {No 6) 1mited and £150 mullion m Lnited
Lulties Investments (No 3) 1Tumited followmg s wansftr of 476 mllion ordmary shates 1 Lnited
Lulities North West PLC 1o Lnned Luthues Investment Partnerships (No 2) TP (sce note 13)

fn the prior vear the company acquned L1 500 8 miilion of ordmary shares m Lmted Lubtics One 1 nmited
by tanstet of an intet-company recervable balance (sce note 13)

29. Contmgent liahilities

lhe company guaranteed loans of group undertakings up o a mavimum of L1246 1 millon (2010
£1 163 1 millien) including £902 2 mithon (2010 £821 2 milion) relaung to Lnited Luliues Water PL C s
loans from Furopean Investment Bank and £343 9 nullion (2010 £343 9 nullion) telating to intra-group
loans made by subsidiary undertahings

‘The group has entered into performance guarantecs as at 31 March 2011 where a financial limut has been
specified of £104 5 mulhion (2010 £201 2 mailhon)

The company has entered into performance guarantees as at 31 March 2011, where a financial limu has
been specified of £94 6 million (2010 £194 7 mithon)

108




Lmted Lalites PI C

b ]

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

30. Fvents after the reporung perod

Subscquent 1o the vear end a conclusion has becn 1cached in respect of the arbitrauton proceedings in
Thailand m relation to a 1993 contract with the Bangkok Metropohtan Adimimistration to which the NOSS
Consortium of which North West Water International Limited a whelly owned subsidiary of Lnited
Luhties PLC was a member was parly The provision that existed in the group balance sheet at 31 March
2011 adequatelv covered the settlement amounts and therefore no significant adjustment was necessary

31 Ulttmate parent undertaking

L he company s immediaie and ulumate parent undetahing and controlling party 1s United Lulities Group
PLC a company mcotporated in Great Britain

The smallest group i which the results of the company are consolidated 1s that headed by Linned Luliies
PI.C

T he largest group in which the resulis of the company are consohidated 15 that headed by Lated Luhiies
Group PLC Ihe consolidated accounts of this group ate available to the public and may be obtamed from
The Company Scaretary Lnited Luluies Gioup PYC Haweswater House Lingley Mere Business Park
Langley Green Avenue Great Sankev Wantington WAS 31LP

32. Prioi year adjustments

The group and company have adopted [FRIC 18 lransfer of Asscts from Customers (sec accounung
policies) In accondance with IFRS 3 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations the
compadrative mformaiion of the relevant disposal groups has been reswated
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32, Prior year adjustments (continued)

The mmpact on the March 2010 compatatives on the adoption of this now mterpietation and on the

application of 1 RS 3 10 dhstonuinued operanions s set out below

2010 Consohidaied statement of financial position 31 March 2010
as previously Restatemeni 31 March 2010
reperted  for IFRIC 18 restated
£m £m Iim
ASSEIS
Non-current assets
Property plant and cquipment 81228 36 8 81596
Goodwill 25 25
Other intangible asscis 20806 - 2086
[nvestments 77 - 77
'rade and other recervables 565 - 565
Dernvative financial msuuments 37853 - 3783
87766 36 8 §81534
Cuirent assets
[nventories 74 8 - 74 8
Trade and other recevables 1 9707 - 19707
Cash and short-term deposits 3015 - 3015
Dernvative finanaial instruments 183 - 183
23653 - 23653
Total asscts i 1419 368 111787
LIABILITIES -
Non-current habihities
Itade and other pavables (146 3) (36 4) (1829
Bottowimgs (33079 - (33079
Reurement benefit obhigdauions (271 3) - (271 3)
Deferted wan liabiliies (1 3354) - (13554)
Piovisions (83) - (8 3)
Denvative financial msuuments (102 3) - (102 3)
(7181 7) (36 4) (7228 1)
Current liabilities S
l1ade and other payvables (396 1) 04) (396 3)
Botrowings (229 5) - (229 5
Curtent income 1ax liabihtes (104 7y - (104 7y
Provisions (455) - (433)
Darwvauve financial instruments (23 8) - (25 8)
(1001 6) 04 (1 002 0)
Lotal habihities (81935 (36 8) (8230 1)
I otal net assets 2094806 - 29486
EQLITY T
Capital and reseryes attributable to cquity hoiders of the company
Share capral 8318 - 881 8
Share premium account 14300 - 14300
Revaluation icsetve 138 8 - 158 8
Cumulative exchange reserve 223 - 223
Other reserves 38 - 38
Retarned earnings 4519 - 4519
Shareholders’ equity 29486 - 2,948 6
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32, Prior year adjustments (continued)
2010 Consohdated imcome statement 2010 Transfer to
as previously Restatement discontinued 2010
reported  for IFRIC 18 operations restated
im fm Lim £m
Continuing operation
Revenue 24391 25) (863 5) 15731
Enmployec benefits expense
excluding pension schemes curtaiiment
gains anising on amendment of pension
obhgations and restruciunng costs (362 4) - 206 1 (156 3)
pension schemes curtatiment gans
arising on amendment of pension
obligations 923 - (30 873
1CSLUCIULINgG COSis (307) - 49 (25 8)
l otal empioyece bencfits expensc (300 8) - 2060 (94 8)
Other operaung costs (905 1) 26 5807 (321 8)
Other mecome 31 - 20 51
Depieciation and amottisation expense (304 7) 01 247 (280 1)
Infiastructuie renowals expenditme ({137 - - (137
Lotal aperating expenses (16212) 23 8154 (805 3)
Operatng profit 8179 - @Bon 767 8
Invesiment mcome 46 1 - (79N 282
! tnance expense (383 7) - 183 (365 4)
Investment imcome and {inance expensc (337 6) - 104 (327 2)
Profit on disposal of investments 366 - (36 6) -
Pyaluation and disposal costs telaung o
non-regulated business (10 8) - 108 -
Profit before tananen 3506 1 - (65 3) 440 6
Current tavation chaige (309) - 25 (28 4)
Deferted tanauion charge (487 - 65 (42 2)
laxation (79 6) - 90 (70 6)
Profit after taxation from continuing
operations 4265 - (36 3) 3700
Duscontmued operations
Profit after tanation from discontinued
operations - - 565 563
Profit after taxation 4263 - - 4265




